AGENDA
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, COUNTY OF MONO
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

Regular Meetings: First, Second, and Third Tuesday of each month. Location of meeting is specified below.
Meeting Location: Mono Lake Room, 1st Fl., County Civic Center, 1290 Tavern Rd., Mammoth Lakes, CA
93546

Regular Meeting
May 21, 2024

TRIBAL LAND ACKNOWLEDGMENT

In respect to the Indigenous People and Tribal Elders, past, and present, the Bridgeport Indian Colony, Mono
Lake Kutzadika Tribe, and Utu Utu Gwaitu Tribe are the indigenous People who live within this, their
ancestral homeland from time immemorial to the present and have been the caretakers of these lands,
waters, and all natural resources for the benefit of the environment and of all living things. We who live in
Mono County offer this land acknowledgment with a spirit of mutual respect and collaboration.

TELECONFERENCE INFORMATION

This meeting will be held in person at the location listed above. Additionally, a teleconference location will be
available where the public and members of the Board may participate by electronic means.

1. Mammoth Teleconference Location — for meetings held on the first and second Tuesday of each month -
Mono Lake Room of the Mono County Civic Center, First Floor, 1290 Tavern Road, Mammoth Lakes, CA.
93546;

2. Bridgeport Teleconference Location — for meetings held on the third Tuesday of each Month - Mono County
Courthouse, Second Floor Board Chambers, 278 Main Street, Bridgeport, CA. 93517;

3. Zoom Webinar.

Members of the public may participate via the Zoom Webinar, including listening to the meeting and providing
public comment, by following the instructions below.

To join the meeting by computer:

Visit https://monocounty.zoom.us/j/86184622677 or visit hitps://www.zoom.us/, click on "Join A Meeting" and
enter the Zoom Webinar ID 861 84622 677.

To provide public comment, press the “Raise Hand” button on your screen.

To join the meeting by telephone:
Dial (669) 900-6833, then enter Zoom Webinar 861 84622 677
To provide public comment, press *9 to raise your hand and *6 to mute/unmute.

If you are unable to join the Zoom Webinar of the Board meeting, you may still view the live stream of the
meeting by visiting: https://monocounty.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?publish_id=68a69f03-6511-41ef-ae37-
636788b98695



NOTE: In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in
this meeting, please contact the Clerk of the Board at (760) 932-5530 or bos@mono.ca.gov. Notification 48

hours prior to the meeting will enable the County to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to
this meeting (See 42 USCS 12132, 28CFR 35.130).

Full agenda packets are available for the public to review in the Office of the Clerk of the Board (Annex | - 74
North School Street, Bridgeport, CA 93517) and online athttp://monocounty.ca.gov/bos. Any writing distributed

less than 72 hours prior to the meeting will be available for public inspection in the Office of the Clerk of the
Board and online.

UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED BY TIME, ITEMS SCHEDULED FOR EITHER THE MORNING OR
AFTERNOON SESSIONS WILL BE HEARD ACCORDING TO AVAILABLE TIME AND PRESENCE OF
INTERESTED PERSONS. PUBLIC MAY COMMENT ON AGENDA ITEMS AT THE TIME THE ITEM IS
HEARD.

9:00 AM Call meeting to Order

Pledge of Allegiance

1. OPPORTUNITY FOR THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD

Opportunity for the public to address the Board on items of public interest that
are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board. (Speakers may be limited in
speaking time dependent upon the press of business and number of persons
wishing to address the Board.) Please refer to the Teleconference Information
section to determine how to make public comment for this meeting via Zoom.

2. RECOGNITIONS - NONE
3. COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER

CAO Report regarding Board Assignments
Receive brief oral report by County Administrative Officer (CAO) regarding work
activities.

4, DEPARTMENT/COMMISSION REPORTS
Receive brief oral report on emerging issues and/or activities.
5. CONSENT AGENDA

(All matters on the consent agenda are to be approved on one motion unless a
board member requests separate action on a specific item.)

A. Board Minutes
Departments: Clerk of the Board

Approval of Board minutes from the 2024, April regular meetings.

Recommended Action: Approve the Board minutes from the April 2, 2024,
regular meeting. Approve the Board minutes from the April 9, 2024, regular
meeting. Approve the Board minutes from the April 16, 2024, regular meeting.


mailto:bos@mono.ca.gov

Fiscal Impact: None.
Consolidation of Elections - Municipal
Departments: Elections

The Mammoth Lakes Town Council has requested that the General Municipal
Election be consolidated with the Statewide General Election, and that the Mono
County Elections Division conduct the election and canvass the returns.

Recommended Action: Consider and adopt a Resolution consolidating the
General Municipal Election with the Statewide General Election on November 5,
2024, and directing the Mono County Elections Division to conduct the election
and canvass the returns.

Fiscal Impact: Costs associated with adding an extra item(s) to the already
scheduled ballot. These costs are not known until after the election. In
accordance with Elections Code Section 10002, the Town of Mammoth Lakes
shall reimburse the County for these additional costs.

Appointment to the Mono County Assessment Appeals Board
Departments: Clerk of the Assessment Appeals Board

Appointment of one regular member to the Mono County Assessment Appeals
Board (AAB).

Recommended Action: Appoint Jarrett Patrick as a regular member of the
Mono County Assessment Appeals Board, for a term which ends September 1,
2024.

Fiscal Impact: No impact beyond previously budget expenses for Board
member stipends.

2021-2026 System Improvement Plan for Mono County's Health Human
Services Social Services Employment and Eligibility Division, CalWORKs
program

Departments: Health and Human Services

Pursuant to SB 89, Mono County Department of Health and Human Services,
Social Services Employment and Eligibility Division has established a continuous
quality improvement and review process for its CalWORKSs program, in alignment
with CalWORKSs Outcomes and Accountability Review. The Department seeks
approval of its 2021 - 2026 System Improvement Plan.

Recommended Action: Approve the Eligibility Division's 2021 2026 System
Improvement Plan, and authorize the Chair to sign on behalf of the Board of
Supervisors.

Fiscal Impact: None.



iR RIS M PIIRIRShiR gL Understanding

Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the American Red Cross and
Mono County to define a working relationship in preparing for, responding to, and
recovering from disasters. This MOU provides the framework for cooperation and
support between the Red Cross and Mono County in assisting individuals,
families and communities who have been or could be impacted by disaster or an
emergency.

Recommended Action: Approve County entry into proposed Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU) for the period July 30, 2024 through July 30, 2029, and
authorize the Chair of the Board of Supervisors to execute said MOU on behalf of
the County.

Fiscal Impact: None.

Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) regarding Behavioral Health
Programs, Activities and Crisis Response at School Sites

Departments: Behavioral Health

Proposed MOU with various school sites throughout Mono County which are
operated by Mammoth Unified School District, Eastern Sierra Unified School
District, and the Mono County Office of Education, pertaining to behavioral health
services.

Recommended Action: Approve, and authorize Behavioral Health Director to
sign, contract with Mammoth Unified School District, Eastern Sierra Unified
School District, and the Mono County Office of Education for behavioral health
services for the period of January 1, 2024, through December 31, 2025.

Fiscal Impact: None.

FY23/24 Regional Surface Transportation Program (RSTP) Road Funding
Agreement

Departments: Public Works - Road Department

Approval of annual funding through the Regional Surface Transportation Program
(RSTP) apportionment. This repeating annual agreement authorizes the
exchange of federal highway funds for state highway funds thereby providing the
Road Fund with a more flexible funding source.

Recommended Action: Approve and authorize Chair’s signature on the
FY23/24 Federal Exchange and State Match Agreement for allocation of Federal
Surface Transportation Program Funds through the State’s Regional Surface
Transportation Program

Fiscal Impact: $329,725 of intergovernmental revenue to the Road Fund (Fund
180), which was included in the FY 2023/2024 adopted budget.



Eastside Lane Rehabilitation Project Phase 2 - Program Supplement
Agreement

Departments: Public Works

Proposed resolution “A Resolution of the Mono County Board of Supervisors,
State of California, Approving Program Supplement Agreement No. FO20 Under
Administering Agency — State Agreement No. 09-5947F 15 for the Eastside Lane
Rehabilitation Project Phase 2”.

Recommended Action: Adopt proposed resolution.

Fiscal Impact: Total programmed federal funding is $3,748,000 in the State
Transportation Improvement Program (STIP). Federal reimbursement of 88.53
percent is funded with STIP federal funds. Caltrans Toll Credits have been
approved to fund the required 11.47 percent local match. Exact costs will be
based on actual bids received. If bids received exceed programmed STIP
funding, additional STIP funding may be applied to the project depending on the
availability of funds.

Mono County Jail Site Work Bid Package Authorization
Departments: Public Works

Authorization to Bid and Award Project 9646-4 Site Preparation in support of the
Bridgeport Jail Project.

Recommended Action: 1. Approve the attached bid package and authorize the
Public Works Department to advertise the project for bids. Authorize the Public
Works Director to execute the contract contained in the attached bid package
with the lowest responsible bidder in an amount equal or less than the estimated
cost, plus 15 percent contingency, and issue change orders from time to time as
necessary. 2. Authorize the Public Works Director to reject all bids if no bid is
received that is less than the estimated cost, plus 15 percent contingency.

Fiscal Impact: This project is expected to cost approximately $400,000. Actual
costs will be known upon bid opening. The project is funded with unspent debt
proceeds in the Criminal Justice Facility Capital Projects Fund.

CORRESPONDENCE RECEIVED

Direction may be given to staff regarding, and/or the Board may discuss, any item
of correspondence listed on the agenda.

Letter of Opposition to the Governor's May Revision Budget Proposal

Letter to Senator Menjivar and Assembly Member Weber regarding the
opposition of the Governor's May revision budget proposal to eliminate the entire
$300 million ongoing General Fund Future of Public Health investment, including
$200 million dedicated to local health department workforce and infrastructure.



We also express opposition to the elimination of $52.5 million in Future of Public
Health funds in the current fiscal year.

REGULAR AGENDA - MORNING

Inyo National Forest Pre-Seasonal Update
Departments: Board of Supervisors
30 minutes

(Lesley Yen, Forest Supervisor; Todd McDivitt, Deputy Forest Fire Chief; Lance
Rosen, Assistant District Fire Management Officer and Chris Small Comb,
NOAA/National Weather Service) - Presentation by the Inyo National Forest and
Bishop Field Office BLM Leadership teams regarding the 2023 Wildfire
Seasonal Review, 2024 Wildfire Seasonal Review, and the Inyo National Forest
and Bishop BLM Fire program overview.

Recommended Action: None, informational only.

Fiscal Impact: None.

Mono County Childcare Workshop
Departments: Board of Supervisors
30 minutes

(Stacey Adler, Mono County Superintendent of Schools; Molly DesBalillets, First
5 Mono Executive Director) - Presentation by Stacey Adler, Mono County
Superintendent of Schools and Molly DesBaillet, Execute Director of First 5
Mono regarding the Mono County Childcare Update.

Recommended Action: None, informational only.

Fiscal Impact: None.

Housing Update

Departments: County Administrative Office
20 minutes

(Tyrone Grandstrand, Housing Opportunities Manager) - Mono County staff will
provide an update on the housing work program.

Recommended Action: Staff recommends that the Board receive the
presentation and provide questions as needed.

Fiscal Impact: None. This item is informational only.

Terms and Conditions of Employment for Children's Services Manager
Departments: Health and Human Services

10 minutes



(Michelle Raust, Health Human Services Deputy Director) - The Health and
Human Services (HHS) Department has selected Leslie Gaunt, ACSW/J.D., as
its Children's Services Manager. Ms. Gaunt currently works for the county as a
Staff Services Analyst Il within the Social Services Division of HHS. This item
seeks Board approval of an Agreement regarding the terms and condition of
employment for Ms. Gaunt in this new role.

Recommended Action: Announce Fiscal Impact. Adopt resolution approving an
agreement regarding the terms and conditions of employment of Leslie Gaunt as
Children's Services Manager. Authorize the Board Chair to execute said
agreement on behalf of the County.

Fiscal Impact: This item increases spending for the remainder of this fiscal year
by $20,389, of which $14,301 is salary and $6,088 is benefits. If this item is
approved, the annual cost will be $176,703, of which $123,941 is salary and
$52,762 is benefits. The fiscal impact of this item is included in the Health and
Human Services FY 2023-24 adopted budget.

Terms and Conditions of Employment for Parks and Facilities
Superintendent

Departments: Public Works
5 minutes

(Karyn Spears, Public Works Assistant Director) - Proposed resolution approving
a contract with Eric Eilts as Parks and Facilities Superintendent, and prescribing
the compensation, appointment, and conditions of said employment.

Recommended Action: Announce Fiscal Impact. Adopt proposed resolution
approving an agreement with Eric Eilts as Parks and Facilities Superintendent,
and prescribing the compensation, appointment, and conditions of said
employment. Authorize the Board Chair to execute said contract on behalf of the
County.

Fiscal Impact: The estimated cost of this position for the remainder of this fiscal
year is $22,728 of which $16,299 is salary and $6,429 is benefits. If approved,
the annual cost will be $172,829 of which $123,941 is salary and $48,888 is
benefits. The fiscal impact of this item is included in the Public Works FY 2023-
24 adopted budgets.

Terms and Conditions of Employment for Animal Services Manager
Departments: County Administrative Office
5 minutes

(Christine Bouchard, Assistant County Administrative Officer) - Agreement
regarding Terms and Conditions of Employment for Brittany Pratt as the Animal
Services Manager, an at-will position, at Range 111, Step A.

Recommended Action: Announce fiscal impact. Adopt resolution approving an



agreement regarding the terms and conditions of employment for Brittany Pratt
as Animal Services Manager for Mono County, an at-will position, at Range 111,
Step A.

Fiscal Impact: The estimated cost of this position for the remainder of the fiscal
year is $11,600, of which $7,964 is salary and $3,636 is benefits. The total cost
of salary and benefits for an entire fiscal year is approximately $128,294, of
which $88,082 is salary and $40,212 is benefits. This is included in the
Department’s FY 2023/24 adopted budget.

CLOSED SESSION

Closed Session - Labor Negotiations

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS. Government Code Section
54957.6. Agency designated representative(s): Sandra Moberly, Mary Booher,
Christopher Beck, Janet Dutcher, and Christine Bouchard. Employee
Organization(s): Mono County Sheriff's Officers Association (aka Deputy Sheriff's
Association), Local 39 - majority representative of Mono County Public
Employees (MCPE) and Deputy Probation Officers Unit (DPOU), Mono County
Paramedic Rescue Association (PARA), Mono County Correctional Deputy
Sheriffs’ Association. Unrepresented employees: All.

Closed Session - Exposure to Litigation

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL — ANTICIPATED LITIGATION.
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) of
Government Code section 54956.9. Number of potential cases: one.

Closed Session - Existing Litigation

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL — EXISTING LITIGATION. Paragraph
(1) of subdivision (d) of Government Code section 54956.9. Name of cases:
County of Mono v. Amerisourcebergen Drug Corporation; Cardinal Health, Inc.;
McKesson Corporation; Purdue Pharma L.P.; Purdue Pharma, Inc., et al., United
States District Court, Eastern District of California, Case No. 2:18-cv-01149-
MCE-KJN.

Closed Session - Existing Litigation

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL — EXISTING LITIGATION. Paragraph
(1) of subdivision (d) of Government Code section 54956.9. Name of case:
County of Mono, et al v. Liberty Utilities, LLC, et al., Case No: 2:21-cv-00834-
DAD-KJN, U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of California.

BOARD MEMBER REPORTS

The Board may, if time permits, take Board Reports at any time during the



meeting and not at a specific time.

ADJOURN



¥y

=%\ OFFICE OF THE CLERK

‘% | OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

&

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST

&=, Print
MEETING DATE May 21, 2024
Departments: Clerk of the Board
TIME REQUIRED PERSONS
, APPEARING
Board Minut
SUBJECT oard Minutes BEFORE THE
BOARD
AGENDA DESCRIPTION:

(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

Approval of Board minutes from the 2024, April regular meetings.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Approve the Board minutes from the April 2, 2024, regular meeting. Approve the Board minutes from the April 9, 2024,
regular meeting. Approve the Board minutes from the April 16, 2024, regular meeting.

FISCAL IMPACT:

None.

CONTACT NAME: Danielle Patrick
PHONE/EMAIL: 7609325535 / despinosa@mono.ca.gov

SEND COPIES TO:

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
~ YES @ NO

ATTACHMENTS:

Click to download

O April 2. 2024 DRAFT Meeting Minutes

O April 9. 2024 DRAFT Meeting Minutes

O April 16, 2024 DRAET Meeting Minute

History
Time Who Approval
5/16/2024 9:06 AM County Counsel Yes

5/6/2024 2:18 PM Finance Yes


javascript:history.go(0);

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=32467&ItemID=17639

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=32468&ItemID=17639

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=32469&ItemID=17639

5/16/2024 12:32 PM

County Administrative Office

Yes



DRAFT MEETING MINUTES
April 2, 2024
Page 1 of 10

DRAFT MEETING MINUTES
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, COUNTY OF MONO
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

Regular Meetings: First, Second, and Third Tuesday of each month. Location of meeting is
specified below.
Meeting Location: Board Chambers, 2nd Fl., County Courthouse, 278 Main St., Bridgeport, CA

93517
Regular Meeting
April 2, 2024
Backup Recording Zoom
Minute Orders M24-057 — M24-062
Resolutions - R24-031- R24-033
Ordinance ORD24-004 Used

9:00 AM Meeting called to order by Chair Peters.

Supervisors Present: Duggan, Gardner, Kreitz, Salcido, and Peters. (All members were
present in-person or participated via teleconference in compliance with rules established
by the Ralph M. Brown Act).

Supervisors Absent: None.

The Mono County Board of Supervisors stream most of their meetings live on the

internet and archives them afterward. To search for a meeting from June 2, 2015,
forward, please go to the following link: http://www.monocounty.ca.gov/meetings

Pledge of Allegiance led by Supervisor Gardner.

1. OPPORTUNITY FOR THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD
No one spoke.

2. RECOGNITIONS - NONE

3. COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER

Note:
These draft meeting minutes have not yet been appro  ved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors


http://www.monocounty.ca.gov/meetings

DRAFT MEETING MINUTES
April 2, 2024
Page 2 of 10

Sandra Moberly, Cou nty Administrative Officer:
» Update on the Bridgeport Post Office.

4. DEPARTMENT/COMMISSION REPORTS
Paul Roten, Public Works Director:
¢ Update on the Mono County Jail Project.

Jeff Simpson, Economic Development Director:
» Recognized Liz Grans for her outstanding work with the filming projects.
» Update on the 2024 Eastern Sierra Summer Air Service.
» Shared the Poppy Award.

5. CONSENT AGENDA

(Al matters on the consent agenda are to be approved on one motion unless a
board member requests separate action on a specific item.)

A. Board Minutes
Departments: Clerk of the Board

Approval of Board minutes from the February 2024, regular meetings.

Action: Approved the Board minutes from the February 6, 2024, regular
meeting. Approved the Board minutes from the February 20, 2024, regular
meeting.

Duggan moved; Gardner seconded

Vote: 5 Yes, 0 No

M24-057

B. Cancellation of May 7, 2024, Regular Meeting of the  Board of Supervisors
Departments: Clerk of the Board

Cancellation of the May 7, 2024, regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors.

Action: Cancelled the May 7, 2024, regular meeting of the Board of
Supervisors.

Duggan moved; Gardner seconded

Vote: 5 Yes, 0 No

M24-058

C. Out-of-State Travel Authorization for 2024 National Associ ation of
Counties' (NACo) Annual Conference

Departments: Board of Supervisors

Out-of-state travel request for Supervisors Duggan, Kreitz, and Peters to attend

Note:
These draft meeting minutes have not yet been appro  ved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors


https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17515&MeetingID=970
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17557&MeetingID=970
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17558&MeetingID=970
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17558&MeetingID=970

DRAFT MEETING MINUTES
April 2, 2024
Page 3 of 10

the 2024 National Association of Counties (NACo) Annual Conference
Hillsborough County, Florida and for Supervisor Peters to attend NACo
meetings regarding Payment In Lieu of Taxes (PILT) Washington DC,
September 9-12, 2024.

Action: Approved out-of-state travel for Supervisors Duggan, Kreitz, and
Peters to attend the 2024 NACo Annual Conference in Hillsborough County,
Florida from July 12-15, 2024, and approved out-of-state travel for Supervisor
Peters to attend NACo PILT meetings in Washington DC, September 9-12,
2024.

Duggan moved; Gardner seconded

Vote: 5 Yes, 0 No

M24-059

D. Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with Eastern Sier  ra Unified School
District for School Based Dental Services

Departments: Health and Human Services (HHS)

The Health and Human Services, Public Health Division, wishes to collaborate
with Eastern Sierra Unified School District for the provision of school based
dental services for the students of the District. The purpose of this partnership
is to provide screenings and services at the school, identify oral health needs of
children, link children to a source of care, and establish a dental home.

Action: Approved and authorized Chair to sign contract with Eastern Sierra
Unified School District for the provision of school-based dental services for the
students of the District for the period March 1, 2024 - June 30, 2027.

Duggan moved; Gardner seconded

Vote: 5 Yes, 0 No

M24-060

6. CORRESPONDENCE RECEIVED

Direction may be given to staff regarding, and/or the Board may discuss, any
item of correspondence listed on the agenda.

A. Mono County Letters of Support for the  Bridgeport USFS Housing Water
Connection

Mono County letters of support for the Bridgeport USFS Housing Water
Connection executed by Board Chair Peters and sent to Congressman Kiley,
Senator Butler, and Senator Padilla in accordance with the Board's adopted
Legislative Platform and Resolution R21-17.

Note:
These draft meeting minutes have not yet been appro  ved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors


https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17572&MeetingID=970
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17572&MeetingID=970
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17606&MeetingID=970
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17606&MeetingID=970

DRAFT MEETING MINUTES
April 2, 2024
Page 4 of 10

7.

REGULAR AGENDA - MORNING

. Review and Declaration of March 5, 2024, Presidential Primary Election

Results
Departments: Elections

(Queenie Barnard, Clerk-Recorder-Registrar) - Presentation of certified election
results.

Action: The Mono County Board of Supervisors approved as correct the
Statement of Votes for the March 5, 2024 Presidential Primary Election and
Declare elected to office the following candidates who received the highest
number of votes in each contest of the Election: Judge of the Superior Court:
Gerald F. Mohun, Jr.; County Supervisor, District 2: Rhonda Duggan; County
Supervisor, District 3: Paul McFarland; County Supervisor, District 4: John
Peters. The Mono County Board of Supervisors shall approve as correct the
Statement of Votes for the March 5, 2024, Presidential Primary Election and
Declare the following results of each measure voted on at the election:
Measure “I” (Mammoth Unified School District Educator Housing and School
Safety and Renovation Measure) received 53.1% number of yes votes rather
than the required 55% and therefore did not pass.

Gardner moved; Salcido seconded

Vote: 5 Yes, 0 No

M24-061

Queenie Barnard, Clerk-Recorder-Registrar:
* Presented item.

. Tribal Land Acknowledgment for Inclusion on Board A gendas

Departments: County Administrative Office

(Sandra Moberly, County Administrative Officer) - The Board provided direction
to staff to work with local tribal members to develop a land acknowledgement
that could be included on Board of Supervisors agendas. Staff has worked with
the local tribes and will present a draft land acknowledgment for consideration
by the Board.

Action: None.

Sandra Moberly, County Administrative Officer:
* Presented item.

. Short -Term Rental Housing Study and Policy Direction

Departments: Community Development

(Wendy Sugimura, Community Development Director and Aaron Washco,
Planning Analyst) - Receive and discuss update regarding public input on

Note:

These draft meeting minutes have not yet been appro  ved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors


https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17556&MeetingID=970
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17556&MeetingID=970
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17548&MeetingID=970
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17575&MeetingID=970

DRAFT MEETING MINUTES
April 2, 2024
Page 5 of 10

short-term rental policy options from Regional Planning Advisory Committee
(RPAC) and Planning Commission meetings and discuss strategies to manage
the expiration of the moratorium on short-term rentals.

Action: None.

Wendy Sugimura, Community Development Director:
*  Presented item.
» Negative consensus discussion: Board agreed to not include the negative consensus
will not be included in policies moving forward.

Break: 10:57 AM
Reconvened: 11:05 AM

Aaron Washco, Planning Analyst:
» Presented the second part of the presentation.

Stacey Simon, County Counsel:
» Clarification on the discussion on the difficult cases verses the vast majority of the
cases do get resolved quickly with compliance by the property owners.

Board Deliberation:

Supervisor Gardner:
* Does not support a cap on STR.
e Supports #2.

Supervisor Duggan:
* Does not support a cap on STR.
e Supports #2.
» Activity permit: does not support.

Supervisor Kreitz:
e Supports #2.

Chair Peters:
* Does not support a cap on STR.
e Supports #2.

Supervisor Salcido:
* Does not support a cap on STR.
e Supports #2.
» Activity permit: does not support.

Moved to Item #8a.

D. Ordinance Amending Section 2.04.030 of the Mono Cou  nty Code - Board
of Supervisors Compensation

Departments: County Administrative Office

(Sandra Moberly, County Administrative Officer) - Proposed ordinance
amending section 2.04.030 of the Mono County Code to set and maintain

Note:
These draft meeting minutes have not yet been appro  ved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors


https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17448&MeetingID=970
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17448&MeetingID=970

DRAFT MEETING MINUTES
April 2, 2024
Page 6 of 10

salaries for members of the Board of Supervisors at 26.5% (for Supervisors)
and 28.5% (for the Chair) of the salaries of State Court Judges.

Action: Introduced, read title, and waived further reading of proposed
ordinance. Directed staff to agendize the ordinance for adoption at the next
regular meeting of the Board.

Kreitz moved; Salcido seconded

Vote: 5 Yes, 0 No

M24-062

Sandra Moberly, County Administrative Officer:
* Introduced item and clarified that the redline versions have been uploaded to the
website and distributed to the Board.

Mary Snyder, Special Projects:
* Presented item.

Stacey Simon, County Counsel:
» Clarification that the Ordinance will go into effect in 60 days of adoption on April 9.

Supervisor Gardner:
e Supports but will be waiving his increased salary.

Janet Dutcher, Finance Director:
* Included the notification from the State Controller’'s Office.

E. Revised Management Salary Matrix, Compensation Poli  cy, and Benefits
Policy

Departments: County Administrative Officer

(Mary Snyder, Special Projects) - Proposed resolutions: (1) Adopting a revised
Policy Regarding Compensation of At-Will and Elected Management-Level
Officers and Employees; (2) Adopting a revised Policy Regarding Benefits of
At-Will Management Level Officers and Employees; and (3) Adopting a Salary
Matrix and Position Allocation Schedule Applicable to At-Will Employees and
Elected Department Heads.

Action: Adopted Resolutions R24-031 1) Adopting a revised Policy Regarding
Compensation of At-Will and Elected Management-Level Officers and
Employees; (2) R24-032, Adopting a revised Policy Regarding Benefits of At-
Will Management Level Officers and Employees; and (3) R24-033; Adopting a
Salary Matrix and Position Allocation Schedule Applicable to At-Will Employees
and Elected Department Heads, as amended.

Duggan moved; Gardner seconded

Vote: 5 Yes, 0 No

R24-031, R24-032, R24-033

Mary Snyder, Special Projects:
* Presented item.

Note:
These draft meeting minutes have not yet been appro  ved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors


https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17533&MeetingID=970
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17533&MeetingID=970

DRAFT MEETING MINUTES
April 2, 2024
Page 7 of 10

 Amendment: Y rated — will need to be modified (2nd resolution) for performance pay
plan

Stacey Simon, County Counsel:
» Clarifies that the motion should include the Y rated amendment if that is the desire of
the individual.

Moved to Board Reports.

8. CLOSED SESSION

Item #8a.
Closed Session: 11:14 AM
Reconvened: 11:37 AM

Moved back to Item #7e.

Closed Session: 12:08 PM
Reconvened: 12:55 PM

No Report out of Closed Session.

Moved to Adjournment.

A. Closed Session - Labor Negotiations

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS. Government Code Section
54957.6. Agency designated representative(s): Sandra Moberly, Mary Booher,
Stacey Simon, Janet Dutcher, and Christine Bouchard. Employee
Organization(s): Mono County Sheriff's Officers Association (aka Deputy
Sheriff's Association), Local 39 - majority representative of Mono County Public
Employees (MCPE) and Deputy Probation Officers Unit (DPOU), Mono County
Paramedic Rescue Association (PARA), Mono County Correctional Deputy
Sheriffs’ Association. Unrepresented employees: All.

B. Closed Session - Exposure to Litigation

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL — ANTICIPATED LITIGATION.
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) of
Government Code section 54956.9. Number of potential cases: one.

C. Closed Session - Anticipated Litig ation

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL — ANTICIPATED LITIGATION.
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) of
Government Code section 54956.9. Number of potential cases: 1. Facts and

Note:
These draft meeting minutes have not yet been appro  ved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors


https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17573&MeetingID=970
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17577&MeetingID=970
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17595&MeetingID=970

DRAFT MEETING MINUTES
April 2, 2024
Page 8 of 10

circumstances: Race Telecommunications' Claim for Refund of unitary tax for
2019-2020 tax year on basis that State law regarding the method of calculating
the tax is unconstitutional. Litigation on this question is pending or threatened
in other jurisdictions.

D. Closed Session - Existing Litigation

Closed Session — Existing Litigation - CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL
— EXISTING LITIGATION. Paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) of Government
Code section 54956.9. Name of case: Mono v. KR Property et al. Mono County
Superior Court Case number: CvV200081

E. Closed Session - Public Employee Evaluation

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION. Government Code
section 54957. Title: County Administrative Officer.

9. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS

Supervisor Duggan :

» 3/20/24 - | attended the Tri-Valley Groundwater Management District Meeting.
Agenized items for discussion were the filling of the board vacancy and applicant
eligibility, along with developing of an operational budget. Future meetings will include
updates from consultants developing a Groundwater model for the area.

»  3/21/24 - | met with Phill Kiddoo of the Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District
to discuss upcoming agenda items and strategies for meeting with LADWP.

» | attended the LVRPAC meeting where Community Development presented the County
STR Study. Thanks to Wendy and Aaron for their time and commitment in presenting
the information to the community.

o 3/22/24 - | participated in the Institute for Local Government quarterly board meeting.
Staff presented favorable results from the recent audit and is exploring federal grants
for increased apprenticeship opportunities.

e 3/26/24 CSA1 Meeting - | participated in the meeting that featured the Public Works
staff meeting with the Advisory Board regarding projects and needs for the county
properties within the district.

o 3/28/24 - | attended the CSAC Wildfire Insurance Review at the Little Hoover
Commission. After more than four hours of testimony and presentations from various
interests, it's clear that there are no quick, easy, or affordable solutions. Members of
the RCRC Insurance ad hoc committee testified about the importance of homeowners
receiving credit for the improvements made to their properties to decrease their
possible liability. The insurance dilemma is not isolated to California, it is a nationwide
problem.

Supervisor Gardner:
* No report.

Supervisor Kreitz:
e March 26th, | attended the Mono County 457 and 401 A webinar.
* Onthis day | also met with Sierra Business Council Director, Steve Frisch, about the
California Jobs First regional project.
* March 27th, | participated in the Eastern Sierra Community Housing board meeting.

Note:
These draft meeting minutes have not yet been appro  ved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors


https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17601&MeetingID=970
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17574&MeetingID=970

DRAFT MEETING MINUTES

April 2, 2024
Page 9 of 10

The Board presented outgoing 20 plus year MLH Board Chair Kirk Stapp with
recognition of appreciation for his years of service. Staff from State Senator Alvarado
Gil was present also presented Kirk with a proclamation of appreciation from the
Senator. The Board appointed me to the Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Ad Hoc
Committee. The Board created the Partnership Discovery in Unincorporated Mono
County Ad Hoc Committee that will be working on affordable housing in the
unincorporated communities in Mono County. At this time Board Member Amanda
Rice, Board President Tom Hodges and | will serve as representatives from the Board.
Community members Jake Suppa, Elin Jung, and Paul McFarland were appointed by
the board to the committee. I've suggested that Mono County’'s Tyrone Grandstrand
also join the committee. The Board adopted a resolution authorizing the application to
the State Housing and Community Development Department’s Portfolio Reinvestment
Program for up to $6M for Valley Apartments in Bishop. We received updates on the
Innsbruck Lodge and Access Apartments developments. The ESCH Board will be
meeting tomorrow with the Mammoth Lakes Town Council during their regular meeting.

Chair Peters:

Attended the Bridgeport 4" of July Donation Dinner, thanked the vendors, and the
community for a successful dinner.

Supervisor Salcido:

March 21, Wildfire Resilience Action Finance Team (WRAFT)

Update on Biomass Project which will be located at Ormat Geothermal Facility.
Explanation of the multiple grants which have been received or applied for, partners
involved, technology to be employed and end products. The circulating MOU, non-cost
sharing, is currently being signed by partners as approved by governing bodies.
Partner updates and legislative actions to support forest resilience were discussed.
March 22 to the present — multiple calls with Steve Frisch, SBC, regarding the
progression of CA Jobs 1st project and the local planning process including the
strategic meeting in Truckee on April 26/27.

ADJOURNED AT 12:52 PM.

ATTEST

JOHN PETERS
CHAIR OF THE BOARD

Note:

These draft meeting minutes have not yet been appro  ved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors



DRAFT MEETING MINUTES
April 2, 2024
Page 10 of 10

DANIELLE PATRICK
SENIOR DEPUTY CLERK OF THE BOARD

Note:
These draft meeting minutes have not yet been appro  ved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors



DRAFT MEETING MINUTES
April 9, 2024
Page 1 of 10

DRAFT MEETING MINUTES
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, COUNTY OF MONO
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

Regular Meetings: First, Second, and Third Tuesday of each month. Location of meeting is
specified below.
Meeting Location: Board Chambers, 2nd Fl., County Courthouse, 278 Main St., Bridgeport, CA

93517
Regular Meeting
April 9, 2024
Backup Recording Zoom
Minute Orders M24-063 — M24-068
Resolutions - R24-034- R24-035
Ordinance ORD24-005 Used

TRIBAL LAND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Chair Peters:

“In respect to the Indigenous People and Tribal Elders, past, and present, the Bridgeport Indian
Colony, Mono Lake Kutzadika Tribe, and Utu Utu Gwaitu Tribe are the indigenous People who live
within this, their ancestral homeland from time immemorial to the present and have been the
caretakers of these lands, waters, and all natural resources for the benefit of the environment and
of all living things. We who live in Mono County offer this land acknowledgment with a spirit of
mutual respect and collaboration”.

9:00 AM Meeting called to order by Chair Peters.

Supervisors Present: Duggan, Gardner, Kreitz, Salcido, and Peters. (All members were
present in-person or participated via teleconference in compliance with rules established
by the Ralph M. Brown Act).

Supervisors Absent: None.
The Mono County Board of Supervisors stream most of their meetings live on the internet

and archives them afterward. To search for a meeting from June 2, 2015, forward, please
go to the following link: http://www.monocounty.ca.gov/meetings

Pledge of Allegiance led by Sergeant Powers.

Note:
These draft meeting minutes have not yet been appro  ved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors


http://www.monocounty.ca.gov/meetings

DRAFT MEETING MINUTES
April 9, 2024
Page 2 of 10

1. OPPORTUNITY FOR THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD

Bartshe Miller :
« Discussion on Mono Lake water levels.
e Submitted a handout for the Board that has been posted to the County meeting
webpage.

2. RECOGNITIONS

A. Proclamation of Appreciation for Doug Power
Departments: Board of Supervisors, Community Development

(Chair Peters) - Proposed proclamation recognizing Doug Power of the
Marine Corps Mountain Warfare Training Center for his many years of service
to the citizens and communities of Mono County.

Action: Adopted proclamation wishing Doug a happy retirement!
Gardner moved; Salcido seconded

Vote: 5 Yes, 0 No

M24-063

Chair Peters:
* Presented item.

B. Proclamation Designating the Month of April 2024 as National County
Government Month

Departments: Clerk of the Board

(Sandra Moberly, County Administrative Officer) - Proclamation Designating
April 2024 as National County Government Month.

Action: Adopted proclamation designating April 2024 as National County
Government Month.

Salcido moved; Gardner seconded

Vote: 5 Yes, O No

M24-064

Chair Peters:
* Presented item.

3. COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER

Christine Bouchard, Assistant C  ounty Administrative Officer :
¢ No report.

Note:
These draft meeting minutes have not yet been appro  ved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors


https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17598&MeetingID=972
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17628&MeetingID=972
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17628&MeetingID=972

DRAFT MEETING MINUTES

April 9, 2024
Page 3 of 10

4.

DEPARTMENT/COMMISSION REPORTS

Kathy Peterson , Health and Human Services:
e Introduced new employees:
1. Danyell Lebrun, HHS Public Health, RN
2. Jordyn Pinochi, Community Health Outreach Specialist

Break: 10:34 AM
Reconvened: 10:40 AM

Moved to Item #7b.

CONSENT AGENDA

(All matters on the consent agenda are to be approved on one motion unless
a board member requests separate action on a specific item.)

Ordinance Amending Chapter 2.04 of the Mono County Code - Board of
Supervisors

Departments: County Administrative Office

Proposed ordinance amending section 2.04.030 of the Mono County Code to
set and maintain salaries for members of the Board of Supervisors at 26.5%
(for Supervisors) and 28.5% (for the Chair) of the salaries of State Court
Judges.

Action: Adopted Ordinance ORD24-005, Amending section 2.04.030 of the
Mono County Code to set salaries for members of the Board of Supervisors
as a percentage of the salaries of State Court Judges.

Fiscal Impact: Approval of the salary adjustment ordinance for the Board will
increase Board compensation from $4,792 to $5,266 per month for regular
Board members (an increase of $474) and from $5,200 to $5,664 per month
(an increase of $464) for the Chair position. The projected annual fiscal
impact for a full fiscal year is estimated to be $31,239. Board salary and
benefit costs will change in future fiscal years as superior court judge salaries
change.

Salcido moved; Kreitz seconded

Vote: 5 Yes, 0 No

ORD24-005

Race Communications Request for Refund of Taxes Pai d

Departments: County Counsel

Race Communications has filed a claim requesting a refund of property taxes
paid for 2019-2020 tax year in the amount of $10,764.22.

Action: Denied claim for refund for the reasons set forth in the staff report.
Salcido moved; Kreitz seconded

Note:

These draft meeting minutes have not yet been appro  ved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors


https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17449&MeetingID=972
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17449&MeetingID=972
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17597&MeetingID=972

DRAFT MEETING MINUTES

April 9, 2024
Page 4 of 10

Vote: 5 Yes, 0 No
M24-065

Claim for Damages - Leonel Acero
Departments: Risk Management

Claim for Damages filed by B and D Law Group on behalf of Leonel Acero,
related to personal injury during a vehicle collision involving a county vehicle.

Action: Denied the claim submitted by B and D Law Group on behalf of
Leonel Acero, direct the Risk Manager, in consultation with County Counsel,
to send the notice to the claimant of the denial.

Salcido moved; Kreitz seconded

Vote: 5 Yes, 0 No

M24-066

Reappointment to First 5 Mono County Childrenand F  amilies
Commission

Departments: First 5 Mono

On behalf of the Mono County Children and Families Commission, |
respectfully request the Board of Supervisors to reappoint Janice Mendez to
the First 5 Mono County Children and Families Commission.

Action: Reappointed Janice Mendez to the Mono County Children and
Families Commission to serve a five-year term expiring March 15th, 2029.
Salcido moved; Kreitz seconded

Vote: 5 Yes, 0 No

M24-067

CORRESPONDENCE RECEIVED

Direction may be given to staff regarding, and/or the Board may discuss, any
item of correspondence listed on the agenda.

Educational Revenue Augmentation Fund  (ERAF) Letter

Letter to Honorable Sharon Quirk-Silva Chair, Assembly Budget
Subcommittee No. 5 regarding the Item 9210: VLF Backfill Request
Appropriation for Insufficient ERAF Amounts in Mono County. The letter was
drafted and sent pursuant to the Board's adopted legislative platform and is
provided here to the full Board in accordance with Resolution R21-17.

Note:

These draft meeting minutes have not yet been appro  ved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors


https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17594&MeetingID=972
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17599&MeetingID=972
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17599&MeetingID=972
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17612&MeetingID=972

DRAFT MEETING MINUTES

April 9, 2024
Page 5 of 10

B.

Homeless Housing, Assistance and Prevention Program Funding
(HHAP) Letter

Letter regarding the Homeless Housing, Assistance and Prevention Program
Funding sent to the Honorable Sharon Quirk-Silva and the Honorable
Stephen Padilla. The letter was sent pursuant to the Board's adopted
legislative Platform and is provided to the Board in accordance with
Resolution R21-17.

Supervisor Kreitz:
* Thanked Tyrone Grandstrand for his work on this letter.

REGULAR AGENDA - MORNING

Main Lodge Update
Departments: Clerk of the Board

(Town of Mammoth Lakes, United States Forest Service, Project Team) - The
Town of Mammoth Lakes (Town) and United States Forest Service (USFS)
are jointly reviewing the Mammoth Main Base Redevelopment Project
(Evolving Main). The project is a comprehensive redevelopment of the
Mammoth Mountain Ski Area (MMSA) Main Lodge area, including
improvements on publicly owned (USFS) land and privately owned land. An
informational handout on the privately owned portion of the proposed project
is attached.

Action: None, informational only.

Kim Cooke, Town of Mammoth Lakes Senior Planner:
* Introduced item and staff.

Jen Murillo, Town of Mammoth Lakes Contract Planner
* Presented item.

Ron Cohen, Mammoth Mountain Ski Area:
« Discussion on the land exchange and the project.

Tom Hodges, Mammoth Mountain Ski Area:
< Discussion on Workforce Housing update.

Supervisor Kreitz:
* Requested an employee survey for employee housing preference to live up at the
mountain.

Moved back to Department Head Report.
County Fees Workshop

Departments: Finance
(Janet Dutcher, Director of Finance) - Review proposed changes to County

Note:

These draft meeting minutes have not yet been appro  ved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors


https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17613&MeetingID=972
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17613&MeetingID=972
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17581&MeetingID=972
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17580&MeetingID=972

DRAFT MEETING MINUTES

April 9, 2024
Page 6 of 10

Fees for Fiscal Year (FY) 2024-25.
Action: None, informational only.

Janet Dutcher, Director of Finance:
¢ Introduced item.

Gerald Frank, Tax Collector:
* Presented item.

Comment Letter on the Proposed Listing of the Great  er Sage Grouse
Under the California Endangered Species Act

Departments: Community Development

(Wendy Sugimura, Community Development Director) - Consider proposed
comment letter to the California Department of Fish and Wildlife on the
proposed listing of the Greater Sage-Grouse under the California Endangered
Species Act.

Action: Modified the letter as desired, authorized the Chair to sign, direct
staff to submit the comment letter by the April 12 deadline, as amended.
Duggan moved; Salcido seconded

Vote: 5 Yes, 0 No

M24-068

Wendy Sugimura, Community Development Director:
e Presented item.
« Requested that the Board include the ability to modify the letter in the motion.

Employment Agreement - Assistant Public Works Director
Departments: Public Works

(Paul Roten, Public Works Director) - Proposed resolution to approve the
Agreement Regarding Terms and Conditions of Employment of Karyn Spears
as Assistant Public Works Director for Mono County, prescribing the
compensation, appointment, and conditions of said employment.

Action: Announced Fiscal Impact. Approved Resolution R24-0034,
Agreement Regarding Terms and Conditions of Employment of Karyn Spears
as Assistant Public Works Director for Mono County, prescribing the
compensation, appointment, and conditions of said employment. Authorize
the Board Chair to execute said contract on behalf of the County.

Fiscal Impact: The estimated cost of this position for the remainder of this
fiscal year is $38,942, of which $30,268 is salary and $8,674 is benefits. The
annual cost will be $184,596, of which $143,478 is salary and $41,118 is
benefits. The fiscal impact of this item is included in the Public Works FY
2023-24 adopted budgets.

Note:

These draft meeting minutes have not yet been appro  ved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors


https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17609&MeetingID=972
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17609&MeetingID=972
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17560&MeetingID=972

DRAFT MEETING MINUTES

April 9, 2024
Page 7 of 10

A.

Salcido moved; Duggan seconded
Vote: 5 Yes, 0 No
R24-034

Paul Roten, Public Works Director:
* Presented item.

Appointment of Christopher L. Beck as County Counse | and Approval of
Terms and Conditions of Employment

Departments: Human Resources

(Christine Bouchard, Assistant County Administrative Officer) - Appointment
of Christopher L. Beck as Mono County Counsel following the planned
retirement of County Counsel Stacey Simon on May 10, 2024, and adoption
of proposed resolution approving an agreement setting forth the terms and
conditions of said employment.

Action: Announce Fiscal Impact. Approve resolution appointing Christopher
L. Beck as the County Counsel for Mono County, effective May 11, 2024, and
approving a contract with Mr. Beck prescribing the terms and conditions of
said employment. Authorize the Board Chair to execute said contract on
behalf of the County.

Fiscal Impact: The estimated cost of this position for the remainder of the
fiscal year is $36,678, of which $27,655 is salary and $9,023 is benefits. The
total cost of salary and benefits for an entire fiscal year is approximately
$267,750, of which $201,885 is salary and $65,865 is benefits. This is
included in the Department’s FY 2023-24 adopted budget.

Kreitz moved; Gardner seconded

Vote: 5 Yes, 0 No

R24-035

Stacey Simon, County Counsel:
* Presented item.

Moved to Board Reports.

CLOSED SESSION

Closed Session: 11:57 AM
Reconvened: 12:25 PM

No Report out of Closed Session.
Moved to Adjournment.

Closed Session - Labor Negotiations
Note:

These draft meeting minutes have not yet been appro  ved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors


https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17596&MeetingID=972
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17596&MeetingID=972
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17600&MeetingID=972

DRAFT MEETING MINUTES

April 9, 2024
Page 8 of 10

These d

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS. Government Code Section
54957.6. Agency designated representative(s): Sandra Moberly, Mary
Booher, Stacey Simon, Janet Dutcher, and Christine Bouchard. Employee
Organization(s): Mono County Sheriff's Officers Association (aka Deputy
Sheriff's Association), Local 39 - majority representative of Mono County
Public Employees (MCPE) and Deputy Probation Officers Unit (DPOU), Mono
County Paramedic Rescue Association (PARA), Mono County Correctional
Deputy Sheriffs’ Association. Unrepresented employees: All.

Closed Session - Exposure to Litigation

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL — ANTICIPATED LITIGATION.
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) of subdivision (d)
of Government Code section 54956.9. Number of potential cases: one.

BOARD MEMBER REPORTS

Supervisor Duggan:

e 4/3/24 - | participated in a special meeting of the RCRC's Environmental Services
Joint Powers Authority Board regarding the implementation of SB54, otherwise
known as the Package Pollution Prevention and Packaging Producer Responsibility
Act. | am working with Public Works and RCRC Legislative Review staff on the
process to request a small county exemption due to the many operational constraints
of the hill.

e 4/7/24 - | attended the Inyo/Mono/Alpine Cattlemen's Association Dinner and
Fundraiser in Bishop along with Supervisor Gardner. The event was well attended
and supported local ranching efforts in the three counties. The organization focuses
on supporting local 4H programs in schools and raising awareness of the role that
responsible grazing plays in wildfire efforts and natural methane control.

e 4/8/24 - | participated in the LTC meeting along with Commission Chair Kreitz that
included a public hearing on Unmet Transit Needs. Included in the discussion was
input from the Social Services Transportation Advisory Council, with questions and
possible solutions to meet their concerns. Many of the Caltrans District 9 staff were in
attendance, including Director Ryan Dermody. He and other staff reported on
projects that affect us here in the Eastern Sierra, in particular the 7 new radar signs
throughout Mono County, the status of many roads and passes they are working on
for opening as soon as this week. Please check the Caltrans website for the current
and accurate status. The Commission requested a report on an upcoming agenda
from Yosemite National Park on their operational plans and HWY 120 road projects.
Note that Mono County residents will still be allowed to pass through on the Tioga
Pass Road without a reservation but should expect traffic delays at peak hours.

Supervisor Gardner:

 OnWednesday, April 3 | attended the monthly meeting of the June lake Citizens
Advisory Council. Topics at that meeting included a presentation from Whitebark
Institute about their ongoing fuels treatment and other projects, and an update from
our County Recreation Coordinator Marcella Rose about various recreation-related
projects.

e On Sunday April 7 | participated with Supervisor Duggan in the annual Cattlemen’s
Dinner in Bishop. This was a good opportunity to talk with several ranchers and
learn more about the role cattle grazing plays in the Eastern Sierra.

Note:
raft meeting minutes have not yet been appro  ved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors


https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17583&MeetingID=972

DRAFT MEETING MINUTES

April 9, 2024
Page 9 of 10

Yesterday | participated in the monthly meeting of the Eastern Sierra Sustainable
Recreation Partnership. Topics at the meeting beyond the updates from each of the
partners, included discussion regarding concerns about the California State Jobs
First Economic Development Program. An important strategic planning workshop for
this program run by the Sierra Business Council will be held April 25 and 26. Eastern
Sierra stakeholders are encouraged to attend this workshop.

Supervisor Kreitz:

Tuesday, April 2, | participated in an Eastern Sierra Continuum of Care HHAP
subcommittee meeting. After that meeting | participated in the California Coalition for
Rural Housing (CCRH) legislative committee meeting.

Wednesday, April 3, | participated in a joint meeting between the Mammoth Lakes
Town Council and the Eastern Sierra Community Housing Board. We received
updates on both Town housing programs and projects and ESCH projects and
programs. The Town is using their PLHA funds to assist households earning up to
120% of the area median income with down payment assistance. The Town is also
working with a developer to build a 4-unit ownership condo project that is scheduled
to be completed this winter. The Town is considering when to place a 2% increase in
their TOT for housing on an upcoming ballot for the public to vote.

Monday, April 8, | participated in the Mono County Local Transportation Commission
meeting. | also participated in the regular Eastern Sierra Continuum of Care board
meeting. Later, | met with Ana Budnyk and Deston Dishion from the City of Bishop. |
attended the Mammoth Lakes Chamber of Commerce Women in Business event at
the Mammoth Hospital housing complex.

Chair Peters:

No report.

Supervisor Salcido:

April 3, Mammoth Lakes Town Council. The first part of the meeting was a joint
meeting between the board of Eastern Sierra Community Housing and the Town
Council. Later in the evening was an appeal of the decision made by the Mammoth
Lakes Planning Commission to approve an 80-foot cell tower to be placed on the
grounds of the Mammoth Lakes Fire District, station 2. After hours of testimony by
opponents and proponents of the projects, the Town Council upheld the decision of
the Planning Commission.

April 8, Behavioral Health Advisory Board. Discussed the results of the CPPP,
community survey, completed recently.

April 8, Eastern Sierra Sustainable Recreation Partnership. Partner updates with an
emphasis on California Jobs First initiative progress and next steps. Sierra Business
Council staff was also on hand to explain the process and outcomes expected.

April 8, attended in Women in Business hosted by the Mammoth Lakes Chamber of
Commerce.

Moved to Closed Session.

ADJOURNED AT 12:26 PM.

ATTEST

JOHN PETERS

Note:

These draft meeting minutes have not yet been appro  ved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors



DRAFT MEETING MINUTES
April 9, 2024
Page 10 of 10

CHAIR OF THE BOARD

DANIELLE PATRICK
SENIOR DEPUTY CLERK OF THE BOARD

Note:
These draft meeting minutes have not yet been appro  ved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors



DRAFT MEETING MINUTES
April 16, 2024
Page 1 of 9

DRAFT MEETING MINUTES
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, COUNTY OF MONO
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

Regular Meetings: First, Second, and Third Tuesday of each month. Location of meeting is
specified below.
Meeting Location: Mono Lake Room, 1st Fl., County Civic Center, 1290 Tavern Rd., Mammoth
Lakes, CA 93546

Regular Meeting

April 16, 2024
Backup Recording Zoom
Minute Orders M24-069 — M24-079
Resolutions - R24-036- R24-038
Ordinance ORD24-005 Used

TRIBAL LAND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

In respect to the Indigenous People and Tribal Elders, past, and present, the Bridgeport Indian
Colony, Mono Lake Kutzadika Tribe, and Utu Utu Gwaitu Tribe are the indigenous People who live
within this, their ancestral homeland from time immemorial to the present and have been the
caretakers of these lands, waters, and all natural resources for the benefit of the environment and
of all living things. We who live in Mono County offer this land acknowledgment with a spirit of
mutual respect and collaboration.

9:03 AM Meeting called to order by Chair Peters.

Pledge of Allegiance led by Supervisor Kreitz.
1. OPPORTUNITY FOR THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD

Andrew Fisher, Trindal Insurance:
« Recognition to Jay Sloane and Stacey Simon.

2. RECOGNITIONS

A. Retirement Recognition of California Highway Patrol Officer Christopher
“Ryan” Dore

Departments: Clerk of the Board, Sponsored by Chair Peters

Note:
These draft meeting minutes have not yet been appro  ved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors


https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17602&MeetingID=974
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17602&MeetingID=974

DRAFT MEETING MINUTES
April 16, 2024
Page 2 of 9

(Lieutenant Mike Ritter, California Highway Patrol) - Proposed proclamation of
the Mono County Board of Supervisors recognizing California Highway Patrol
Officer Christopher "Ryan" Dore on his distinguished 23-year career and
upcoming retirement on May 20, 2024.

Action: Adopted proclamation of the Mono County Board of Supervisors
recognizing California Highway Patrol Officer Christopher "Ryan" Dore on his
distinguished 23-year career and upcoming retirement on May 20, 2024.
Salcido moved; Gardner seconded

Vote: 5 Yes, 0 No

M24-069

Lieutenant Mike Ritter, California Highway Patrol:
e Introduced item.

Chair Peters:
« Read proclamation.

B. Retirement Recognition of Stacey Simon for Her 25 Y  ears of Service with
Mono County

Departments: County Counsel

(Christopher Beck, Assistant County Counsel) - Proposed proclamation of the
Mono County Board of Supervisors recognizing Stacey Simon for her 25 years of
service to Mono County and the County Counsel Department.

Action: Adopted proclamation of the Mono County Board of Supervisors
recognizing Stacey Simon for her 25 years of service to Mono County and the
County Counsel Department.

Duggan moved; Kreitz seconded

Vote: 5 Yes, 0 No

M24-070

Christopher Beck, Assistant County Counsel and Coun ty Counsel staff:
* Presented item.

3. COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER

CAO Report regarding Board Assignments
Receive brief oral report by County Administrative Officer (CAO) regarding work
activities.

4. DEPARTMENT/COMMISSION REPORTS
Receive brief oral report on emerging issues and/or activities.

5. CONSENT AGENDA

Note:
These draft meeting minutes have not yet been appro  ved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors


https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17646&MeetingID=974
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17646&MeetingID=974

DRAFT MEETING MINUTES
April 16, 2024
Page 3 of 9

(All matters on the consent agenda are to be approved on one motion unless a
board member requests separate action on a specific item.)

A. Board Minutes
Departments: Clerk of the Board

Approval of Board minutes from the 2024, March regular meetings.

Action: Approved the Board minutes from the March 5, 2024, regular meeting.
Approved the Board minutes from the March 12, 2024, regular meeting.
Approved the Board minutes from the March 19, 2024, regular meeting.

Kreitz moved; Gardner seconded

Vote: 5 Yes, 0 No

M24-071

B. County Maintained Mileage for Fiscal Year 2024 -25
Departments: Public Works - Road Department

Proposed resolution is for County Maintained Mileage for FY 2024-25.

Action: Approved Resolution R24-036, Specifying additions and/or exclusions
to the maintained mileage within the county road system and establishing
maintained mileage for fiscal year 2024-25.

Kreitz moved; Gardner seconded

Vote: 5 Yes, 0 No

R24-036

C. Grant Funding for County Electric Vehicle (EV) Char  gers
Departments: Public Works

This item is to authorize the Public Works Department to Pursue Grant Funding
for County Electric Vehicle (EV) Chargers to meet the goals of the Capital
Improvement Plan.

Action: Authorized Public Works Director to prepare and submit grant
applications to meet the goals of the Capital Improvement Plan for providing
additional Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure throughout Mono County.
Kreitz moved; Gardner seconded

Vote: 5 Yes, 0 No

M24-072

D. Purchase of New Lube / Service Truck
Departments: Public Works

Note:
These draft meeting minutes have not yet been appro  ved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors


https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17593&MeetingID=974
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17603&MeetingID=974
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17547&MeetingID=974
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17604&MeetingID=974

DRAFT MEETING MINUTES
April 16, 2024
Page 4 of 9

The purchase of this new Lube / Service Truck was authorized under the
previous Minute Order of 23-241 for the amount of $335,000. This item is to
increase that amount to $366,081 to cover all taxes and fees.

Action: Authorized Public Works Director to purchase the 2024 Freightliner 108
SD, as identified in Minute Order 23-241, on behalf of the County in an amount
not to exceed $366,081.

Kreitz moved; Gardner seconded

Vote: 5 Yes, 0 No

M24-073

E. Eastside Lane Rehabilitation Project Phase 2
Departments: Public Works

Authorization to Bid and Award the Eastside Lane Rehabilitation Project Phase
2; Federal Project No. RPL-5947(065)

Action: (1) Approved the attached bid package and authorize the Public Works
Department to advertise the project for bids upon obtaining authorization to
proceed (E-76) from the federal government. (2) Authorized the Public Works
Director to execute the contract contained in the attached bid package with the
lowest responsive and responsible bidder in an amount less than or equal to
available project STIP funds. (3) Authorized the Public Works Director, in
consultation with County Counsel, to administer that contract, including making
minor amendments to said contract from time to time as the Public Works
Director may deem necessary, and issue change orders to the contract in
accordance with Public Contract Code 820142, provided such amendments and
change orders do not substantially alter the scope of work, do not cause
spending on the project to exceed the budgeted authority. (4) Authorized the
Public Works Director to reject all bids if no bid received is within available STIP
funds.

Kreitz moved; Gardner seconded

Vote: 5 Yes, 0 No

M24-074

F. Mono County Right Edgeline Striping Project
Departments: Public Works

Authorization to bid and award the Mono County Right Edgeline Striping Project
and adoption of resolution approving Program Supplement Agreement No.
00000A488 with Caltrans for the provision of state aid for the Mono County
Right Edgeline Striping Project.

Action: (1) Approved the attached bid package and authorized the Public Works
Department to advertise. (2) Authorized the Public Works Director to execute the

Note:
These draft meeting minutes have not yet been appro  ved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors


https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17605&MeetingID=974
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17614&MeetingID=974

DRAFT MEETING MINUTES
April 16, 2024
Page 5 of 9

contract contained in the attached bid package with the lowest responsive and
responsible bidder in an amount less than or equal to available project funds. (3)
Authorized the Public Works Director, in consultation with County Counsel, to
administer that contract, including making minor amendments to said contract
from time to time as the Public Works Director may deem necessary, and issue
change orders to the contract in accordance with Public Contract Code §20142,
provided such amendments and change orders do not substantially alter the
scope of work, and do not cause spending on the project to exceed the
budgeted authority. (4) Adopted Resolution R24-037, “Approving Program
Supplement Agreement No 00000A488 Under Administering Agency — State
Master Agreement No 09-5497S21 for the Mono County Right Edgeline Striping
Project State Project No. HSIPSL 5947(070)".

Kreitz moved; Gardner seconded

Vote: 5 Yes, 0 No

M24-075, R24-037

G. Mono County Systemic Safety Curve Signhage Project
Departments: Public Works

Authorization to Bid and Award the Mono County Systemic Safety Curve
Signage Project; State Project No. HSIPSL-5947(069)

Action: (1) Approved the attached bid package and authorized the Public Works
Department to advertise. (2) Authorized the Public Works Director to execute
the contract contained in the attached bid package with the lowest responsive
and responsible bidder in an amount less than or equal to available project
funds. (3) Authorized the Public Works Director, in consultation with County
Counsel, to administer that contract, including making minor amendments to
said contract from time to time as the Public Works Director may deem
necessary, and issue change orders to the contract in accordance with Public
Contract Code 820142, provided such amendments and change orders do not
substantially alter the scope of work, and do not cause spending on the project
to exceed the budgeted authority.

Kreitz moved; Gardner seconded

Vote: 5 Yes, 0 No

M24-076

H. Fiscal Year 2022 -2027 Mental Health Plan (MHP) Contract Amendment
between Mono County Behavioral Health (MCBH) and th e Department of
Health Care Services (DHCS) for the provision of Me  ntal Health Services

Departments: Behavioral Health

Proposed Amendment to Agreement between Mono County Behavioral Health
(MCBH) and the Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) pertaining to

Note:
These draft meeting minutes have not yet been appro  ved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors


https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17615&MeetingID=974
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17611&MeetingID=974
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17611&MeetingID=974
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17611&MeetingID=974

DRAFT MEETING MINUTES
April 16, 2024
Page 6 of 9

MCBH's provision of mental health services.

Action: (1) Approved and authorized Director of Behavioral Health to sign
contract amendment with the Department of Health Care Services for the
provision of mental health services for the period July 1, 2022, through June 30,
2027, and, (2) Delegated authority to Behavioral Health Director to approve
future minor changes or revisions that do not substantively alter the agreement
and are approved as to form by County Counsel.

Kreitz moved; Gardner seconded

Vote: 5 Yes, 0 No

M24-077

l. Letter to U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service Regarding Proposed Endangered
Species Act Listing of the Bi-State Sage Grouse

Departments: Community Development

Proposed letter to the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service regarding the proposed
listing of the Bi-State Sage Grouse as Threatened under the Endangered
Species Act, affirming the County's commitment to the implementation of the Bi-
State Action Plan.

Action: Approved and authorized the Board Chair to sign.
Kreitz moved; Gardner seconded

Vote: 5 Yes, 0 No

M24-078

J. Processing of Short -Term and Transient Rental Permit Applications After
Moratorium Expiration

Departments: Community Development

Proposed resolution providing direction to staff for processing short-term and
transient rental permits while new regulations are under development. The
resolution providing policy guidance as to interpretation of existing regulation is
not a project under California Environmental Quality Act pursuant to (CEQA)
Guidelines 815378(b)(5) and therefore is not subject to CEQA.

Action: Adopted Resolution R24-038, Providing policy guidance as to
interpretation of existing regulation is not a project under California
Environmental Quality Act pursuant to (CEQA) Guidelines 815378(b)(5) and
therefore is not subject to CEQA.

Kreitz moved; Gardner seconded

Vote: 5 Yes, 0 No

R24-038

Note:
These draft meeting minutes have not yet been appro  ved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors


https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17618&MeetingID=974
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17618&MeetingID=974
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17630&MeetingID=974
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17630&MeetingID=974

DRAFT MEETING MINUTES
April 16, 2024
Page 7 of 9

6. CORRESPONDENCE RECEIVED - NONE

Direction may be given to staff regarding, and/or the Board may discuss, any
item of correspondence listed on the agenda.

7. REGULAR AGENDA - MORNING
A. Board Ad Hoc Committee for Board Chambers Audio/Vis ual Improvements

Departments: Clerk of the Board

(Queenie Barnard, Clerk-Recorder-Registrar) - Establishment of a Board Ad
Hoc Committee to provide direction on audio/visual improvements in the
Bridgeport Board of Supervisors Chambers and Civic Center Mono Lake Room
("Board Chambers Ad Hoc Committee").

Action: Established Board Chambers Ad Hoc Committee and appointed Chair
Peters and Supervisor Salcido of the Board of Supervisors to committee.
Kreitz moved; Gardner seconded

Vote: 5 Yes, 0 No

M24-079

Queenie Barnard, Clerk-Recorder-Registrar:
e Presented item.

Break: 10:03 AM
Reconvened: 10:08 AM

B. 2023 Building Division Report
Departments: Community Development - Building

(Tom Perry, Building Official) - Presentation on Building Division permits and
activities in 2023.

Action: None.

Tom Perry, Building Official:
¢ Presented item.

Moved to Board Reports.

8. CLOSED SESSION

Closed Session: 10:40 AM
Reconvened: 11:07 PM

No Report out of Closed Session.

Moved to Adjournment.

Note:
These draft meeting minutes have not yet been appro  ved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors


https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17569&MeetingID=974
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17619&MeetingID=974

DRAFT MEETING MINUTES
April 16, 2024
Page 8 of 9

A.

Closed Session - Exposure to Litigation

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL — ANTICIPATED LITIGATION.
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) of
Government Code section 54956.9. Number of potential cases: one.

Closed Session - Existing Litigation

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL — EXISTING LITIGATION. Paragraph
(1) of subdivision (d) of Government Code section 54956.9. Name of case:
Southern California Edison Company v. California State Board of Equalization,
et al. Case number: 30-2023-01328239-CU-MC-CXC

Closed Session - Existing Litigation

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION. Subdivision
(a) of Government Code section 54956.9. Name of case: Workers'
Compensation claim of Scott Minder.

Closed Session - Public Employee Evaluation

PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT. Government Code section 54957. Title: County
Counsel.

BOARD MEMBER REPORTS

Supervisor Duggan:

e 4/10/24 - | participated in the NACo Environment, Energy, and Land Use Policy Steering
Committee meeting where the discussion focused on the federal legislation passed
addressing the removal of PFAS chemicals in drinking water. Local water agencies and
counties will have responsibilities for the clean-up and funding for this is still in
discussion.

e 4/11 /24 - | participated in the CSAC Rural Action Caucus call that discussed the
addition of Shasta County as they requested to move from the Suburban Caucus. A
vote on the new districts within the Rural Action Caucus is scheduled at the CSAC
Legislative Conference tomorrow.

Supervisor Gardner:

« Last Wednesday April 10 | participated in a call with Sen. Butler's Washington staff and
others about the possibility of Sen. Butler sponsoring a Senate hill to recognize the
Kutzadika Tribe in the Mono Basin. The staff person agreed to raise this proposal to the
Senator for consideration this year.

e On Thursday the 11th and yesterday | participated with Supervisor Salcido in two
meetings of the Eastern Sierra Transit Authority Board. We reviewed regular operations
and financial reports, and approved a zero emissions plan, plus the service schedule for
the next six months.

* Yesterday | also participated with Supervisor Salcido in the quarterly meeting of the
Yosemite Area Regional Transportation System Board of Directors. We approved the
budget for the next fiscal year, reviewed YARTS media advertising, and agreed to send

Note:

These draft meeting minutes have not yet been appro  ved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors


https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17585&MeetingID=974
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17642&MeetingID=974
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17395&MeetingID=974
https://agenda.mono.ca.gov/AgendaWeb/CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=17648&MeetingID=974

DRAFT MEETING MINUTES
April 16, 2024
Page 9 of 9

an invitation to the City of Fresno to join YARTS as soon as possible.

Supervisor Kreitz:
* No report.

Chair Peters:
« Attended the weekly post office meeting and visited the post office in person.
e 4/11: Attended the CSAC Rural Caucus meeting.
e 4/12: Attended the Public Lands Steering Committee meeting.
Supervisor Salcido:
e 4/11: Attended the ESTA met in Mammoth but did not have a quorum.
e 4/15: Attended the YARTS meeting.

ADJOURNED AT 11:08 AM.

ATTEST

JOHN PETERS
CHAIR OF THE BOARD

DANIELLE PATRICK
SENIOR DEPUTY CLERK OF THE BOARD

Note:
These draft meeting minutes have not yet been appro  ved by the Mono County Board of Supervisors



" i% OFFICE OF THE CLERK
f,*,;,,.i* | OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
&=, Print
MEETING DATE May 21, 2024
Departments: Elections
TIME REQUIRED PERSONS
o . . APPEARING
SUBJECT Consolidation of Elections - Municipal BEFORE THE
BOARD
AGENDA DESCRIPTION:

(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

The Mammoth Lakes Town Council has requested that the General Municipal Election be consolidated with the Statewide
General Election, and that the Mono County Elections Division conduct the election and canvass the returns.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Consider and adopt a Resolution consolidating the General Municipal Election with the Statewide General Election on
November 5, 2024, and directing the Mono County Elections Division to conduct the election and canvass the returns.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Costs associated with adding an extra item(s) to the already scheduled ballot. These costs are not known until after the
election. In accordance with Elections Code Section 10002, the Town of Mammoth Lakes shall reimburse the County for
these additional costs.

CONTACT NAME: Queenie Barnard
PHONE/EMAIL: 7609325534 / gbarnard@mono.ca.gov

SEND COPIES TO:

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
~ YES @ NO

ATTACHMENTS:

Click to download

b StaffReport
[ TOML Resolutions

@ County Resolution

History


javascript:history.go(0);

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=32412&ItemID=17633

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=32411&ItemID=17633

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=32413&ItemID=17633

Time Who Approval
5/16/2024 9:12 AM County Counsel Yes

5/16/2024 11:53 AM Finance Yes

5/16/2024 12:02 PM County Administrative Office Yes



CLERK — RECORDER - REGISTRAR
CLERK OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
COUNTY OF MONO

P.O. BOX 237, BRIDGEPORT, CALIFORNIA 93517 « (76E82-5530
ClerkRecorder@mono.ca.gov_¢ Elections@mono.cag®OS@mono.ca.gov

May 21, 2024

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Supervisors
From: Queenie Barnard, Clerk-Recorder-Registrar
Re: Consolidation of Elections - Municipal

Discussion:

At the April 3, 2024 meeting of the Town Council of the Town of Mammoth Lakes, Resolution No. 24-13 was
adopted calling for and giving notice of a General Municipal Election to be held on November 5, 2024, for the
election of Municipal Officers.

At the same meeting, Resolution No. 24-14 was adopted requesting that the Mono County Board of Supervisors
consent and agree to consolidate the General Municipal Election with the Statewide General Election to be held
on the same date.

As part of these resolutions, the Town Council of the Town of Mammoth Lakes is requesting that the Mono
County Elections Division be responsible for the conduct of the consolidated election.

Please contact me if you have any questions. Thank you.

Aol

Queenie Barnard
Clerk-Recorder-Registrar
760-932-5534
gbarnard@mono.ca.gov

Attachments:
1. Town Council of the Town of Mammoth Lakes Resolutions
2. Mono County Draft Resolution for Consolidation


mailto:ClerkRecorder@mono.ca.gov
mailto:Elections@mono.ca.gov
mailto:BOS@mono.ca.gov
mailto:qbarnard@mono.ca.gov

RESOLUTION NO. 24-13

RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL
OF THE TOWN OF MAMMOTH LAKES, STATE OF CALIFORNIA,
CALLING AND GIVING NOTICE OF THE HOLDING OF A GENERAL MUNICIPAL
ELECTION ON TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 5, 2024 FOR THE ELECTION OF
CERTAIN OFFICERS AS REQUIRED BY THE PROVISIONS OF THE LAWS OF
THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA RELATING TO GENERAL LAW CITIES

WHEREAS, under the provisions of the laws relating to general law cities in
the State of California a General Municipal Election shall be held on November
5, 2024 for the election of Municipal Officers.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF MAMMOTH
LAKES, CALIFORNIA, DOES RESOLVE, DECLARE, DETERMINE, AND ORDER
AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. That pursuant to the requirements of the laws of the State of
California relating to General Law Cities, there is called and ordered to be held
in the Town of Mammoth Lakes, California, on Tuesday, November 5, 2024 a
General Municipal Election for the purpose of electing two Members of the
Town Council for the full term of four years.

SECTION 2. That the ballots to be used at the election shall be in form and
content as required by law.

SECTION 3. That the Town Clerk is authorized, instructed, and directed to
coordinate with the County of Mono Registrar-Recorder/County Clerk to
procure and furnish any and all official ballots, notices, printed matter, and all
supplies, equipment, and paraphernalia that may be necessary in order to
properly and lawfully conduct the election.

SECTION 4. That the polls shall be open at seven o’clock a.m. of the day of
the election and shall remain open continuously from that time until eight

o’clock p.m. of the same day when the polls shall be closed, pursuant to



Resolution No. 24-13
Page 2

Elections Code 10242 except as provided in Section 14212 of the Elections
Code of the State of California.

SECTION 5. That in all particulars not recited in this resolution, the election
shall be held and conducted as provided by law for holding municipal elections.

SECTION 6. That notice of the time and place of holding the election is given
and the Town Clerk is authorized, instructed, and directed to give further or
additional notice of the election, in time, form, and manner as required by law.

SECTION 7. That in the event of a tie vote (if any two or more persons receive
an equal and the highest number of votes for an office) as certified by the Mono
County Registrar-Recorder/County Clerk, the Town Council, in accordance
with Election Code Section 15651(a), shall set a date and time and place and
summon the candidates who have received the tie votes to appear and will
determine the tie by lot or, in accordance with Election Code Section 15651(b),
shall conduct a special runoff election to resolve the tie vote and such special
runoff election is to be held on a Tuesday not less than 40 days nor more than
125 days after the administrative or judicial certification of the election which
resulted in a tie vote.

SECTION 8. That the Town Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption of
this resolution and enter it into the book of original resolutions.

SECTION 9. The Town Council authorizes the Town Clerk to administer said
election and all reasonable and actual election expenses shall be paid by the

Town upon presentation of a properly submitted bill.



Resolution No. 24-13
Page 3

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 3rd day of April, 2024.

BILL SAUSER, Mayor
ATTEST:

JAMIE GRAY, Town cgrk




STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
COUNTY OF MONO ) SS.
TOWN OF MAMMOTH LAKES)

[, JAMIE GRAY, Town Clerk of the Town of Mammoth Lakes, DO HEREBY
CERTIFY under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of Resolution
No. 24-13 adopted by the Town Council of the Town of Mammoth Lakes, California, at a

meeting thereof held on the 3 day of April 2024, by the following vote:

AYES: Councilmembers Rea, Rice, Wentworth, Mayor Pro Tem Bubser, and
Mayor Sauser

NOES: None
ABSENT: None
ABSTAIN: None

DISQUALIFICATION: None

%\/\AM ﬁ;a ATV,
JAMIE GRAY, Town Clery




RESOLUTION NO. 24-14

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL
OF THE TOWN OF MAMMOTH LAKES, STATE OF CALIFORNIA,
REQUESTING THAT THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF
MONO CONSOLIDATE A GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION TO BE HELD ON
NOVEMBER 5, 2024, WITH THE STATEWIDE GENERAL ELECTION TO BE
HELD ON THE DATE PURSUANT TO
SECTION 10403 OF THE ELECTIONS CODE

WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Mammoth Lakes called a
General Municipal Election to be held on November 5, 2024 for the purpose of
the election of two Members of the Town Council; and

WHEREAS, it is desirable that the General Municipal Election be
consolidated with the Statewide General Election to be held on the same date
and that within the Town the precincts, polling places, and election officers of
the two elections be the same, and that the County Election Department of the
County of Mono canvass the returns of the General Municipal Election and
that the election be held in all respects as if there were only one election.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF MAMMOTH
LAKES, CALIFORNIA, DOES RESOLVE, DECLARE, DETERMINE, AND ORDER
AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. That pursuant to the requirements of Section 10403 of the
Elections Code, the Board of Supervisors of the County of Mono is hereby
requested to consent and agree to the consolidation of a General Municipal
Election with the Statewide General Election on Tuesday, November 5, 2024,

for the purpose of the election of two Members of the Town Council.



Resolution No. 24-14
Page 2

SECTION 2. That the County Election Department is authorized to canvass
the returns of the General Municipal Election. The election shall be held in all
respects as if there were only one election, and only one form of ballot shall be
used. The election will be held and conducted in accordance with the
provisions of law regulating the statewide election.

SECTION 3. That the Board of Supervisors is requested to issue instructions
to the County Election Department to take any and all steps necessary for the
holding of the consolidated election.

SECTION 4. That the Town of Mammoth Lakes recognizes additional costs
will be incurred by the County by reason of this consolidation and agrees to
reimburse the County for any costs.

SECTION 5. That the Town Clerk is hereby directed to file a certified copy of
this resolution with the Board of Supervisors and the County Election
Department of the County of Mono.

SECTION 6. That the Town Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption

of this resolution and enter it into the book of original resolutions.

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 374 day of April, 2024.

\

M—:
BILL SAUSER, Mayor

ATTEST:

JAN@E GRAY, Town (jlerk




STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
COUNTY OF MONO ) SS.
TOWN OF MAMMOTH LAKES)

I, JAMIE GRAY, Town Clerk of the Town of Mammoth Lakes, DO HEREBY

CERTIFY under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of Resolution
No. 24-14 adopted by the Town Council of the Town of Mammoth Lakes, California, at a

meeting thereof held on the 3" day of April 2024, by the following vote:

AYES: Councilmembers Rea, Rice, Wentworth, Mayor Pro Tem Bubser, and
Mayor Sauser

NOES: None

ABSENT: None

ABSTAIN: None

DISQUALIFICATION: None

oI N

JAMIE GRAY, Town Clerk




© 00 N oo 0o b~ w N Bk

W W oW NN RN NRNDNDNDNDRNNRNDNRNER B P B R R B p R
N P O © ® N o 008 W N FPBP O © 0 N o 0 M W N B O

R24-

A RESOLUTION OF THE MONO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
CONSOLIDATING THE GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION CALLED BY THE
TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF MAMMOTH LAKESWITH
THE NOVEMBER 5, 2024, STATEWIDE GENERAL ELECTION

WHEREAS, at the April 3, 2024 meeting of the Town Council of the Town of
Mammoth Lakes, Resolution No. 24-13 was adopted calling for and giving notice of a General
Municipal Election to be held on November 5, 2024, for the election of Municipal Officers; and

WHEREAS, at the April 3, 2024 meeting of the Town Council of the Town of
Mammoth Lakes, Resolution No. 24-14 was adopted requesting that the Mono County Board of
Supervisors consent and agree to consolidate the General Municipal Election with the Statewide
Genera Election to be held on the same date; and

WHEREAS, it is desirable that the Genera Municipa Election be consolidated with the
Statewide General Election to be held on the same date, and that within the Town, the precincts,
polling places and election officers of the two elections be the same, and that the Mono County
Elections Division canvass the returns of the General Municipal Election, and that the election be
held in al respects asif there were only one election; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisorsis requested to consent and agree to the
consolidation of the General Municipal Election with the Statewide General Election, and issue
instructions to the Mono County Elections Division to take any and al steps necessary for the
holding of the consolidated election;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mono County Board of Supervisors
asfollows:

SECTION 1: Pursuant to 810400, et seq., of the California Elections Code, the Mono
County Board of Supervisors consents and agrees to the consolidation of the General Municipal
Election called within the Town of Mammoth Lakes on November 5, 2024, with the Statewide
Genera Election to be held on Tuesday, November 5, 2024, for the purpose of the election of
two members of the Town Council for the Town of Mammoth Lakes

SECTION 2: The Mono County Elections Division isinstructed to take any and all steps
necessary for the holding of the consolidated election. The election shall be held in all respects as
if there were only one election. Only one form of ballot shall be used and shall be in form and
content as required by law.




© 00 N oo 0o b~ w N Bk

W W oW NN RN NRNDNDNDNDRNNRNDNRNER B P B R R B p R
N P O © ® N o 008 W N FPBP O © 0 N o 0 M W N B O

SECTION 3: The Mono County Elections Division is authorized to canvass the returns

of the General Election.

SECTION 4: Pursuant to California Elections Code 810002, the Town of Mammoth
Lakes shall reimburse the County in full for the services performed upon presentation of abill to

the Town.

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 21st day of May, 2024, by the following

vote, to wit:

AYES.
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

ATTEST:

Clerk of the Board

John Peters, Chair
Mono County Board of Supervisors

APPROVED ASTO FORM:

County Counsel




*X" & OFFICE OF THE CLERK
£.% | OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

e
REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST

=L Print

MEETING DATE May 21, 2024
Departments: Clerk of the Assessment Appeals Board

TIME REQUIRED PERSONS
. APPEARING
SUBJECT Appointment to the Mono County
Assessment Appeals Board BEFORE THE
BOARD
AGENDA DESCRIPTION:

(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

Appointment of one regular member to the Mono County Assessment Appeals Board (AAB).

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Appoint Jarrett Patrick as a regular member of the Mono County Assessment Appeals Board, for a term which ends
September 1, 2024.

FISCAL IMPACT:

No impact beyond previously budget expenses for Board member stipends.

CONTACT NAME: Danielle Patrick
PHONE/EMAIL: 7609325535 / despinosa@mono.ca.gov

SEND COPIES TO:

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
~ YES @ NO

ATTACHMENTS:

Click to download

O Staff Report

O Attachment 1 - Candidate Application
O Attachment2-RTC 1624

O Attachment 3 - Current AAB Roster

History

Time Who Approval
5/16/2024 9:07 AM County Counsel Yes


javascript:history.go(0);

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=32615&ItemID=17627

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=32630&ItemID=17627

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=32616&ItemID=17627

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=32631&ItemID=17627

5/16/2024 11:52 AM
5/16/2024 12:06 PM

Finance

County Administrative Office

Yes

Yes



CLERK — RECORDER - REGISTRAR
CLERK OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
COUNTY OF MONO

P.O. BOX 237, BRIDGEPORT, CALIFORNIA 93517 « (76E82-5530
ClerkRecorder@mono.ca.gov_¢ Elections@mono.cag®OS@mono.ca.gov

May 21, 2024

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Supervisors
From: Queenie Barnard, Clerk-Recorder-Registrar
Re: Appointment to the Mono County Assessment Appeals Board

Discussion:

The Mono County Assessment Appeals Board (AAB) is a quasi-judicial body consisting of impartial persons, who
hear evidence from both parties before deciding upon the value of the property in question. The intent is to
provide Taxpayers with a venue independent of the Assessor’s Office to have their Assessment reviewed.

The AAB consists of three regular members and two alternate members. Generally, members serve a term of
three (3) years; however, members appointed to vacancies will serve out the remainder of the vacant terms and
may be reappointed.

Mono County currently has two (2) vacancies on the AAB — one for a regular member and one for an alternate
member. The regular member seat has been vacant since February 2022 and is currently being filled by an
alternate member. Recruiting a qualified person to fill this position has proven challenging. In addition to
understanding California’s system of property taxation, AAB members are expected to understand the County’s
real estate markets and general appraisal principles and approaches to value. There are typically 8-10 meetings
per year.

The County recently received one application from Jarrett Patrick, and the AAB met on March 27, 2024 to review
the submitted application and approved the recommendation to the Mono County Board of Supervisors to appoint
Jarrett Patrick as a regular member of the Assessment Appeals Board, for a term which ends September 1, 2024.
The candidate met the requirements of Revenue and Taxation Code section 1624 for appointment to a local
assessment appeals board.

Please contact me if you have any questions. Thank you.

Bl

Queenie Barnard
Clerk-Recorder-Registrar
760-932-5534
gbarnard@mono.ca.gov

Attachments:

1. Candidate Application

2. Cal. Rev. and Tax Code 81624 — Eligibility for nomination for membership on an assessment appeals board
3. Current AAB Roster


mailto:ClerkRecorder@mono.ca.gov
mailto:Elections@mono.ca.gov
mailto:BOS@mono.ca.gov
mailto:qbarnard@mono.ca.gov

MONO COUNTY
APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT
TO BOARDS/COMMISSIONS/COMMITTEES

DATE

3 e i

POSITION APPLIED FOR

nono Ca»m%/ A ssessma i ﬁﬂm’«ﬁs

ADDRESS
/tiu‘i(i i/—’l— 7 ol &)

PHONE

BUSINESS
ADDRESS

PHONE

OCCUPATION )QQJ E cpod }45 (/ I;{)’ﬂefj md,,r.
How did you learn of the opening? Vt)‘% Q"!Q.

Please state briefly any expenence of which you feel will be helpful when you

serve in this appointm : <%Wﬂ/?"— Réfkp Estnde_
Lte~se OSQC)‘j SRy RO (Yeerss
read o< dertl. -é\bpaﬁuzﬂ Q{_ J

Other information may be submitted by resume if desired.

Summary of background and skills: M#A—é»f(ée_(
worked _As o Leall Esdnt. Wam.@

ﬂmc@r o b & Lju“’ IA c;o/zzj/Q

Page 1 of 2



Professional experience: 20 l—j!@gﬁ‘ -‘@é Cofnte WJ
Ly pesrence, 20 #0 |

1 @S N \QY(J
N\-HNW '-/-° ' L S
ooty éiﬁi‘ gi.ﬂ% ;9; f’m’s g@f@ﬂyj'@ﬁ’
S00 “p 4 O S |

Education:,GTC,@!/Calﬂ' S7n78 Un'vess: 7Y _
Baclelor ot Actks " Busiacs Prodm, ~ strtr oy

Professional and/or community organizations: 1?’ ZS'\ et Mmart e 7
Fnstitvde - PnZ, 0@ “H Ye7a2$3
exp 5 // 9/ e

7
Personal interests and hobbies: aﬁé’e/@ e M wv@w&:ﬂ@\ ¥

s, /npe ShRg

Have you ever been convicted of a felony, which would disqualify you from
appointment? |If you are appointed and cannot be bonded as required, your
appointment will be revoked.

If you desire a personal interview or wish to address the Board, you may contact
the Board of Supervisor's Office directly at (760) 932-5530.

Please return application to: Clerk of the Board
County of Mono
P.O.Box 715
Bridgeport, CA 93517

j 2//3/&“1

dture Y Date /

Page 2 of 2



Jarrett Patrick, PMP

jarrett.patrick@gmail.com

[HIGHLIGHTS OF QUALIFICATIONS|

A seasoned SDLC Consultant and Business Intelligence Project Manager with over twenty
(20) years of accounting, service management, contract billing, sales order entry and purchasing,
manufacturing, and inventory information systems experience. Twenty (20) years of experience
in large and small implementations dealing with JD Edwards Enterprise One applications.
Combines technical knowledge with business process improvement to successfully develop and
integrate technologies to support broad-ranging operations and organizational needs using
software development life cycle.

Core competencies include:

* Project Management = Process Efficiency Improvement
= Software Development Life Cycle = Team Leadership
= Business Intelligence Design = Technical

Documentation « JDE

8.11,8.12, XE, 8.0,9.0,9.1,9.2
* Systems Functionality & Implementation = HPALM, Hyperion, Cognos, BI
Publisher, Cube,

Scanman
|EDUCATION & TRAININGI

Project Management Professional, PMI Certified
Georgia State University - Bachelor of Business Administration

Professional Affiliations:
Project Management Institute — Active Member

(October 2021 - Present)
Cardinal Glass: JD Edwards Business Analyst / Special Projects Manager

= Accounts Payable Voucher Automation Project Manager - deploying Scanman Integration tool
to streamline efficiencies in voucher process to 43 Plants

* Implementation of Automatic Cash Receipts solution in conjunction with Wells Fargo

* JD Edwards first level Financial, Distribution and Laserfiche Support

* Financial Purge project of historical data

* 1099 Year End Support

* Tools Upgrade 9.2.5.4

* Project Manager for EDI 820 for Payables and 823 for Lockbox

(December 2018 — October 2021)
Pharmavite, LLC: Manager, Enterprise Solution Delivery

* Ensuring that the plan put together by the business areas and data migration stream leads, in
conjunction with the systems integrator, is sound, complete, and feasible to deliver
* Ensuring that the connected project work plans, schedules, resource plans and status reports



are prepared, executed, and monitored appropriately by all the solution team members

« On-going tracking and maintenance of plan progress in coordination with the System Integrator

= Supporting the Project Director in ensuring the project plan execution and milestones
achievement, coordinating the Stream leads and the cross functional activities

« Where applicable, facilitating the resolution of solution design and integration issues

* Working actively with project stream leads to resolve issues causing delays in task completion

« Highlighting and working to resolve critical path issues that impact the achievement of key
milestones

+ Synchronizing the plan with changes and other updates from the System Integrator

« Working actively with the service and operations team to ensure mutual interdependencies are
fulfilled and ensure the preparedness for the cutover to production.

« Key Initiatives include JDE Code Current and Retrofiting Project, AP Automation, and
functional configuration of Mobile Purchase Order Approvals.
(May 2006 — December 2018)

Senior Project Manager and Functional Consultant Heights ERP, Inc.

Primarily focuses on JD Edward functional and technical software development lifecycle aspects
including Job Coast, Eervice Management, Contraot Billing, Proourement, Finanoc, Sales Order
Entry, Bl Publisher, EDI interfacing and report writing.

SDLC Implementations in various releases including World and Enterprise One XE to 9.2.

Clients Include:

(4/2018 -~ December 2018)
Cupertino Electric: Job Cost Implementation Lead

» 9.2 Upgrade Implementation Lead which coordinates user test cases, create training materials,
best practice solutioning, cost code/cost type setup. Implementation of Contract Billing, Service
Management, Job Cost and Project Management moduies. Configured JDE and trained user
community to track the service history of all products sold or serviced, manage service
agreements and warranties, manage work done in the field and track parts and labor used,
manage service parts inventory, and automatically send renewal notices for expiring warranty
contracts

(11/2017 - 3/2018)
Dollar Shave Club: JDE Project Manager

Prooure to Pay Automation Managed functional and technical resources for automated routing
of documentation and approvals from requisition entry to vendor payments. Conducted risk
analysis, lead project sponsorship meetings, managed milestones and budgets for project
duration.

(6/2017 - 10/2017)
Martin Brower: Finance and Distribution Consultant JDE 9.2

Finance modules specific to General Ledger, Accounts Payable, Accounts Receivable. Set up,

tested, and trained Finance Department on EDI 810, 850 transaction set, configuring AAls, auto
cash, and automatic bank reconciliations. Worked with developers on Bl Publisher forms,
Procurement and Sales Order — Purchase and Sales Order Management, Distribution AAls,

vendor order templates, and Purchase Order Approval routings, Work Order routings. Created

functional specifications to Interface PO’s and SO'’s to Armada interface for EDI processing.
Developed pricing interface from POS system to Sale Order system.

(1/2016 - 6/2017)
PAR Pharmaceuticals: Manufacturing Trainer JDE 9.2 Upgrade

Manufacturing modules specific to EDI, Product Data Management, Product Costing, Bilis of
Material, CAM, SFC, Work Order Management, MRP & MPS, Business Intelligence Reporting
Procurement — Purchase Order Management, Sub-Contractor Management, Requisition Self
Service, Supplier Self Service & Vendor Performance Procure to Pay — Vouchering, DMAALI,
Integrity Reports, Vendor Master.

Created Training Materials utilizing UPK

(8/2015 - 1/4/2016)



Williams Furnace: 9.0 Advanced Pricing Consultant responsible for reengineering client Pricing
structure for the Sales Order Module. Created Customer, Item, and Order Groups based on
Best Practice preference hierarchy. Set up rebates and advanced payment terms with
corresponding adjustment schedules. Created training materials via UPK. Trained Customer
Service to enter Sales orders. Trained Controller on how to manage and maintain pricing on-
going. SDLC management for technical development

(3/2015 - 8/2015)

BCBG Maxazria: 9.1 Finance and Distribution Lead Consultant responsible for leading technical
team implementing baseline ESU, Reconfigured Purchase Order Approval Routings and
Accounts Payable (P2P), CAM, EDI, Advanced Pricing, Sales Order Entry, Accounts
Receivables (OTC), Implemented and trained staff on Autornatic Bank Reconciliations, Managed
user security, Project Lead on paying employee expenses from ADP. Introduced and trained user
community on Best Practice JDE Solutions. SDLC management for technical development of Bi
reporting tools

(8//2014 - 3/2015)

Materia Inc: 9.1 Finance Lead Consultant responsible for project requirements gathering,
configuration, testing, and training. Modules include GL, AP, AR, Fixed Assets, CAM, Job Cost,
Expense Management, EDI, and Multi-Currency. Led Best Practice Process Re-engineering
Project for Procure-to-Pay cycle

(7/2013 - 7/2014)

CR Bard: 9.1 Finance and Distribution Lead Consultant implementing GL, AP, Advanced Pricing,
AR, Job Cost, Fixed Assets, CAM, Contract Billing and Purchasing. Gathering requirements,
configuration, UPK scripting, HPQC testing, project creation, security definition.

(1/2013 - 7/2013)

K2M Complex_Spine Innovations: UPK Project Manager/JDE Edwards 9.0 developer and
Finance, Fixed Assets, CAM, Job Cost, Contract Billing, Service Management, Sales Order
Entry and Advanced Pricing Consuitant. Implemented Advance Pricing structures for rebates,
commissions, and sales discounts for Customer Service. Implemented Cycle Count and Back
Order process for manufacturing.

(8/2012 — 12/2013)

Teck Cominco: Remote UPK JDE Edwards XE to 9.1 developer focusing on Finance, Fixed
Assets, Manufacturing, Job Cost, Service Contract Billing, Inventory, Purchasing, Sales Order
Processing, Case Management and Human Resources. Processes include gathering
requirements and working with end users to ensure training material is accurate and complete

(5/2012 - 8/2012)
UGL Unlimited. Implemented JD Edwards 9.1 Employee Self Service portal as well as provided
financial support for North American, South American, and Australian operations. Configuration
activities included setting up ESS for time entry for 1600 employees world worldwide, configuring
Manager Self Service Workflow for the approval of employee time and labor, and working with
CNC for portal set up. Implemented Concur Expense tracking system for salesmen T&E entries.
Implemented Australian and Columbian localization requirements for reporting sales orders, AR
and AP. implemented BAI2 bank file format for automatic bank reconciliation purposes. Also set
up UPK topics for the above activities.

(172012 - 5/2012)
Roussolot (formerly Eastman Kodak) Finance, Fixed Assets, CAM, Mrocursment, Cales Order
Entry, and CRM on Version 9.0 Implementation. Set up and configured Advanced Pricing for item
and basket level orders, promotional pricing and salesmen commissions. Managed 3
Purchasing empioyees to ensure they met project requirements and daily operational
workload.
Client was on SAP and transitioned to JD Edwards as a Global Roll-Out. Maintained and
implemented UPK for the following:

* Process review and design/blueprinting

¢ Applications setup and configuration

¢ Testing

* Training and change management

* Maintenance and support

(8/2011 - 4/2012)



American & Efird, Inc. Inventory, Procurement and Finance implementation Lead on version
9.0 full life cycle implementation. Focusing on US and Canadian GAAP requirements for
accounting and finance. Key modules included Inventory, General Ledger, Fixed Assets and
Purchasing. Managed and directed the 8 Finance staff members to make certain project
requiromonts were complete.

(7/2010 - 3/2011)
Interface Flor Project Manager responsible for upgrading U.S. and Canadian divisions to JDE

version 9.0 from 8.11. Project Team consisted of 20 members in various locations.

Target upgrade was for 8 months, yet the successful upgrade went live in 6 months.
Functional teams included PDM, CRM, Sales Order Entry, Finance, and Procurement. Worked to
establish corporate business processes and controls. Implemented an efficient change control
process, Project team consisted of 10 employees.

Additionally, served as Finance and CRM Lead for AP, AR, Fixed Assets and G/ global rollout.
Implemented multi-currency processes and setup for Canada and Mexico.

Also implemented Oracle CRM on Demand Mobile Sales Assistant to North American sales
reps. \

(7/2009 = 7/2010)

Royal Caribbean Cruise Lines Finance Implementation Lead on version 8.12 upgrade.
Managed 3 finance consultants focusing on US and Canadian GAAP requirements for

accounting and finance, including AR, AP,) GL including multi-currency and localization for

Spain, Canada, and Brazil), Fixed Assets, Expense Management and localization. Managed

and configured 8.12 focusing on Best Practice requirements for the transportation industry.
Finance team consisted of 16 employees.

(4/2009 — 7/2009)

Stoneridge, Inc. Project Manager on fixed assets implementation responsible for configuring
JDEdwards 8.12 to properly setup, depreciate, dispose, and report fixed asset transactions
integrated with the purchasing module. Managed team consisting of 3 employees.

Company designs and manufacturers highly engineered electrical and electronic components,
modules and systems principally for the automotive industry.

(7/2008 — 4/2009)

Lochinvar_Corporation Served as the Project Manager in order to prevent scope creep,
maintain project budget, manage and utilize accounting resources, provide status updates to
senior management, and manage project timeframes. Project team consisted of 6 omployoos.

Trained Finance staff on effective and efficient use of JDEdwards XE enterprise system. Areas
included General Ledger, Accounts Receivable, Accounts Payable, Sales Order Entry, Advanced
Pricing and Subcontract Purchasing. Implemented fixed assets module for the organization.
Served as the Project Manager in order to prevent scope creep, maintain project budget,
manage and utilize accounting resources, provide status updates to senior management, and
manage project timeframes. Project team consisted of 6 employees.



{ ‘

\ e ——
mrec c 2
AW STATE OF CALIFORNIA

LEGI
[

AUTHENTICATED

ELECTRONIC LEGAL MATERIAL

State of California
REVENUE AND TAXATION CODE

Section 1624

1624. (a) A person is not eligible for nomination for membership on an assessment
appeals board unless he or she meets one of the following criteria:

(1) Has a minimum of five years professional experience in this state as a certified
public accountant or public accountant, a licensed real estate broker, an attorney, a
property appraiser accredited by a nationally recognized professional organization,
or a property appraiser certified by the Office of Real Estate Appraisers, or a property
appraiser certified by the State Board of Equalization.

(2) Is aperson who the nominating member of the board of supervisors has reason
to believe is possessed of competent knowledge of property appraisal and taxation.

(b) Documentation of qualifying experience of appeals board members shall be
filed with the clerk of the board.

(c) This section shall apply only to an assessment appeals board in a county with
a population of less than 200,000.

(d) County population estimates conducted by the Department of Finance pursuant
to Section 13073.5 of the Government Code shall be used in determining the population
of a county for purposes of this section.

(Amended by Stats. 2004, Ch. 407, Sec. 2. Effective January 1, 2005.)



ASSESSMENT APPEALS BOARD, MONO COUNTY

Ordinance 84-519
Three Year Terms

DATE OF TERM
NAME ADDRESS APPOINTMENT EXPIRES

Vacant - - 9/1/2024
P. O. Box 3337

Richard W. Liebersbach | Mammoth Lakes, CA 93546

(Regular Member) Office (760) 934-4558 9/01/2005 9/3/2026
liebersbach@mammothlaw.com
P. O. Box 2618

Pau' Oster Mammoth Lakes, CA 93546

(Chain Office: (760) 934-3026 11/06/2015 9/1/2024
pauloster@earthlink.net
P.O. Box 743

Jeff Mills Bridgeport, CA 93517

(Alternate Member) Office: (760) 932-5573 10/04/2016 9/1/2024
jimills@mono.ca.gov

Vacant ] ; 9/3/2026

(Alternate Member)

County Staff

Emily Fox
Deputy Mono County Counsel
County Counsel for Assessor

Office: (760) 924-1712
efox@mono.ca.gov

Jeff Hughes
Deputy Mono County Counsel
County Counsel for Board

Office: (760) 924-1707
jhughes@mono.ca.gov

Queenie Barnard
Clerk-Recorder-Registrar
Clerk of the Assessment Appeals Board

Office: (760) 932-5534
gbarnard@mono.ca.gov

Updated 05/15/2024



mailto:liebersbach@mammothlaw.com
mailto:pauloster@earthlink.net
mailto:jlmills@mono.ca.gov
mailto:efox@mono.ca.gov
mailto:jhughes@mono.ca.gov
mailto:qbarnard@mono.ca.gov

" i% OFFICE OF THE CLERK
ir,;,'.ﬂ* | OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
&=, Print
MEETING DATE May 21, 2024
Departments: Health and Human Services
TIME REQUIRED PERSONS
APPEARING
SUBJECT 2021-2026 System Improvement Plan BEFORE THE

for Mono County's Health Human
Services Social Services Employment BOARD
and Eligibility Division, CalWORKs

program

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:

(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

Pursuant to SB 89, Mono County Department of Health and Human Services, Social Services Employment and Eligibility
Division has established a continuous quality improvement and review process for its CalWORKs program, in alignment with
CalWORKs Outcomes and Accountability Review. The Department seeks approval of its 2021 - 2026 System Improvement
Plan.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Approve the Eligibility Division’s 2021 2026 System Improvement Plan, and authorize the Chair to sign on behalf of the
Board of Supervisors.

FISCAL IMPACT:

None.

CONTACT NAME: Francie Avitia
PHONE/EMAIL: 760-924-1789 / favitia@mono.ca.gov

SEND COPIES TO:

Francie Avitia, Michelle Raust

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
¥ YES ™ NO

ATTACHMENTS:

Click to download

[ StaffReport
O 2021-2026 System Improvement Plan. CalWORKSs. Mono County



javascript:history.go(0);

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=32546&ItemID=17703

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=32538&ItemID=17703

History

Time

5/13/2024 10:37 AM
5/16/2024 1:32 PM
5/16/2024 2:17 PM

Who
County Counsel

Finance

County Administrative Office

Approval
Yes

Yes

Yes



Health and Human Services Department

Public Health Division, PO Box 3329, Mammoth Lak€#, 93546 | PO Box 476, Bridgeport, CA 93517
Social Services Division, PO Box 2969, Mammoth LlakeA 93546

MEMO
TO: Mono County Board of Supervisors
FROM: Francie Avitia, Eligibility Manager, Health and Ham Services, Social Services

Division

SUBJECT: Approve Mono County Department of Health and HurSarvices, Social Services
Employment and Eligibility Division’s 2021 2026 Sgm Improvement Plan

DATE: May 21, 2024

BACKGROUND

Mono County Department of Health and Human SeryiSegial Services Employment and Eligibility
Division has established a continuous quality improent and review process for its CalWORKs
program, in alignment with CalWORKs Outcomes anddmtability Review (Cal-OAR).

The purpose of Cal-OAR is to establish a localadhitven program management system that facilitates
continuous quality improvement of county CalWORKsegrams by collecting and analyzing outcomes
data and reviewing internal practices. Cal-OAR &signed to promote critical reflection of the
CalWORKs program to better engage CalWORKSs custerserthat they are more likely to follow-
through and gain benefit from the program.

One element of this process is the requirement toanties develop a plan for improving their
CalWORKSs program by selecting a set of measurefofarsed improvement and developing strategies
to improve performance on the chosen measures. Nanmty recently completed the first two phases
of this process, first conducting a county selfeasment of local program operations and systemic
factors and, secondly, hosting a peer county teveprocesses and policies.

Finally, the team developed a five-year SIP. Thgedlve is to improve client engagement by
improving internal systems such as: Increased ftcleentation attendance rates, and increased
timeliness rates for the on-line CalWORKSs appraisal (OCAT). Strategies include increasing equity



awareness, staff training, establishing incentifeescustomers, creating a CalWORKs handbook, and
developing a written workflow process.

Mono County’s Cal-SIP has been reviewed and apprbyehe California Department of Social
Services’ Family Engagement and Empowerment Dimigiending final approval from Mono County’s
Board of Supervisors. Once approved by the Boafupkervisors, the Cal-SIP will become the guiding
document for ongoing CalWORKSs improvement procefsethe 2021-2026 timeframe.




CalWORKs County S ystem
Improvement Plan (Cal-SIP) Report

County: Mono

Contents
EXECULIVE SUMMIGIY ....ttiiiiie ettt e e eee ettt e e e e e s e bbb ettt e e e e e o aa bttt e e ea e e aa s e nbbbeeeeaeesaabnbbeeeaaeeesanbnnneeaans 2
T oo [N Tel 1 o] o TP PP PP P PPRPPP 4
Section 1: Measures for Improvement and Strate€giesS  ...oceuiiiiiiii i 6
Part 1: Measure and GOal NAITALIVE .......cccccies wveriiiiiieree e nnne e 6
Part 2: GOal-1eVEl DESCIIPLIONS .. .civiiiiiicciiis ceiriiieir e e e e et e e e e s e s r e e e e e s s s s e e eeeeessananrreneeeeeeannnnnes 7
SECHON 2: PEEI REVIEW ......iiiiiiii it iiiies ceetet sttt ettt se e et e s n et e s e e e e e nn e e nne e e nnreennne e 15
Section 3: Target MEASUIE SUMIMAIY .....uuiiiiiiiiis rrrereeeeesissuteeeeesesssastnterreeeeassastrsrereeeessaasssesseeeeeesannnes 16



Executive Summary

1. Please summarize the performance measures select ed for improvement.

MCDSS has selected the Orientation Attendance Rate and the OCAT/Appraisal
Completion Timeliness Rate performance measures for improvement.

We are committed to improve the timeliness of our initial engagement with clients
including orientation attendance and OCAT/Appraisal completion by implementing new
strategies that will help staff engage clients earlier using a client focused practice.

We are also committed to improving equity awareness by exploring methods to identify
potential disparities.

2. Please provide a comprehensive list of improveme  nt strategies identified
within the Cal-SIP.

Goal 1: Increase Orientation Attendance Rate to 10% from 0%. Review using Exemplar
and CalSAWS reports improving by 2.5% every 6 months within 2 years (for a total of a
10% improvement).

Strateqy 1: Develop a written workflow process.

Action Steps:
» Facilitate workgroups with the Cal-OAR team.
* Schedule CaWORKs 2.0 training.

Strategy 2: Implement incentives usage.

Action Steps:
* Integrate incentives into written workflow process.
* Train line staff on the incentive process.

Strategy 3: Develop a process for Welfare to Work worker introduction after CalWORKs
intake-Jumpstart Program

Action Steps:
* Review current intake packet.
* Create WTW welcome packet.
» Develop process for warm handoff from intake CW worker.
» Train staff on the Jumpstart Program.

Strategy 4: Develop a standard orientation.

Action Steps:
e Create video orientation.
e Train staff on the orientation process.



Strategy 5: Increase equity awareness in orientation delivery.

Action Steps:
» Attend CDSS REIB training sessions.
» Schedule meetings with the Department Equity Officer to explore methods to
identify potential disparities.

Goal 2: Increase OCAT/Appraisal Completion Timeliness Rate to 10% from 0%.
Review using Exemplar and CalSAWS reports improving by 2.5% every 6 months within
2 years (for a total of a 10% improvement).

Strategy 1: Implement incentives usage.

Action Steps:
* Integrate incentives in written workflow process.
» Train staff on incentive process.

Strateqgy 2: Offer remote/video options.

Action Steps:
* Hot spot purchases.
* Ensure all WTW staff have camera/zoom capabilities.
» Train staff on remote/video process.
* Submit electronic interview plan to CDSS.

Strateqgy 3: Create and print CalWORKSs handbook.

Action Steps:
» Facilitate workgroups with the Cal-OAR team.
* Obtain samples from other counties.

Strateqgy 4: UC Davis training-WTW client engagement training.

Action Steps:
* Request and schedule training via training coordinator.
» Partner with other counties.

Strateqgy 5: Increase equity awareness in OCAT/Appraisal deliver.
Action Steps:

» Attend CDSS REIB training sessions.
* Schedule meetings with the Department Equity Officer to explore methods to
identify potential disparities.



Introduction

The CalWORKs Outcomes and Accountability Review (Cal-OAR) is a local, data-driven
program management system that facilitates continuous improvement of county
CalWORKs programs by collecting, analyzing, and disseminating outcomes and best
practices. As required by Welfare and Institutions Code (WIC) 11523, Cal-OAR consists
of three core components: performance indicators, a county CalWORKSs self-
assessment (Cal-CSA), and a CalWORKSs system improvement plan (Cal-SIP).

The Cal-OAR continuous quality improvement (Cal-CQI) process (which includes the
Cal-CSA and Cal-SIP) takes place over five-year cycles. The first Cal-OAR cycle
commenced on July 1, 2021, with the implementation of Cal-OAR. The Cal-SIP is the
second component of the Cal-OAR CQI process. The Cal-SIP is based on the
information gathered and reported from the Cal-CSA, wherein each CWD will develop a
plan for improving their CalWORKSs program. The Cal-SIP will select a measure or set of
measures for focused improvements and development to improve the selected
performance measures while pairing each Cal-SIP goal with an equity goal and/ or
strategy.

1. Describe your approach to the Cal-SIP Report.

Mono County Department of Health and Human Services, Social Services Employment
and Eligibility Division, which will be referred to as MCDSS throughout this document,
utilized data and information obtained during the Peer Review process, feedback from
partners and collaborators, and findings from data analysis to draft the CalWORKs
System Improvement Plan (Cal-SIP) report. MCDSS approached the Cal-SIP as an
instrument to assist with the development of SMART goals that will improve the
supports and tools available for MCDSS staff, focusing on improved outcomes in
specific performance measures. The MCDSS Cal-OAR team continued to conduct bi-
weekly workgroups to develop goals, strategies, and action steps to achieve our goals
of improving our Orientation Attendance Rate and OCAT/Appraisal Completion
Timeliness Rate in addition to Increasing Equity Awareness. MCDSS engaged with
partners and collaborators intermittently to review goals, strategies, and action steps
and obtain feedback and recommendations. MCDSS also maintained regular
communication with our peer partner, Modoc County, to consult with them on our ideas
and obtain feedback. The following tools were used in our approach to the Cal-SIP
Report: prioritization chart, SMART goals, and root cause analysis.

2. Briefly describe past and current system improve ment efforts.

MCDSS has attempted different department structure approaches to efficiently utilize
staffing and resources and to enable specialized services and program supports. As the
structure has changed, the department has engaged in cross-training efforts and
identification of gaps in program procedures and processes. Most recently, the
department implemented the use of Integrated Case Workers who specialize in

4



eligibility and employment programs. As the department transitioned from the use of
specialized Employment Services Workers to Integrated Case Workers, much of the
employment services program knowledge was lost through attrition. The department
has been making efforts to bridge the program knowledge gap through training efforts
and case management meetings. The implementation of the Cal-OAR project is
MCDSS'’s first dedicated Continuous Quality Improvement (CQI) effort.

3. Briefly describe the success or failure of those efforts at improving service
delivery or programmatic outcomes.

Efforts to bridge the program knowledge gap through training and case management
meetings proved to increase staff understanding of program goals and services. Despite
these efforts, MCDSS did not see much improvement in service delivery or program
outcomes. Feedback from our partners and collaborators indicated that our staff needed
written, standardized processes and procedures. Other indications were for additional
training, standardized Welfare to Work Orientation, and a Participant Workbook.

4. An overview of the CWD’s organizational visiona  nd mission (optional).

The Mono County Health and Human Services Department (MCHHS) includes an
Administration Division, Fiscal Division, Public Health Department and Social Services
Department. The Administration Division includes the Director, Analysts, Emergency
Preparedness and Sheltering, and Equity Officer. The Social Services Department
(MCDSS) includes the Child Welfare, Adult Services, and Employment and Eligibility
Divisions. The mission of the Department of Social Services is to help our community be
safe, supported, and self-sufficient.



Section 1: Measures for Improvement and Strategies

Part 1: Measure and Goal Narrative

1. Describe the reason for selecting the measure or programmatic grouping of
measures.

MCDSS selected the Orientation Attendance Rate and OCAT/Appraisal Completion
Timeliness Rate because our data analysis showed improvements needed in these
areas. Our analysis of performance measures and feedback from partners and
collaborators determined the need to revamp program training, standardized guidance,
and additional resources. Working toward program improvements by enhancing skillsets
and developing improved tools and resources will provide a good base for future
program improvements in other performance areas.

2. Do partners and collaborators agree thisis a me  asure or programmatic
grouping of measures that should be focused on at t his time?

MCDSS partners and collaborators agree that these program measures should be our
focus at this time. The consensus is focusing on these program measures will provide a
solid foundation for improvements on our targeted areas and future program
improvements.

3. Describe any anticipated interactions with other measures.

Focus on our targeted areas of improvement will likely lead to improved outcomes in
ongoing engagement performance measures (e.g., Engagement Rate, Sanction Rate,
and Sanction Resolution Rate). We anticipate improved program guidance, training, and
resources will result in an overall program improvements in continuity of services and
better utilization of program benefits.

4. Describe how the CWD will track performance meas  ure improvement.

MCDSS will track performance measure improvement using Exemplar Reports and
CalSAWS Reports. The employment services team will meet regularly to discuss
progress and identify needs. The employment services team will also attend training,
and develop resources and processes outlined in our goals and strategies.



Part 2. Goal-level Descriptions

Goal 1: Increase Orientation Attendance Rate to 10% from 0%. Review using Exemplar
and CalSAWS reports improving by 2.5% every 6 months within 2 years (for a total of a
10.0% improvement).

Strategy 1: Develop a written workflow process.
Strategy 2: Implement incentives usage.

Strategy 3: Develop a process for Welfare to Work worker introduction after CalWORKSs
intake-Jumpstart Program.

Strategy 4: Develop a standard orientation.
Strategy 5: Increase equity awareness in Orientation delivery.

1. Explain the reasoning or methodology which was u sed to determine this goal.

MCDSS chose to focus on increasing the Orientation Attendance Rate based on review
and analysis of Phase 1 Performance Measures and utilization of the Continuous
Quality Improvement (CQI) tools from the Cal-SIP toolkit provided by CDSS.

During our Cal-OAR team workgroups, our partners and collaborators determined that
focus on the Orientation Attendance Rate was most important. They agreed that the
success of program participants depends on strong introduction, orientation, and
support during initial engagement. The Root Cause Analysis tool was used to determine
reasons for our low Orientation Attendance Rate. Once the team narrowed down the
reasons, they were prioritized using the Prioritization Chart. During the workgroup, the
team determined that clients were not engaged in Welfare to Work services due to
inconsistencies in contact with their case workers and information provided to clients
about the requirements and benefits of the program.

MCDSS chose to focus on Increasing Equity Awareness in Orientation delivery based
on review and analysis of Phase 1 Performance Measures and utilization of the
Continuous Quality Improvement (CQI) tools from the Cal-SIP toolkit provided by CDSS.

During our Cal-OAR team workgroups, our partners and collaborators determined that
due to the lack of data for our small county, specific disparities could not be identified. In
order to address potential unknown disparities, MCDSS is focusing on equity
awareness with the intent of being able to identify areas of focus in the future.

2. What led the CWD to these improvement strategies  ?

Specific priorities identified during workgroups included the lack of written procedures,
lack of standardized orientation process, and a need to incentivize attendance.
Additionally, our peer partners suggested the implementation of a Jumpstart Program.
They shared their experience and success of the Jumpstart Program in their county and
shared resources and materials with the MCDSS team.



Mono County and MCDSS are dedicated to increasing equity awareness, identifying,
and addressing disparities in our communities. The Cal-OAR team discussed ways the
agency could increase equity awareness and identify disparities specific to CalWORKs
and Welfare to Work programs. We prioritized action steps using the Prioritization Chart.
During the workgroup, the team agreed to focus on attending CDSS REIB training
sessions and to work closely with the Mono County Chief Equity Officer to explore ways
to identify disparities in our communities.

3. Discuss any research or literature that supports the strategies chosen. Cite
reference(s), if applicable.

Hahn, Heather, et al. “TANF Work Requirements and State Strategies to Fulfill Them.”
https://www.acf.hhs.gov/opre/report/tanf-work-requirements-and-state-strategies-fulfill-
them, 2012, www.acf.hhs.gov/sites/default/files/documents/opre/work requirements 0.pdf.

Describes the effectiveness of incentive usage and the importance of structured
orientation. MCDSS found this resource helpful in determining whether to include
incentive usage as a strategy to increase our Orientation Attendance Rate. We also
utilized the resource in our discussions about the improvements that were needed to
our current orientation process. We decided to focus on adding incentive usage and to
develop action steps focused on building a structured, standardized orientation process.

Derr, M., Brown, E. (2015). Serving Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF)
Recipients in a Post-Recession Environment. OPRE Report #2015-06. Washington, DC:
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for Children and
Families, Office of Planning, Research and Evaluation.

Explains the consequences of delays in initial engagement, the importance of continued
assessment of services delivery, and the effectiveness of incentive usage. MCDSS used
the findings in this report as we were exploring ways to improve the timeliness of initial
engagement. We decided to make one of our strategies to build a Jumpstart program to
our process to minimize the delay in initial engagement.

Vu, Catherine M., et al. “Strategies for Engaging Adults in Welfare-to-Work Activities.”
Families in Society, vol. 90, no. 4, Oct. 2009, pp. 359-66. https://doi.org/10.1606/1044-
3894.3929.

Describes effective strategies for engagement focusing on agency centered and client
centered approaches. MCDSS utilized this resource in our discussions regarding our
initial engagement with clients and focusing on building rapport with our clients and
having clients participate in case planning processes.

California Department of Social Services. “Report Regarding CalWORKs Modernization
and the Racial Equity and Implicit Bias Statewide Initiative.” CDSS REIB Initiative, 2022,
www.cdss.ca.gov/Portals/9/REIB/Report-CalWORKs-Modernization-REIB-Statewide-
Initiative.pdf.

Discusses the history of racism in program policy, improving client experience, and
training needs for the administration of the CalWORKSs and Welfare to Work Programs.


http://www.acf.hhs.gov/sites/default/files/documents/opre/work_requirements_0.pdf
https://doi.org/10.1606/1044-3894.3929
https://doi.org/10.1606/1044-3894.3929
http://www.cdss.ca.gov/Portals/9/REIB/Report-CalWORKs-Modernization-REIB-Statewide-Initiative.pdf
http://www.cdss.ca.gov/Portals/9/REIB/Report-CalWORKs-Modernization-REIB-Statewide-Initiative.pdf

MCDSS utilized this document to review the focus of the statewide REIB initiative and to
gain a better understanding so we could explore opportunities for improvement.

4. Describe the roles of each partner and collabora  tor in implementing the
selected strategies.

MCDSS benefited from the information and resource sharing of our peer review partner.
The materials and best practices they shared will be instrumental in the implementation
of our Jumpstart Program. MCDSS also consulted with partners and collaborators in our
department, including our staff and management as well as other partners and
collaborators. Our Cal-OAR team was able to obtain additional suggestions, feedback,
as well as other suggested tools and strategies from other county partners, UC Dauvis,
and other county departments. Our team is developing a standardized orientation,
written procedures, and incentive policies with the assistance of tools from our partners
and collaborators including sample workflow processes, orientation videos, workbooks,
and other resources. Primary MCDSS partners and collaborators in implementing
increasing equity awareness are the Mono County Chief Equity Officer and the CDSS
REIB Initiative. We plan to schedule meetings to consult with the Chief Equity Officer to
obtain feedback, suggestions, and strategies for identifying potential disparities. As the
Cal-OAR team gains a better understanding of potential disparities in Mono County
communities, the team will seek additional partners and collaborators that can assist
with strategies to improve program outcomes.

5. Identify any staff education and training needs, and include any technical
assistance needed to implement strategy and achieve goal.

Staff training will be a crucial part of our strategies to achieve our goal. As the
department develops written processes for workflow, incentives, Jumpstart, and
orientation, staff will be trained on the new processes and any policy changes that
occur. MCDSS recognizes that part of program improvement is to ensure staff are
adequately equipped with the training, resources, and tools to do the job well and make
measurable improvements.

Education is the primary strategy for achieving our strategy of Increasing Equity
Awareness. MCDSS will utilize training opportunities already being scheduled through
CDSS REIB initiative. We will also seek recommendations from the Chief Equity Officer
of Mono County.

6. Describe how the CWD plans to mitigate and/or ad  dress both known internal
and external barriers to achieve this goal.

Our primary internal barrier to achieving our goal of increasing the Orientation
Attendance Rate is dedicated staffing to the Cal-OAR effort. We have solid strategies
written into our plan, however implementing each of the strategies will be challenging
and take additional time since we do not have staff solely assigned to working on those
efforts. Our Cal-OAR lead is a Staff Services Analyst who, in addition to the Cal-OAR
project, is assigned to CalSAWS projects, CWDA projects, Foster Care Eligibility,
Ongoing and Induction Training Efforts, Welfare Fraud Coordinator, and Hearings

9



Officer. Our lead is also one of our Shelter Coordinators for Disaster Response and our
Disaster CalFresh Coordinator. We are addressing these known barriers by prioritizing
Cal-OAR efforts when possible and scheduling regular check-in meetings to ensure
progress.

External barriers that impact our ability to achieve our equity awareness strategy are
transportation limitations in our spread- out rural communities and lack of childcare
options. We are mitigating these external barriers by providing services at our
community centers or during home visits as well as offering remote and virtual options.

Our primary internal barrier to achieving our goal of Increasing Equity Awareness is high
workload demands and limited staff time. We have solid strategies written in our plan,
however scheduling the equity awareness training for our staff while allowing for time to
meet the demands of their workload will be challenging. We will mitigate these barriers
by strategizing protected time for employees and coaching days to assist with the
workload demands.

External barriers that impact our ability to achieve our strategy are the lack of data that
can help MCDSS identify potential disparities in our communities. As part of our
education strategies, we will be exploring ways to identify and collect data that can be
analyzed to determine disparities in our communities.

7. Describe how your facility will continuously eva luate each action step taken to
see if improvement is being achieved. (e.g., track ing tools, meetings, monitoring,
etc) Include who will be responsible for follow up and compliance.

MCDSS will review progress on each action step at check-in meetings with the Cal-
OAR team to monitor and evaluate whether improvements are being achieved. The Cal-
OAR team includes the Staff Services Analyst, Program Manager, Supervisor, and three
Integrated Case Workers. During these meetings we will evaluate the use of new tools
and resources and what impact they have on meeting our Orientation Attendance Rate.
MCDSS will make adjustments and changes as necessary to improve as we learn from
the results of our action steps.

10



Goal 2: Increase OCAT/Appraisal Completion Timeliness Rate to 10% from 0%. Review
using Exemplar and CalSAWS reports improving by 2.5% every 6 months within 2 years
(for a total of a 10% improvement).

Strategy 1 : Implement incentives usage.

Strategy 2 : Offer remote/video options.

Strategy 3 : Create and print CalWORKs handbook.

Strategy 4 : UC Dauvis training-WTW client engagement training.
Strategy 5: Increase equity awareness in OCAT/Appraisal delivery.

1. Explain the reasoning or methodology which was u sed to determine this goal.

MCDSS chose to focus on increasing the OCAT/Appraisal Timeliness Rate based on
review and analysis of Phase 1 Performance Measures and utilization of the Continuous
Quality Improvement (CQI) tools from the Cal-SIP toolkit provided by CDSS.

During our Cal-OAR team workgroups, our partners and collaborators determined that
focus on the OCAT/Appraisal Timeliness Rate was of high importance. They agreed that
the success of program participants depends on the opportunity of participants to build
rapport with their case worker and complete an in-depth appraisal to help establish
strengths-based client plans and increase awareness of barriers for which the county
can provide support. The Root Cause Analysis tool was used to determine reasons for
our low OCAT/Appraisal Timeliness Rate. Once the team narrowed down the reasons,
they were prioritized using the Prioritization Chart. During the workgroup, the team
determined that clients were not attending OCAT/Appraisal for similar reasons clients
were not attending orientations such as inconsistencies in contact with their case
workers and information provided to clients about the requirements and benefits of the
program. In addition, clients encountered transportation barriers when appointments
were scheduled at county offices.

MCDSS chose to focus on the strategy of Increasing Equity Awareness in
OCAT/Appraisal delivery based on review and analysis of Phase 1 Performance
Measures and utilization of the Continuous Quality Improvement (CQI) tools from the
Cal-SIP toolkit provided by CDSS.

During our Cal-OAR team workgroups, our partners and collaborators determined that
due to the lack of data for our small county, specific disparities could not be identified. In
order to address potential unknown disparities, MCDSS is focusing on equity
awareness with the intent of being able to identify areas of focus in the future.

2. What led the CWD to these improvement strategies  ?

Specific priorities identified during workgroups included the utilization of incentives,
Remote/Video Appointment Options, Standardized CalWORKs Handbook for clients,
and additional staff training. Additionally, our Integrated Case Workers suggested the

11



use of a workbook that could accompany the CalWORKs Handbook referencing
examples they had obtained from other county partners.

Mono County and MCDSS are dedicated to increasing equity awareness, identifying,
and addressing disparities in our communities. The Cal-OAR team discussed ways the
agency could increase equity awareness and identify disparities specific to CalWORKs
and Welfare to Work programs. We prioritized action steps using the Prioritization Chart.
During the workgroup, the team agreed to focus on attending CDSS REIB training
sessions and to work closely with the Mono County Chief Equity Officer to explore ways
to identify disparities in our communities.

3. Discuss any research or literature that supports the strategies chosen. Cite
reference(s), if applicable.

Hahn, Heather, et al. “TANF Work Requirements and State Strategies to Fulfill Them.”
https://www.acf.hhs.gov/opre/report/tanf-work-requirements-and-state-strategies-fulfill-
them, 2012, www.acf.hhs.gov/sites/default/files/documents/opre/work requirements _0.pdf.

Describes the effectiveness of incentive usage and the importance of structured
orientation. MCDSS found this resource helpful in determining whether to include
incentive usage as a strategy to increase our OCAT/Appraisal Completion Timeliness
Rate. We also utilized the resource in our discussions about the improvements that
were needed to our current workflow process. We decided to focus on adding incentive
usage and to develop action steps focused on building a standard CalWORKs
Handbook.

Derr, M., Brown, E. (2015). Serving Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF)
Recipients in a Post-Recession Environment. OPRE Report #2015-06. Washington, DC:
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for Children and
Families, Office of Planning, Research and Evaluation.

Explains the consequences of delays in initial engagement, the importance of continued
assessment of services delivery, and the effectiveness of incentive usage. MCDSS used
the findings in this report as we were exploring ways to improve the timeliness of initial
engagement. We decided to make one of our strategies to build a Jumpstart program to
our process to minimize the delay in initial engagement including the OCAT/Appraisal
process.

Vu, Catherine M., et al. “Strategies for Engaging Adults in Welfare-to-Work Activities.”
Families in Society, vol. 90, no. 4, Oct. 2009, pp. 359-66. https://doi.org/10.1606/1044-
3894.3929.

Describes effective strategies for engagement focusing on agency centered and client
centered approaches. Describes effective strategies for engagement focusing on
agency centered and client centered approaches. MCDSS utilized this resource in our
discussions regarding our initial engagement with clients and focusing on building
rapport with our clients and having clients participate in case planning processes.

12


http://www.acf.hhs.gov/sites/default/files/documents/opre/work_requirements_0.pdf
https://doi.org/10.1606/1044-3894.3929
https://doi.org/10.1606/1044-3894.3929

California Department of Social Services. “Report Regarding CalWORKs Modernization
and the Racial Equity and Implicit Bias Statewide Initiative.” CDSS REIB Initiative, 2022,
www.cdss.ca.gov/Portals/9/REIB/Report-CalWORKs-Modernization-REIB-Statewide-

Initiative.pdf.

Discusses the history of racism in program policy, improving client experience, and
training needs for the administration of the CalWORKSs and Welfare to Work Programs.
MCDSS utilized this document to review the focus of the statewide REIB initiative and to
gain a better understanding so we could explore opportunities for improvement.

4. Describe the roles of each partner and collabora  tor in implementing the
selected strategies.

MCDSS benefited from the information and resource sharing of our peer review partner.
The materials and best practices they shared will be instrumental in the implementation
of our Jumpstart Program. MCDSS also consulted with partners and collaborators in our
department, including our staff and management as well as other partners and
collaborators. Our Cal-OAR team was able to obtain additional suggestions, feedback,
as well as other suggested tools and strategies from other county partners, UC Davis,
and other county departments. Our team is developing a standardized orientation,
written procedures, and incentive policies with the assistance of tools from our partners
and collaborators including sample workflow processes, orientation videos, workbooks,
and other resources.

Primary MCDSS partners and collaborators in implementing the equity awareness
strategies are the Mono County Chief Equity Officer and the CDSS REIB Initiative. We
plan to schedule meetings to consult with the Chief Equity Officer to obtain feedback,
suggestions, and strategies for identifying potential disparities. As the Cal-OAR teams
gains a better understanding of potential disparities in Mono County communities, the
team will seek additional partners and collaborators that can assist with strategies to
improve program outcomes.

5. ldentify any staff education and training needs, and include any technical
assistance needed to implement strategy and achieve goal.

Staff training will be a crucial part of our strategies to achieve our goal. As the
department develops written processes for incentives and remote/video appointments,
and develops a CalWORKSs Workbook, staff will be trained on the new processes and
any policy changes that occur. MCDSS recognizes that part of program improvement is
to ensure staff are adequately equipped with the training, resources, and tools to do the
job well and make measurable improvements.

Education is the primary strategy for achieving our strategy of Increasing Equity
Awareness. MCDSS will utilize training opportunities already being scheduled through
CDSS REIB initiative. We will also seek recommendations from the Chief Equity Officer
of Mono County.

13


http://www.cdss.ca.gov/Portals/9/REIB/Report-CalWORKs-Modernization-REIB-Statewide-Initiative.pdf
http://www.cdss.ca.gov/Portals/9/REIB/Report-CalWORKs-Modernization-REIB-Statewide-Initiative.pdf

6. Describe how the CWD plans to mitigate and/or ad  dress both known internal
and external barriers to achieve this goal.

Our primary internal barrier to achieving our goal of increasing the OCAT/Appraisal
Timeliness Rate is dedicated staffing to the Cal-OAR effort. We have solid strategies
written into our plan, however implementing each of the strategies will be challenging
and take additional time since we do not have staff solely assigned to working on those
efforts. Our Cal-OAR lead is a Staff Services Analyst who, in addition to the Cal-OAR
project, is assigned to CalSAWS projects, CWDA projects, Foster Care Eligibility,
Ongoing and Induction Training Efforts, Welfare Fraud Coordinator, and Hearings
Officer. Our lead is also one of our Shelter Coordinators for Disaster Response and our
Disaster CalFresh Coordinator. We are addressing these known barriers by prioritizing
Cal-OAR efforts when possible and scheduling regular check-in meetings to ensure
progress.

External barriers that impact our ability to achieve our equity awareness strategy are
transportation limitations in our spread- out rural communities and lack of childcare
options. We are mitigating these external barriers by providing services at our
community centers or during home visits as well as offering remote and virtual options.

Our primary internal barrier to achieving our strategy of Increasing Equity Awareness is
high workload demands and limited staff time. We have solid strategies written in our
plan, however scheduling the equity awareness training for our staff while allowing for
time to meet the demands of their workload will be challenging. We will mitigate these
barriers by strategizing protected time for employees and coaching days to assist with
the workload demands.

External barriers that impact our ability to achieve our strategy are the lack of data that
can help MCDSS identify potential disparities in our communities. As part of our
education strategies, we will be exploring ways to identify and collect data that can be
analyzed to determine disparities in our communities.

7. Describe how your facility will continuously eva luate each action step taken to
see if improvement is being achieved. (e.g., track ing tools, meetings, monitoring,
etc) Include who will be responsible for follow up and compliance.

MCDSS will review progress on each action step at check-in meetings with the Cal-
OAR team to monitor and evaluate whether improvements are being achieved. The Cal-
OAR team includes the Staff Services Analyst, Program Manager, Supervisor, and three
Integrated Case Workers. During these meetings we will evaluate the use of new tools
and resources and what impact they have on meeting our OCAT/Appraisal Timeliness
Rate. MCDSS will make adjustments and changes as necessary to improve as we learn
from the results of our action steps.

14



Section 2: Peer Review

Peer county/ counties selected for collaboration an d consultation:
Modoc

1. Discuss how the Peer Review process impact Cal-S  IP development.

MCDSS found the Peer Review process very helpful in the development of the Cal-SIP.
We were able to present our challenges and ideas for goals and improvement
strategies. Modoc County shared their strengths in our targeted areas of improvement
and suggested additional strategies. MCDSS chose to implement the strategy of adding
a Jumpstart Program to our operations, as suggested by Modoc County. Additionally,
Modoc County shared copies of their Jumpstart Packet with MCDSS to assist with the
development of the program. MCDSS anticipates that the new Jumpstart Program will
improve our Orientation Attendance Rate and OCAT/Appraisal Completion Timeliness
Rate.

2. Discuss steps taken to conduct peer review.

After the submission of our Cal-CSA, MCDSS contacted our peer, Modoc County, to
schedule two peer review dates, where we could act as the

host and peer. We chose Modoc County as our peer based on similar county size, rural
demographic, and because they were also part of cohort four. MCDSS presented an
overview of our county demographics, caseload size, and our performance measures.
After providing an overview of our county, we presented our targeted areas of
improvement, goals, and strategies. Modoc County shared their best practices and
strengths.

3. Briefly summarize observations and action items from Peer Review process.

MCDSS peer partners provided feedback and suggestions for our targeted areas of
improvement. Our peer partner demonstrated strengths and positive outcomes for our
targeted areas of Orientation Attendance Rate and OCAT/Appraisal Completion
Timeliness Rate. One suggestion that MCDSS chose to implement is the Jumpstart
Program that Modoc County utilizes to increase initial engagement. During the peer
review, our peer partner met with MCDSS line staff for an information sharing session.
MCDSS line staff found the session very beneficial and took notes on suggested
practices that were transferable. They shared best practices that could be implemented
at MCDSS. Modoc County shared copies of materials and exchanged their contact
information with the Mono County team so they could maintain ongoing contact.

15



Section 3: Target Measure Summary

Goal 1. Increase Orientation Attendance Rate to 10% from 0%. Review using Exemplar

and CalSAWS reports improving by 2.5% every 6 months within 2 years (for a total of a
10.0% improvement).

Performance Measure: Orientation Attendance Rate
Baseline Result: 0%

Cal-SIP Start Progress Report #1:  Progress Report #2: Cycle End Date:
Time: 05/01/2024  05/23/2025 06/26/2026 06/30/2026

Strategies, Action Steps, and Tracking Improvement:
Strateqy 1: Develop a written workflow process.

Action Steps:
» Facilitate workgroups with the Cal-OAR team.
* Schedule CalWORKs 2.0 training.

Strategy 2: Implement incentives usage.

Action Steps:
* Integrate incentives into written workflow process.
» Trainline staff on the incentive process.

Strateqgy 3: Develop a process for Welfare to Work worker introduction after CalWORKSs
intake-Jumpstart Program

Action Steps:
* Review current intake packet.
* Create WTW welcome packet.
» Develop process for warm handoff from intake CW worker.
» Train staff on the Jumpstart Program.

Strateqgy 4: Develop a standard orientation.

Action Steps:
e Create video orientation.
e Train staff on the orientation process.

Strategy 5: Increase equity awareness in orientation delivery.

Action Steps:
» Attend CDSS REIB training sessions.
» Schedule meetings with the Department Equity Officer to explore methods
to identify potential disparities.

16



Tracking: MCDSS will review progress on each action step at check-in meetings with
the Cal-OAR team to monitor and evaluate whether improvements are being achieved.
The Cal-OAR team includes the Staff Services Analyst, Program Manager, Supervisor,
and three Integrated Case Workers. During these meetings we will evaluate the use of
new tools and resources and what impact they have on meeting our Orientation
Attendance Rate. MCDSS will make adjustments and changes as necessary to improve
as we learn from the results of our action steps.

17



Goal 2: Increase OCAT/Appraisal Completion Timeliness Rate to 10% from 0%. Review
using Exemplar and CalSAWS reports improving by 2.5% every 6 months within 2 years
(for a total of a 10% improvement).

Performance Measure: OCAT/Appraisal Completion Timeliness Rate
Baseline Result: 0%

Cal-SIP Start Progress Report Progress Report #2:  Cycle End Date:
Time: 05/01/2024 #1: 05/23/2025 06/26/2026 06/30/2026

Strategies, Action Steps, and Tracking Improvement:
Strategy 1: Implement incentives usage.

Action Steps:
* Integrate incentives in written workflow process.
» Train staff on incentive process.

Strateqgy 2: Offer remote/video options.

Action Steps:
* Hot spot purchases.
* Ensure all WTW staff have camera/zoom capabilities.
» Train staff on remote/video process.
* Submit electronic interview plan to CDSS.

Strateqgy 3: Create and print CalWORKSs handbook.

Action Steps:
» Facilitate workgroups with the Cal-OAR team.
* Obtain samples from other counties.

Strategy 4: UC Davis training-WTW client engagement training.

Action Steps:
* Request and schedule training via training coordinator.
» Partner with other counties.

Strateqgy 5: Increase equity awareness in OCAT/Appraisal deliver.

Action Steps:
» Attend CDSS REIB training sessions.
» Schedule meetings with the Department Equity Officer to explore methods
to identify potential disparities.

Tracking: MCDSS will review progress on each action step at check-in meetings with
the Cal-OAR team to monitor and evaluate whether improvements are being achieved.

18



The Cal-OAR team includes the Staff Services Analyst, Program Manager, Supervisor,
and three Integrated Case Workers. During these meetings we will evaluate the use of
new tools and resources and what impact they have on meeting our OCAT/Appraisal
Timeliness Rate. MCDSS will make adjustments and changes as necessary to improve
as we learn from the results of our action steps.

19



" i% OFFICE OF THE CLERK
ir,;,'.i* | OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
&=, Print
MEETING DATE May 21, 2024
Departments: Health and Human Services
TIME REQUIRED PERSONS
, APPEARING
SUBJECT American Red Cross Memorandum of
Understanding BEFORE THE
BOARD
AGENDA DESCRIPTION:

(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the American Red Cross and Mono County to define a working relationship
in preparing for, responding to, and recovering from disasters. This MOU provides the framework for cooperation and
support between the Red Cross and Mono County in assisting individuals, families and communities who have been or could
be impacted by disaster or an emergency.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Approve County entry into proposed Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for the period July 30, 2024 through July 30,
2029, and authorize the Chair of the Board of Supervisors to execute said MOU on behalf of the County.

FISCAL IMPACT:

None.

CONTACT NAME: Cathy Young
PHONE/EMAIL: 760-924-1780 / cyoung@mono.ca.gov

SEND COPIES TO:
Cathy Young - cyoung@mono.ca.gov Kathy Peterson -
kpeterson@mono.ca.gov

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
¥ YES ™ NO

ATTACHMENTS:

Click to download

[ Staff Report
O ARCMOU

History


javascript:history.go(0);

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=32508&ItemID=17664

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=32514&ItemID=17664

Time Who Approval
5/13/2024 10:41 AM County Counsel Yes

5/16/2024 1:38 PM Finance Yes

5/16/2024 2:21 PM County Administrative Office Yes



Health and Human Services Department

Public Health Division, PO Box 3329, Mammoth Lakes, CA 93546 | PO Box 476, Bridgeport, CA 93517
Social Services Division, PO Box 2969, Mammoth Lakes, CA 93546

I‘.kl.
COUNTY

To:  Mono County Board of Supervisors

From: Cathy Young, Supervising Staff Services Analyst

Date. May 21, 2024

Re:  American Red Cross (ARC) Memorandum of Understag@OU)

The purpose of this Memorandum of Understanding@WV) is to define a working relationship betweee th
American Red Cross and Mono County, in preparing fesponding to, and recovering from disasterss Th
MOU provides the broad framework for cooperatiod aopport between the Red Cross and Mono County in
assisting individuals, families and communities whave been or could be impacted by disaster or an
emergency. It also provides the descriptions ofliresss and response activities, such as planmaiirtg,
exercising and resourcing, and the clarificatiomadés and responsibilities of the Red Cross anaddGounty

to the community and other agencies.

This MOU is effective as of July 30, 2024 and e&pion July 30, 2029. Six months prior to expiratithe
parties will meet to review the progress and sucofthe cooperative effort. In connection with lsuieview,
the parties may decide to extend this MOU for aditamhal period not exceeding five years, and if sloall
confirm this in a signed writing.

This item requests Board approval for the Countyyemto proposed MOU and authorize the Chair @& th
Board of Supervisors to execute said MOU on batfatie County.

Please don'’t hesitate to contact me if you havecamgtions.



Memorandum of Understanding
between the

American Red Cross

and

Mono County

July 2024

+ American
L Red Cross

MOU between the American Red Cross and Mono County



1. Purpose

The purpose of this Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") is to define a working
relationship between The American Red Cross (hereinafter "Red Cross") and Mono County, on
behalf of its Department of Social Services, its lead Emergency Management agency (hereinafter
Mono County) in preparing for, responding to, and recovering from disasters. This MOU
provides the broad framework for cooperation and support between the Red Cross and Mono
County in assisting individuals, families and communities who have been or could be impacted
by disaster or an emergency. It also provides the descriptions of readiness and response
activities, such as planning, training, exercising and resourcing, and the clarification of roles and
responsibilities of the Red Cross and Mono County to the community and other agencies.

I1. Parties
A. Mono County

Mono County Code Chapter 2.60.010 provides for the preparation and carrying out of plans for
the protection of persons and property within the County in the event of an emergency; the
direction of the emergency organization; and the coordination of the emergency functions of the
County with all other public agencies, and affected private persons, corporations, and
organizations. (Ord. 83-441-B § 2 (part), 1983.)

B. American Red Cross

Founded in 1881, the Red Cross is the nation's largest nonprofit disaster management
organization. As part of a worldwide movement that offers neutral and impartial humanitarian
care, the Red Cross is a non-governmental organization that mobilizes communities to aid
people affected by or at risk of disasters with the aim of preventing and alleviating suffering. We
do this by recruiting, training, and equipping volunteers throughout the country. The Red Cross
provides disaster cycle services without regard to race, color, national origin, religion, gender,
age, disability, sexual orientation, citizenship or veteran status. It follows the Fundamental
Principles of the International Red Cross and Red Crescent Movement [See Attachment B]. The
Red Cross is closely integrated into community preparedness, response, and recovery efforts,
including those of federal, tribal, state and local government and other non-government
organizations.

The Red Cross is chartered by the United States Congress to provide humanitarian services and
provides disaster cycle services pursuant to its Bylaws and other internal policies and
procedures as well as its Congressional Charter (USC 36 §300101-300111). In the Charter,
Congress authorized the Red Cross "to carry out a system of national and international relief in
time of peace and apply that system in mitigating the suffering caused by pestilence, famine,
fire, floods, and other great national calamities, and to devise and carry out measures for
preventing those calamities."

Further, the 2020 Memorandum of Agreement between FEMA and the Red Cross recognizes the

MOU between the American Red Cross and Mono County 2



national level roles and responsibilities designated to the Red Cross. Located in Washington,
DC, the national headquarters for the Red Cross is responsible for implementing policies and
procedures that govern such Red Cross activities and provides administrative and technical
oversight and guidance. Additionally, each region has certain authorities and responsibilities for
carrying out Red Cross disaster preparedness, response and recovery activities, delivering local
Red Cross services, and meeting corporate obligations within the territorial jurisdiction assigned
to it. Each region is familiar with the hazards of the locality and surveys local resources for
personnel, equipment, supplies, transportation, emergency communications, and facilities
available for disaster relief. Regions also formulate cooperative plans and procedures with local
government agencies and private organizations for relief activities should a disaster occur.

II1. Methods of Cooperation

The Red Cross and Mono County mutually recognize each other’s authority in the emergency
management/disaster response field to prepare, respond and recover from disasters.
Accordingly, both parties will share strategic, tactical and crisis communication objectives. Both
parties will also share operational plans, priorities and objectives. The Red Cross recognizes
Mono County responsibility in providing leadership and the full range of emergency
management/disaster response services in their jurisdiction. Mono County recognizes the Red
Cross as having mass care responsibility in domestic disasters, and when activated, will support
and coordinate with the Red Cross in the execution of these duties.

As the ESF-6 co-lead the Red Cross will coordinate with Mono County on their respective
disaster cycle activities to enhance services to the community in the following areas:

1. Preparedness activities — Build community capacity and resilience through disaster
preparedness within Mono County, including:

a. Community education activities (e.g. Home Fire Campaign, Prepare with Pedro)

b. High probability/high consequence events risk assessment

c. Planning (e.g. emergency plans, standard operating procedures for notification of
disaster and emergency situations)

d. Training (e.g. Red Cross disaster trainings, FEMA classroom trainings hosted by
Mono County

e. Exercise (e.g. Shelter Fundamentals, National Level Exercise, National Mass
Care)

2. Response activities — Organize community resources to meet the immediate needs of
individuals, families and communities affected by disaster or emergencies, including the
following life-sustaining services:

a. Daily Home Fire Response Services (e.g. DAT response)

b. Sheltering (e.g. managing shelters, providing technical assistance in evacuation
and post impact sheltering, quantifying daily shelter counts)

c. Feeding (e.g. in shelters, on mobile routes, at fixed sites in the impacted
communities)
Health Services (e.g. shelters, , Family Assistance Centers)

e. Mental Health Services (e.g. shelters, Family Assistance Centers)

MOU between the American Red Cross and Mono County 3




Disability Integration (e.g. shelters, feeding sites)

Spiritual Care (e.g. shelters, Family Assistance Centers)

Reunification

Distribution of Relief Supplies (e.g. comfort kits, clean up supplies, personal
hygiene items)

Damage Assessment (e.g. aggregate data, virtual, windowpane)

k. Mass Fatality (e.g. funeral assistance, Family Assistance Centers)

g e

o

3. Recovery activities — Provide a standard and scalable set of services that align with
available resources to bridge the gaps between client resources and needs, including:

a. Client Casework (e.g. housing, financial assistance, referrals)

b. Community Recovery Strategy Development (e.g. Long-Term Recovery
Committees, Multi-Agency Shelter Transition Teams)

c. FEMA'’s Direct Case Management Program (e.g. the delivery of recovery services
for individuals and families, the sharing of case information, the prevention of
the duplication of services)

4. Communication — Keep each other informed of the human needs created by the disaster
events and the services being provided, including:

a. Collaborating in the Emergency Operation Center (EOC)

i. At the request of Mono County, the Red Cross will provide liaison
personnel to Mono County EOC and any jurisdictional EOC’s during a
disaster or emergency situation.

ii. Mono County will provide facility access and identification, workspace
and, whenever possible, other required technical support, such as access
to the Incident Management System as necessary for the Red Cross
liaison personnel assigned to the EOC.

b. Maintaining close coordination and support at all levels and with designated
Points of Contact (e.g. in appropriate committees, planning groups, task forces)
[See Attachment A]

c. Sharing current data regarding disasters (e.g. risk and hazard impact analysis,
statistical information, social media verifications, historical information,
emerging needs and trends, damage assessments, disaster declarations, service
delivery plans)

5. Recruitment — Mono County recognizes that the Red Cross is dependent upon public
support and, whenever possible, will advocate for the Red Cross in acquiring necessary
resources that increase Red Cross capacity, including:

a. Donations: Encourage residents to support the Red Cross (e.g. blood donations
for hospital patients, volunteering time).

b. Mono County Volunteers: Determine any specific Disaster Leave Law, Act or
Executive Order that allows for volunteering during a disaster.

6. Other opportunities for cooperation include:
a. Facilities: Allow the use of each other’s facilities, as available and if agreed upon

MOU between the American Red Cross and Mono County




in writing, for the purpose of preparedness training, meetings and response and
recovery activities.

b. Donated resources: Work together to use volunteer hours and donated resources
to offset the non-federal cost share, in accordance with FEMA’s PAPPG v.4
donated resources policy language (Chapter 6.XIV. page 88-91), when feasible and
appropriate.

c. The Red Cross will support Mono County in integrating the efforts of the non-
governmental organizations (NGOs) that provide mass care services (e.g. Mass
Care Feeding Task Forces) during response operations.

d. Repatriation: The Red Cross supports the Mono County at Emergency
Repatriation Centers as defined by the State Emergency Repatriation Plan and
the MOU with the Department of Health and Human Services.

e. Transportation Incidents: Provide services to clients and family members after a
Transportation Incident as defined by the MOU with the National Transportation
Safety Board.

f. Services to Armed Forces (e.g. military bases, veterans)

International Services Department (e.g. Restoring Family Links, tracing)

IV. General

a.

Both parties agree not to use or display any trademarks of the other without first
receiving the express written permission to do so. However, the use of the
trademarks of the other party is permitted for internal meeting notes and plans that
are not publicly distributed and used during the normal course of business related to
the purpose of MOU. If either party desires to use the intellectual property of the
other, the “requesting party” should submit the proposed promotional/marketing
materials, press releases, website displays or otherwise proposed use of the
trademarks to the “owning party” for review in advance of dissemination or
publication.

Both parties will keep the public informed of their cooperative efforts through the
public information offices of the Red Cross and Mono County and Joint Information
Center, if activated.

Both parties will widely distribute this partnership agreement within their respective
organizations and urge full cooperation.

Both parties will maintain their own identity in providing service. Each organization
is separately responsible for establishing its own policies, procedures, and financing
its own activities.

Both parties will abide by the Federal and State laws and regulations concerning
confidentiality which safeguard information and the participants confidentiality.
Both parties will further abide by all Federal and State laws and regulations as
relative to data sharing of pertinent information for performance accountability and
program evaluation purposes.

Periodic Review

MOU between the American Red Cross and Mono County 5




The parties will, on an annual basis, on or around the anniversary date of this MOU, jointly
evaluate their progress in implementing this MOU and revise and develop new plans or goals as
appropriate. Both parties shall notify the other if primary points of contact change.

VI. Term and Termination.

This MOU is effective as of July 30, 2024. It expires on July 30, 2029. Six months prior to
expiration, the parties will meet to review the progress and success of the cooperative effort. In
connection with such review, the parties may decide to extend this MOU for an additional
period not exceeding five years, and if so, shall confirm this in a signed writing. This MOU may
be terminated by written notification from either party to the other at any time and for any
reason or for no reason.

VII. Miscellaneous

This MOU does not create a partnership or a joint venture and does not create any financial
commitments from one party to the other. Neither party has the authority to bind the other to
any obligation. It is not intended that this MOU be enforceable as a matter of law in any court or
dispute resolution forum. The sole remedy for non-performance under this MOU shall be
termination, with no damages or penalty.

Signature page follows.

MOU between the American Red Cross and Mono County 6




Signature Page

Mono County

By:

(Signature)

Name: John Peters

Title:  Chair, Mono County Board of
Supervisors

Date

Mono County Contact information:
Cathy Young

Telephone: 760-924-1780

E-mail: cyoung@mono.ca.gov

COUNTY OF MONO
Sanctha %ém?;

Chief Administrative Officer
Anne Frcovat

County Counsel

Mono County Risk Management

The American Red Cross

lrene parveeh

By: irene parveen’(Apr 23,2024 07:41 PDT)

(Signature)

Name: Irene Parveen

Title:  Disaster Program Manager

pate: Apr23,2024

Red Cross Contact information:
Irene Parveen

Telephone: 661-221-3915

E-mail: irene.parveen @redcross.org

MOU between the American Red Cross and Mono County




ATTACHMENT A - Organization Contact Information

Primary Points of Contact

The primary points of contact in each organization will be responsible for the implementation of
the MOU in their respective organizations, coordinating activities between organizations, and

responding to questions regarding this MOU. In the event that the primary point of contact is no
longer able to serve, a new contact will be designated and the other organization informed of the

change.

NOTE: When any attachment is updated, the revised attachment is inserted in the MOU. The
MOU does not need to be signed again.

Relationship Manager Contact*

American Red Cross — Kern Eastern Sierra Mono County
Chapter
Contact Irene Parveen Contact Cathy Young
Title Disaster Program Manager Title Sup. Staff Services Analyst
Office 661-221-3915 Office 760-924-1780
phone phone
Mobile 661-221-3915 Mobile 808-658-0618
Email irene.parveen@redcross.org Email cyoung@mono.ca.gov

*The Relationship Manager is the person that works with the partner organization in developing and executing

the MOU.

Operations Contact**

American Red Cross — Kern Eastern Sierra Mono County
Chapter
Contact Irene Parveen Contact Cathy Young
Title Disaster Program Manager Title Sup. Staff Services Analyst
Office 661-221-3915 Office 760-924-1780
phone
Mobile 661-221-3915 Mobile 808-658-0618
Email irene.parveen@redcross.org Email cyoung@mono.ca.gov

**The Operations Contact is the person each organization will call to initiate operations activities as defined in

the MOU.

Organization Information

American Red Cross — Kern Eastern Sierra Mono County
Chapter
Department | Disaster Services, Kern Eastern Department | Mono County HHS-Social
Sierra Chapter Services
Address 5035 Gilmore Avenue Address 1290 Tavern Rd., PO Box 2969,

MOU between the American Red Cross and Mono County




Bakersfield, CA 93308

Mammoth Lakes, CA 93546

Email

Operations.CCR@redcross.org

Email

cyoung@mono.ca.gov

Website

www.redcross.org

Website

https://monocounty.ca.gov/

MOU between the American Red Cross and Mono County




ATTACHMENT B

Principles of Conduct for
The International Red Cross and Red Crescent Movement and
NGOs in Disaster Response Programs

Principle Commitments:

10.

The Humanitarian imperative comes first.

Aid is given regardless of the race, creed or nationality of the recipients and without adverse
distinction of any kind. Aid priorities are calculated on the basis of need alone.

Aid will not be used to further a particular political or religious standpoint.

We shall endeavor not to act as instruments of government foreign policy.

We shall respect culture and custom.

We shall attempt to build disaster response on local capacities.

Ways shall be found to involve program beneficiaries in the management of relief aid.

Relief aid must strive to reduce future vulnerabilities to disaster as well as meeting basic
needs.

We hold ourselves accountable to both those we seek to assist and those from whom we
accept resources.

In our information, publicity, and advertising activities, we shall recognize disaster victims
as dignified human beings, not hopeless objects.

More information about the code of conduct can be found at http: //www.ifrc.org/en/publications-and-

reports/code-of-conduct

The Code Register
The International Federation keeps a public record of all the humanitarian organizations that become
signatories of the code. The contact details of each organization are verified.

Humanitarian organizations wishing to become a signatory to the code should download and complete
the registration form.

MOU between the American Red Cross and Mono County

10




Red Cross Mono MOU 7.2024

Final Audit Report 2024-04-24
Created: 2024-04-22
By: Cathy Young (cyoung@mono.ca.gov)
Status: Signed
Transaction ID: CBJCHBCAABAA9_20110BJsz7-tfCISi6Z8VnmLMjE8wD

"Red Cross Mono MOU 7.2024" History

e

=)

Document created by Cathy Young (cyoung@mono.ca.gov)
2024-04-22 - 7:12:32 PM GMT- IP address: 162.252.88.209

Document emailed to irene.parveen@redcross.org for signature
2024-04-22 - 7:16:13 PM GMT

Email viewed by irene.parveen@redcross.org
2024-04-23 - 8:41:53 AM GMT- IP address: 104.28.85.110

Signer irene.parveen@redcross.org entered name at signing as irene parveen
2024-04-23 - 2:41:52 PM GMT- IP address: 16.98.97.96

Document e-signed by irene parveen (irene.parveen@redcross.org)
Signature Date: 2024-04-23 - 2:41:54 PM GMT - Time Source: server- I[P address: 16.98.97.96

Document emailed to Anne Frievalt (afrievalt@mono.ca.gov) for signature
2024-04-23 - 2:41:56 PM GMT

Email viewed by Anne Frievalt (afrievalt@mono.ca.gov)
2024-04-23 - 2:46:26 PM GMT- IP address: 76.227.21.18

Document e-signed by Anne Frievalt (afrievalt@mono.ca.gov)
Signature Date: 2024-04-23 - 2:47:03 PM GMT - Time Source: server- IP address: 76.227.21.18

Document emailed to Jacob Sloane (jsloane@mono.ca.gov) for signature
2024-04-23 - 2:47:04 PM GMT

Email viewed by Jacob Sloane (jsloane@mono.ca.gov)
2024-04-23 - 3:29:49 PM GMT- IP address: 68.189.185.129

Document e-signed by Jacob Sloane (jsloane@mono.ca.gov)
Signature Date: 2024-04-23 - 10:33:45 PM GMT - Time Source: server- |IP address: 162.252.88.212

Powered by
Adobe
Acrobat Sign




E4 Document emailed to Sandra Moberly (smoberly@mono.ca.gov) for signature
2024-04-23 - 10:33:47 PM GMT

™ Email viewed by Sandra Moberly (smoberly@mono.ca.gov)
2024-04-23 - 11:45:49 PM GMT- IP address: 146.75.154.1

% Document e-signed by Sandra Moberly (smoberly@mono.ca.gov)
Signature Date: 2024-04-24 - 3:24:05 PM GMT - Time Source: server- I[P address: 162.252.88.209

@ Agreement completed.
2024-04-24 - 3:24:05 PM GMT

Powered by
Adobe
Acrobat Sign




" i% OFFICE OF THE CLERK
5% | OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
&=, Print
MEETING DATE May 21, 2024
Departments: Behavioral Health
TIME REQUIRED PERSONS
. APPEARING
SUBJECT Memorandum of Understanding
(MOU) regarding Behavioral Health BEFORE THE
Programs, Activities and Crisis BOARD
Response at School Sites
AGENDA DESCRIPTION:

(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

Proposed MOU with various school sites throughout Mono County which are operated by Mammoth Unified School District,
Eastern Sierra Unified School District, and the Mono County Office of Education, pertaining to behavioral health services.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Approve, and authorize Behavioral Health Director to sign, contract with Mammoth Unified School District, Eastern Sierra
Unified School District, and the Mono County Office of Education for behavioral health services for the period of January 1,
2024, through December 31, 2025.

FISCAL IMPACT:

None.

CONTACT NAME: Amanda Greenberg
PHONE/EMAIL: 760-924-1754 | agreenberg@mono.ca.gov

SEND COPIES TO:

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
~ YES @ NO

ATTACHMENTS:

Click to download

O Staff Report
O Memorandumof Understanding

History
Time Who Approval


javascript:history.go(0);

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=32563&ItemID=17706

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=32562&ItemID=17706

5/14/2024 2:16 PM
5/16/2024 1:34 PM
5/16/2024 2:51 PM

County Counsel
Finance

County Administrative Office

Yes
Yes

Yes



MONO COUNTY BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DEPARTMENT

COUNTY OF MONO

P. 0. BOX 2619 MAMMOTH LAKES, CA 93546 (760) 924-1740 FAX: (760) 924-1741

TO: Mono County Board of Supervisors
FROM: Adriana Niculescu, Mono County Behavioral Health Clinical Services Manager
DATE: May 21, 2024

SUBJECT:

Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) regarding Behavioral Health Programs,
Activities and Crisis Response at School Sites

DISCUSSION:

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is to formalize the protocols, agreements
and policies related to provision of the Services Mono County Behavioral Health has
already been providing for the schools in Mono County. It details when schools will
include MCBH in services and when to utilize emergency or other alternative services.
This MOU will allow us to continue to provide services for students and their families on
campus as needed.

SUBMITTED BY:
Amanda Greenberg, Program Manager, Contact: 760.924.1740



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING REGARDING BEHAVIORAL HEALTH
PROGRAMS, ACTIVITIES AND CRISIS RESPONSE AT SCHOOL SITES

WHEREAS, Mono County, through its Department of Behavioral Health, (hereinafter “the
County”) provides behavioral health educational presentations, activities and events, as well as
crisis response services (hereinafter collectively the "Services") at various school sites throughout
Mono County which are operated by Mammoth Unified School District, Eastern Sierra Unified
School District, and the Mono County Office of Education, respectively (hereinafter collectively
“the School Districts”); and

WHEREAS, the County and the School Districts wish to memorialize the protocols, agreements
and policies related to provision of the Services through adoption of this Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU); and

WHEREAS, the County additionally has partnered with the Mono County Office of Education
(MCOE) to implement Mental Health School Services Act (MHSSA) funding for the provision of
counseling services at school sites. This MOU is not intended to and shall not apply to such
MHSSA services, which are the subject of other agreement(s) between County and MCOE; and

WHEREAS, this MOU shall be effective between the County any School District which has
executed it below;

Now, therefore, County and School District(s) do agree as follows:

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Incorporation of Recitals. The above recitals are incorporated into this agreement by this
reference.

2. Services Provided. The County of Mono, through its Department of Behavioral Health,
may from time-to-time and upon request of one or more of the School Districts under
Paragraph 2, provide the following Services at a School District school site:

a. Mental health crisis response and intervention as set forth in any established
protocol between the County and the School Districts. Any protocols developed
between the County and a School District shall automatically be incorporated
herein upon approval by County and the affected School District;

b. Classroom presentations and activities regarding mental health and substance use
disorder topics;

c. Group activities such as art and yoga which teach emotional regulation;

d. Consultation with designated School District staff regarding mental health and/or
substance use disorder topics that are not specific to any individual student;

e. Such other educational services as may be agreed between the County and a School
District.

3. Requests for Services. Requests for Services under this MOU for a School District or
school site may be made by the superintendent of the District or the principal of the school
site. From time to time, the County may propose a particular Service to the School Districts.




If a School District would like the County to provide such Service, it may make a request
that such Services be provided under this paragraph.

. Nature of Services. All Services provided by County to School Districts shall be
educational/general in nature and shall not include any one-on-one counseling, advice, or
the creation of a therapist/patient relationship with any student. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, a student or family may directly refer themselves as a client to the County for
Behavioral Health Services, in which event such services are exclusively between County
and the client and are not covered by this MOU, regardless of whether a County employee
provides all or a portion of such services at a school site (e.g., student support).

. Authorization to Participate. The School District at which the educational event or activity
is scheduled to take place shall be solely responsible for determining what parental or
guardian authorizations are required for its purposes in order to enable students to
participate and shall ensure that any student not providing such authorization is excluded
from the event or activity.

Each Party to Bear Own Costs. There shall be no charge to the School Districts for services
provided by the County as set forth herein. Each Party shall bear its own costs for staff
time involved in the performance of this MOU. From time-to-time the County and one or
more of the School Districts may collaborate to apply for and implement grant or other
funding to support new or additional services. Such services shall be covered by this MOU
unless otherwise noted in the agreement between the County and the School District related
thereto.

Term and Termination. The term of this MOU shall be from January 1, 2024, to December
31, 2025, with the survival of certain provisions as noted herein. This MOU shall
automatically renew for subsequent one-year periods unless terminated by the parties or as
to any individual party. Any party may terminate its involvement in this MOU by providing
the others with thirty (30) calendar days’ written notice.

Indemnification. The School District or Districts at which the Services at issue were
provided shall defend with counsel acceptable to County, indemnify, and hold harmless
County, its agents, officers, and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses,
judgments, liabilities, expenses, and other costs, including litigation costs and attorney’s
fees, arising out of, resulting from or in connection with, the provision of Services under
this MOU by County, County’s agents, officers, or employees. The School Districts’
obligation to defend, indemnify, and hold County, its agents, officers, and employees
harmless applies to any actual or alleged personal injury, death, damage, or destruction to
tangible or intangible property, including the loss of use. The School Districts’ obligation
under this Paragraph extends to any claim, damage, loss, liability, expense, or other costs
that are caused in whole or in part by any act or omission of the School Districts, their
agents, employees, suppliers, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or
anyone for whose acts or omissions any of them may be liable. The School Districts’
obligation to defend, indemnify, and hold County, its agents, officers, and employees
harmless is not limited to, or restricted by, any requirement in this Agreement for the




School Districts to procure and maintain a policy of insurance and shall survive any
termination or expiration of this Agreement. The obligation set forth in this paragraph shall
survive any termination or expiration of this MOU.

9. Insurance. The School Districts and the County of Mono shall each procure and maintain,
during the entire term of this MOU the following insurance (as noted) against claims for
injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the
performance of the work hereunder and the results of that work by County, its agents,
representatives, employees, or subcontractors:

a. General Liability. A policy of Comprehensive General Liability Insurance which
covers all the work and services to be performed under this MOU, including
operations, products and completed operations, property damage, bodily injury
(including death) and personal and advertising injury. Such policy shall provide
limits of not less than $1,000,000.00 per claim or occurrence. If a general aggregate
limit applies, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this project
or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit.

b. Coverage and Provider Requirements. Prior to commencing any work under this
MOU, County and the School Districts shall provide each other: (1) a certificate
of insurance evidencing the coverage required and (2) a notice of cancellation or
change of coverage endorsement indicating that the policy will not be modified,
terminated, or canceled without thirty (30) days written notice.

10. Independence of Parties. All acts of the Parties, their agents, officers, and employees,
relating to the performance of this Agreement shall be performed as independent entities,
and not as agents, officers, or employees of the other Party. Neither Party, by virtue of this
Agreement, has the authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of, or exercise any
right or power vested in, the other Party, except as expressly provided herein. No agent,
officer, or employee of one Party is to be considered an employee of the other Party. It is
understood by both Parties that this Agreement shall not, under any circumstances, be
construed to create an employer-employee relationship or a joint venture.

11. Amendment. This Agreement may be amended by a writing signed by authorized
representatives of the Parties.

12. Party Contacts. This Agreement shall be administered on behalf of the Parties by the
following persons, to whom any notices or correspondence concerning the MOU shall be

directed:
Mammoth Unified School District: Mono County:
Annie Rinaldi, Superintendent Robin Roberts, Behavioral Health Director
P.O. Box 3509 P.O. Box 2619
Mammoth Lakes, CA 93546 Mammoth Lakes, CA 93546
Phone: 760-934-6802 Phone : 760-924-1729

Email: arinaldi@mammothusd.org Email: rroberts@mono.ca.gov



Eastern Sierra Unified School District Mono County Office of Education

Heidi Torix, Superintendent Dr. Stacey Adler, Superintendent.
P.O. Box 575 P.O. Box 130

Bridgeport, CA 93517 Mammoth Lakes, CA 93546
Phone: (760) 932-7443 Phone: (760) 934-0031

Email: htorix@esusd.org Email: sadler@monocoe.org

13. Execution. This Agreement may be executed in two (2) or more counterparts (including by
electronic transmission), each of which shall constitute an original, and all of which taken
together shall constitute one and the same instrument. For purposes of this Agreement, a
photocopy, facsimile, .pdf, or electronically scanned signatures, including but not limited
to Docusign or similar service, shall be deemed as valid and as enforceable as an original.

By the signatures of their authorized representatives appearing below, the School Districts and the
County agree to perform and abide by the terms of this Agreement.

Mono County: Mammoth Unified School District:
By: By:

Dated: Dated:

Eastern Sierra Unified School District Mono County Office of Education
By: By:

Dated: Dated:

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Mono County Counsel

APPROVED BY RISK MANAGEMENT:




*X" & OFFICE OF THE CLERK
£.% | OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST

=L Print

MEETING DATE May 21, 2024
Departments: Public Works - Road Department

TIME REQUIRED PERSONS
SUBJECT FY23/24 Regional Surface QE Izga|;|¥ﬁE

Transportation Program (RSTP)

Road Funding Agreement BOARD

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:

(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

Approval of annual funding through the Regional Surface Transportation Program (RSTP) apportionment. This repeating
annual agreement authorizes the exchange of federal highway funds for state highway funds thereby providing the Road
Fund with a more flexible funding source.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Approve and authorize Chair’s signature on the FY23/24 Federal Exchange and State Match Agreement for allocation of
Federal Surface Transportation Program Funds through the State’s Regional Surface Transportation Program

FISCAL IMPACT:

$329,725 of intergovernmental revenue to the Road Fund (Fund 180), which was included in the FY 2023/2024 adopted
budget.

CONTACT NAME: Steve Reeves
PHONE/EMAIL: 760 932 5449 / sreeves@mono.ca.gov

SEND COPIES TO:

sreeves@mono.ca.gov

proten@mono.ca.gov

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
¥ YES ™ NO

ATTACHMENTS:

Click to download

O Staff Report
O Agreement X24-5947(071)



javascript:history.go(0);

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=32559&ItemID=17705

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=32554&ItemID=17705

History

Time

5/16/2024 9:15 AM
5/16/2024 2:47 PM
5/16/2024 3:14 PM
5/16/2024 3:39 PM
5/16/2024 3:34 PM
5/16/2024 3:41 PM

Who
County Counsel

Finance

Public Works - Road Division
County Counsel

Finance

County Administrative Office

Approval
Yes

No

Yes
Yes
Yes

Yes



MONO COUNTY
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

POST OFFICE BOX 457 ¢ 74 NORTH SCHOOL STREET ¢ BRIDGEPORT, CALIFORNIA 93517
760.932.5440 « Fax 760.932.5441 « monopw@mono.ca.gov ¢ www.monocounty.ca.gov

Date: May 21, 2024
To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Supervisors
From: Steve Reeves Public Works Road Superintendent

Subject: FY23/24 RSTP Road Funding Agreement

History:

The annual funding through the Regional Surface Transportation Program (RSTP) apportionment is a
major source of revenue for Mono County’'s Road maintenance programs. Although the amount is
based on a statewide formula that has not increased over the years, the RSTP funding and the annual
gas tax apportionment continue to be one of the foundations of Public Works’” Road Division. The
exchange agreement allows the State to forward non-federal highway apportionments directly to the
Road Fund and the County maintains total control over how those funds are expended. This funding
is made available to rural counties on an annual basis and provides the Road Fund with a flexible,
uncomplicated funding source.

Discussion:

The Federal Apportionment Exchange Program and State Match Agreement, a copy of which is
enclosed with this report, will authorize the exchange of federal highway funds for state highway funds
for Fiscal Year 2023/2024.

If you have any questions regarding this item, please contact me at 760.932.5449 or by email at
sreeves@mono.ca.gov

Respectfully submitted,

%&/g @;weé

Steve Reeves Public Works Road Superintendent
Director of Public Works

Attachments:  Agreement No. X24-5947(071)

Parks ¢ Community Centers ¢ Roads & Bridges » Land Development ¢ Solid Waste
Building Maintenance e Campgrounds e Airports « Cemeteries ¢ Fleet Maintenance



FEDERAL APPORTIONMENT EXCHANGE PROGRAM AND STATE MATCH PROGRAM
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION - NON MPO COUNTY

09 MONO
District County

Agreement No. X24-5947(071)
AMS Adv 1D:0924000055

THIS AGREEMENT is made on , by the COUNTY of MONO , a political
subdivision of the State of California (COUNTY), and the State of California, acting by and through the
Department of Transportation (STATE).

WHEREAS, COUNTY desires to assign federal apportionments made available to COUNTY for
allocation to transportation projects in accordance with Section 182.6 of the Streets and Highways
Code [Regional Surface Transportation Program (RSTP)/Regional Surface Transportation Block Grant
Program (RSTBGP) funds] in exchange for nonfederal State Highway Account funds, and

WHEREAS Section 182.9 of the Streets and Highways Code requires the allocation of State Matching
funds from the State Highway Account to COUNTY:

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:
. FEDERAL APPORTIONMENT EXCHANGE PROGRAM

A. As authorized by Section 182.6 of the Streets and Highways Code, and the RTPA having agreed to
exchange or elected not to exercise its authority as it relates to the COUNTY'S portion of the
RSTP/RSTBGP under Section 182.6(g), COUNTY agrees to assign to STATE:

$229,725.00 from the eligible portion of its estimated annual minimum RSTP/RSTBGP
Apportionment for Fiscal Year 2023/2024.

The eligible portion of said minimum apportionment is the COUNTY's estimated annual minimum
RSTP/RSTBGP apportionment established under Section 182.6(d)(2) of the Streets and Highways
Code less any federal apportionments already obligated for projects chargeable to COUNTY's eligible
portion of its estimated annual minimum RSTP/RSTBGP apportionment.

For Caltrans Use Only

| hereby Certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are available for this encumbrance

%‘;& #"&/ Accounting Officer | Date 3/20/2024 $ 329,725.00
v

v

Non-MPO-Co. E/M (N) Page 1 of 4 (Rev. 04/09/2018 )



B. COUNTY agrees that it will not undertake any capacity-expanding project funded herein located in
an air quality nonattainment area without prior inclusion of said project by its RTPA in the "build"
alternative of the air quality conformance analysis and the RTPA's subsequent concurrence in the
project's implementation.

[I. STATE MATCH PROGRAM - Section 182.9

A. As authorized by Section 182.9 of the Streets and Highways Code, STATE agrees to pay to
COUNTY $100,000.00 from the unobligated balance of COUNTY's State Matching funds for Fiscal Year
2023/2024.

B. COUNTY agrees that before COUNTY uses State Matching funds for any other lawful purpose,
COUNTY shall use such funds to match federally funded transportation projects.

[ll. COMMON PROVISIONS

A. Subiject to the availability of State funds by the State Budget Act, and upon receipt of COUNTY
invoice evidencing COUNTY's assignment of COUNTY's estimated apportionment under Section |.A to
STATE, STATE agrees to pay to COUNTY an amount not to exceed $329,725.00 that equals the sum
of the estimated apportionment amounts identified in Sections I.A and the State Match funds identified
in Section Il.A.

B. COUNTY agrees to use all State funds paid hereunder only for transportation purposes that are in
conformance with Article XIX of the California State Constitution.

C. COUNTY agrees to establish a special account within their County Road Fund for the purpose of
depositing all payments received from STATE pursuant to this agreement.

D. COST PRINCIPLES

1. The COUNTY agrees to comply with, and require all project sponsors to comply with, Office of
Management and Budget Supercircular 2 CFR Part 200, Cost Principles for STATE and LOCAL
government, Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements to STATE
and LOCAL governments.

2. COUNTY will assure that its fund recipients will be obligated to agree that (a) Contract Cost
Principles and Procedures, 48 CFR, Federal Acquisition Regulations System, Chapter 1, part 31, et
seq., shall be used to determine the allowability of individual project cost items and (b) Those parties
shall comply with Federal Administrative Procedures in accordance with 2 CFR Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements to STATE and LOCAL
governments. Every sub-recipient receiving funds as a contractor or sub-contractor under this
agreement shall comply with federal administrative procedures in accordance with 2 CFR Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements to STATE and LOCAL
governments.

3. Any fund expenditures for costs for which COUNTY has received payment or credit that are
determined by subsequent audit to be unallowable under Office of Management and Budget
Supercircular, 2 CFR Part 200, are subject to repayment by COUNTY to STATE. Should COUNTY fall
to reimburse funds due STATE within 30 days or demand, or within

Non-MPO-Co. E/M (N) Page 2 of 4 (Rev. 04/09/2018 )



such other period as may be agreed in writing between the parties hereto, STATE is authorized to
intercept and withhold future payments due COUNTY from STATE of any third-party source, including,
but not limited to, the State Treasurer, the State Controller and the CTC.

E. THIRD PARTY CONTRACTING

1) COUNTY shall not award a construction contract over $10,000 or other contracts over $25,000
[excluding professional service contracts of the type which are required to be procured in accordance
with Government Code Sections 4525 (d), (e) and (f)] on the basis of a noncompetitive negotiation for
work to be performed using funds without the prior written approval of STATE.

2) Any subcontract or agreement entered into by COUNTY as a result of disbursing funds received
pursuant to this Agreement shall contain all of the fiscal provisions of this Agreement; and shall
mandate that travel and per diem reimbursements and third-party contract reimbursements to
subcontractors will be allowable as project costs only after those costs are incurred and paid for by the
subcontractors.

3) In addition to the above, the preaward requirements of third party contractor/consultants with
COUNTY should be consistent with Local Program Procedures as published by STATE.

F. ACCOUNTING SYSTEM

COUNTY, its contractors and subcontractors shall establish and maintain an accounting system and
records that properly accumulate and segregate fund expenditures by line item. The accounting system
of COUNTY, its contractors and all subcontractors shall conform to Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP), enable the determination of incurred costs at interim points of completion, and
provide support for reimbursement payment vouchers or invoices.

G. RIGHT TO AUDIT

For the purpose of determining compliance with this Agreement and other matters connected with the
performance of COUNTY'S contracts with third parties, COUNTY, COUNTY's contractors and
subcontractors and STATE shall each maintain and make available for inspection all books, documents,
papers, accounting records, and other evidence pertaining to the performance of such contracts,
including, but not limited to, the costs of administering those various contracts. All of the above
referenced parties shall make such materials available at their respective offices at all reasonable times
for three years from the date of final payment of funds to COUNTY. STATE, the California State
Auditor, or any duly authorized representative of STATE or the United States Department of
Transportation, shall each have access to any books, records, and documents that are pertinent for
audits, examinations, excerpts, and transactions, and COUNTY shall furnish copies thereof if
requested.

H. TRAVEL AND SUBSISTENCE

Payments to only COUNTY for travel and subsistence expenses of COUNTY forces and its
subcontractors claimed for reimbursement or applied as local match credit shall not exceed rates
authorized to be paid exempt non-represented State employees under

Non-MPO-Co. E/M (N) Page 3 of 4 (Rev. 04/09/2018 )



current State Department of Personnel Administration (DPA) rules. If the rates invoiced are in excess of
those authorized DPA rates, then COUNTY is responsible for the cost difference and any overpayments
shall be reimbursed to STATE on demand.

STATE OF CALIFORNIA COUNTY OF MONO
Department Of Transportation

By: By:
Office of Project Management Oversight
Division of Local Assistance

Title:

Date Date:

Non-MPO-Co. E/M (N) Page 4 of 4 (Rev. 04/09/2018 )



(é"“ OFFICE OF THE CLERK
i ’OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST

&=, Print
MEETING DATE May 21, 2024
Departments: Public Works
TIME REQUIRED PERSONS
. I . APPEARING

SUBJECT Eastside Lane Rehabilitation Project

Phase 2 - Program Supplement BEFORE THE

Agreement BOARD

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:

(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

Proposed resolution “A Resolution of the Mono County Board of Supervisors, State of California, Approving Program
Supplement Agreement No. FO20 Under Administering Agency — State Agreement No. 09-5947F 15 for the Eastside Lane
Rehabilitation Project Phase 2”.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Adopt proposed resolution.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Total programmed federal funding is $3,748,000 in the State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP). Federal
reimbursement of 88.53 percent is funded with STIP federal funds. Caltrans Toll Credits have been approved to fund the
required 11.47 percent local match. Exact costs will be based on actual bids received. [f bids received exceed programmed
STIP funding, additional STIP funding may be applied to the project depending on the availability of funds.

CONTACT NAME: Chad Senior
PHONE/EMAIL: 760 920-3496 / csenior@mono.ca.gov

SEND COPIES TO:

csenior@mono.ca.gov

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
~ YES @ NO

ATTACHMENTS:

Click to download

O Staff Report

[ Resolution

O Program Supplement Agreement No. F020
O Master Agreement 09-5947F15



javascript:history.go(0);

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=32558&ItemID=17700

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=32511&ItemID=17700

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=32512&ItemID=17700

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=32513&ItemID=17700

History

Time

5/16/2024 9:08 AM
5/16/2024 12:10 PM
5/16/2024 12:20 PM

Who
County Counsel

Finance

County Administrative Office

Approval
Yes

Yes

Yes



MONO COUNTY
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

POSTOFFICEBOX 457« 74 NORTH SCHOOL STREET* BRIDGEPORT, CALIFORNIA 93517
760.932.5440 « Fax 760.932.5441 « monopw@mono.ga.gavw.monocounty.ca.gov

Date: May 21, 2024
To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Sugersi
From: Chad Senior, Associate Engineer

Re: Adoption of Resolution Approving Program SuppleimAgreement No. FO20 with Caltrans for the
Provision of Federal Aid for the Eastside Lane Rdhation Project Phase 2

Strategic Plan Focus Area: Improve Public Safetynfrastructure & Roads

Background:

Funding for construction of Eastside Lane Rehalitin Project Phase 2 was allocated by the Caldorn
Transportation Commission (CTC) at the MarchZiZ4 CTC meeting. The Board of Supervisors autkdri
the Public Works Department to bid and award th@ept at the April 18 meeting. Authorization from the
federal government to proceed with construction7@t-was received on April 22, 2024. Subsequertllyg,
project was advertised for bids on Mono County’d Blanagement System on April 30, 2024. Bid clossg
scheduled for May 22, 2024, after which, bid pr@esvill be evaluated and the project will be aveardo the
lowest, responsible bidder. The start of constomciivill begin as soon as possible after contracirdvand
execution.

Discussion:

Prior to requesting reimbursement of STIP funds, Board is required to execute a Program Supplement
Agreement (PSA) with Caltrans for federally fundebjects. The PSA for this project is appurtenant t
Administering Agency — State Agreement for Fed@idINo. 09-5947F15 executed on February 20, 200i%e

PSA authorizes the State to disburse the apprepuatls necessary to reimburse the County for cektted to

the Eastside Lane Rehabilitation Project Phasgh2 signed PSA and attached resolution must beute@@nd
provided to Caltrans prior to invoicing for reimisament of STIP funds at project completion. Treolgion

also authorizes the Public Works Director to exe@utd process the PSA and any future documentssage

for reimbursement of funds for project construction

Please contact me at 760.924.1812 or by emaikai@ms@mono.ca.gov if you have any questions reggritiis
project.

Respectfully submitted,

A S

Chad Senior
Associate Engineer

Attachments: Resolution
Program Supplement Agreement No. F020
Master Agreement, Administering Agency — State e&gnent for Federal-Aid Projects No. 09-5947F15

Engineering * Roads & Bridges ¢ Facilities « LanevBlopment « Solid Waste
Fleet Maintenance ¢ Building Maintenance « Campgudsue Airports « Cemeteries



© 00 N oo 0o b~ w N Bk

W W W NN NN NDNDDNDNNRNNDNER R P R R B B R Rk
N P O © ® N o U0 B W N B O © 0 N O 00 M W N R O

R24-

A RESOLUTION OF THE MONO COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, STATE OF CALIFORNIA,
APPROVING PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT AGREEMENT NO. FO20 UND ER
ADMINISTERING AGENCY — STATE AGREEMENT NO. 09-5947F 15
FOR THE EASTSIDE LANE REHABILITATION PROJECT PHASE 2

WHEREAS, consistent with applicable sections of the Calif@ri®treets and Highway
Code and the State Transportation Improvement Bnog&TIP) Guidelines, Mono County ha
been allocated Federal funds to be utilized foréiabilitation of portions of Eastside Lane

from Highway 395 to Offal Road and from Cunninghiaame to Topaz Lane; and,

WHEREAS, the Eastside Lane Rehabilitation Project Phases2ps@grammed in the
2020 STIP cycle and the project has been consigtiectuded in the 5-Year Road Capital
Improvement Program as a high priority projectjudmg the most recent version approved
the Board of Supervisors on February 6, 2024; and,

WHEREAS, in order to receive said funding the County mugirape and process a

“Program Supplement Agreement” and designate a @dbdfiicial to execute and process sajid

documents.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF MONO
RESOLVES that:

SECTION ONE: The Board of Supervisors has reviewed and heappyoves the
Program Supplement Agreement No. FO20 for the E&stsane Rehabilitation Project Phase
and hereby adopts and incorporates Program Supptekgeeement No. FO20 into the existir
Administering Agency — State Agreement for FedévalNo. 09-5947F15 which was execut|
February 20, 2019; and,

[

1S

by

19




© 00 N oo 0o b~ w N Bk

W W W NN NN NDNDDNDNNRNNDNER R P R R B B R Rk
N P O © ® N o U0 B W N B O © 0 N O 00 M W N R O

execute and process future requests of this natoich will lead to the timely reimbursement

SECTION TWO: The Mono County Director of Public Works is Heyalesignated as$

the County Official authorized to execute and pssdbe afore-referenced documents; and {

County funds associated with this project.

BE IT FURTHER, RESOLVED, that the Mono County Board of Supervisors

PASSED, APPROVEDandADOPTED this 21st day of May 2024, by the following vote, t

wit:

I
i

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

ATTEST:

John Peters, Chair
Mono County Board of Supervisors

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Clerk of the Board

County Counsel

(0]

of



PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT NO. F020 Adv. Project ID Date: April 22, 2024

to 0922000021 Location: 09-MNO-0-CR
ADMINISTERING AGENCY-STATE AGREEMENT Project Number: RPL-5947(065)
E.A. Number:

FOR FEDERAL-AID PROJECTS NO 09-5947F15
Locode: 5947

This Program Supplement hereby adopts and incorporates the Administering Agency-State Agreement for Federal Aid
which was entered into between the Administering Agency and the State on 02/20/2019 and is subject to all the terms and
conditions thereof. This Program Supplement is executed in accordance with Article | of the aforementioned Master
Agreement under authority of Resolution No. approved by the Administering Agency on

(See copy attached).

The Administering Agency further stipulates that as a condition to the payment by the State of any funds derived from
sources hoted below obligated to this PROJECT, the Administering Agency accepts and will comply with the special
covenants or remarks set forth on the following pages.

PROJECT LOCATION: Eastside Lane in Walker / Coleville

TYPE OF WORK: rehabilitate existing asphalt concrete, paint markings, & replace LENGTH: 0.0(MILES)
culverts
Estimated Cost Federal Funds Matching Funds
7240 $3,748,000.00 LOCAL OTHER
$3,748,000.00 $0.00 $0.00
COUNTY OF MONO STATE OF CALIFORNIA

Department of Transportation

By By

Title Chief, Office of Project Implementation
Division of Local Assistance

Date

Attest Date

| hereby certify upon my personal knowledge that budgeted funds are available for this encumbrance:

Accounting Officer %Lﬂm; 2 %g: Date  4/23/2024 $3,748,000.00

Program Supplement 09-5947F15-F020- ISTEA Page 1 of9




1.

09-MNO-0-CR
RPL-5947(065)

SPECIAL COVENANTS OR REMARKS

A. This PROJECT is programmed to receive funding from the State Transportation
Improvement Program (STIP). Funding may be provided under one or more components. A
component(s) specific fund allocation is required, in addition to other requirements, before
reimbursable work can occur for the component(s) identified. Each allocation will be assigned
an effective date and identify the amount of funds allocated per component(s).

This PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT has been prepared to allow reimbursement of eligible
PROJECT expenditures for the component(s) allocated. The start of reimbursable
expenditures is restricted to the later of either 1) the effective date of the Master Agreement,
2) the effective date of the PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT, or 3) the effective date of the
component specific allocation.

B. STATE and ADMINISTERING AGENCY agree that additional funds made available by
future allocations will be encumbered on this PROJECT by use of a STATE approved
Allocation Letter and Finance Letter. ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees that STATE funds
available for reimbursement will be limited to the amount allocated by the California
Transportation Commission (CTC) and/or the STATE.

C. Upon ADMINISTERING AGENCY request, the CTC and/or STATE may approve
supplementary allocations, time extensions, and fund transfers between components. An
approved time extension will revise the timely use of funds criteria, outlined above, for the
component(s) and allocation(s) requested. Approved supplementary allocations, time
extensions, and fund transfers between components made after the execution of this
PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT will be documented and considered subject to the terms and
conditions thereof.

Documentation for approved supplementary allocations, time extensions, and fund transfers
between components will be a STATE approved Allocation Letter, Fund Transfer Letter, Time
Extension Letter, and Finance Letter, as appropriate.

D. This PROJECT will be administered in accordance with the CTC STIP guidelines, as
adopted or amended, and the STATE Procedures for Administering Local Grant Projects in
the State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP), the Local Assistance Program
Guidelines, and the Local Assistance Procedures Manual. The submittal of invoices for project
costs shall be in accordance with the above referenced publications and the following.

E. The ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall invoice STATE for environmental & permits, plans
specifications & estimate, and right-of-way costs no later than 180 days after the end of last
eligible fiscal year of expenditure. For construction costs, the ADMINISTERING AGENCY has
180 days after project completion to make the final payment to the contractor and prepare the
final Report of Expenditures and final invoice, and submit to STATE for verification and
payment.

Program Supplement 09-5947F15-F020- ISTEA Page 2 of9



09-MNO-0-CR
RPL-5947(065)

SPECIAL COVENANTS OR REMARKS

F. All obligations of STATE under the terms of this Agreement are subject to the appropriation
of resources by the Legislature and the encumbrance of funds under this Agreement. Funding
and reimbursement are available only upon the passage of the State Budget Act containing
these STATE funds.

G. ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees that it will only proceed with work authorized for
specific phase(s) with an "Authorization to Proceed™" and will not proceed with future phase(s)
of this project prior to receiving an "Authorization to Proceed" from the STATE for that
phase(s) unless no further State or Federal funds are needed for those future phase(s).

H. This PROJECT is subject to the timely use of funds provisions enacted by Senate Bill 45
(SB 45), approved in 1997, and subsequent CTC guidelines and State procedures approved
by the CTC and STATE, as outlined below:

Funds allocated for the environmental & permits, plan specifications & estimate, and right-of-
way components are available for expenditure until the end of the second fiscal year following
the year in which the funds were allocated.

Funds allocated for the construction component are subject to an award deadline and contract
completion deadline. ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to award the contract within 6
months of the construction fund allocation and complete the construction or vehicle purchase
contract within 36 months of award.

I. ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees, as a minimum, to submit invoices at least once every
six months commencing after the funds are encumbered for each phase by the execution of
this Project Program Supplement Agreement, or by STATE's approval of an applicable
Finance Letter. STATE reserves the right to suspend future authorizations/obligations for
Federal aid projects, or encumberances for State funded projects, as well as to suspend
invoice payments for any on-going or future project by ADMINISTERING AGENCY if
PROJECT costs have not been invoiced by ADMINISTERING AGENCY for a six-month
period.

If no costs have been invoiced for a six-month period, ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to
submit for each phase a written explanation of the absence of PROJECT activity along with
target billing date and target billing

amount.

ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to submit the final report documents that collectively
constitute a "Report of Expenditures" within one hundred eighty (180) days of PROJECT
completion. Failure of ADMINISTERING AGENCY to submit a "Final Report of Expenditures”
within 180 days of PROJECT completion will result in STATE imposing sanctions upon
ADMINISTERING AGENCY in accordance with the current Local Assistance Procedures
Manual.

Program Supplement 09-5947F15-F020- ISTEA Page 3 of9



09-MNO-0-CR
RPL-5947(065)

SPECIAL COVENANTS OR REMARKS

J. The Administering Agency shall not discriminate on the basis of race, religion, age,
disability, color, national origin, or sex in the award and performance of any Federal-assisted
contract or in the administration of its DBE Program Implementation Agreement. The
Administering Agency shall take all necessary and reasonable steps under 49 CFR Part 26 to
ensure nondiscrimination in the award and administration of Federal-assisted contracts. The
Administering Agency's DBE Implementation Agreement is incorporated by reference in this
Agreement. Implementation of the DBE Implementation Agreement, including but not limited
to timely reporting of DBE commitments and utilization, is a legal obligation and failure to carry
out its terms shall be treated as a violation of this Agreement. Upon notification to the
Administering Agency of its failure to carry out its DBE Implementation Agreement, the State
may impose sanctions as provided for under 49 CFR Part 26 and may, in appropriate cases,
refer the matter for enforcement under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and/or the Program Fraud Civil
Remedies Act of 1986 (31 U.S.C. 3801 et seq.).

K. Any State and Federal funds that may have been encumbered for this project are available
for disbursement for limited periods of time. For each fund encumbrance the limited period is
from the start of the fiscal year that the specific fund was appropriated within the State Budget
Act to the applicable fund Reversion Date shown on the State approved project finance letter.
Per Government Code Section 16304, all project funds not liquidated within these periods will
revert unless an executed Cooperative Work Agreement extending these dates is requested
by the ADMINISTERING AGENCY and approved by the California Department of Finance.

ADMINISTERING AGENCY should ensure that invoices are submitted to the District Local
Assistance Engineer at least 75 days prior to the applicable fund Reversion Date to avoid the
lapse of applicable funds. Pursuant to a directive from the State Controller's Office and the
Department of Finance; in order for payment to be made, the last date the District Local
Assistance Engineer can forward an invoice for payment to the Department's Local Programs
Accounting Office for reimbursable work for funds that are going to revert at the end of a
particular fiscal year is May 15th of the particular fiscal year. Notwithstanding the unliquidated
sums of project specific State and Federal funding remaining and available to fund project
work, any invoice for reimbursement involving applicable funds that is not received by the
Department's Local Programs Accounting Office at least 45 days prior to the applicable fixed
fund Reversion Date will not be paid. These unexpended funds will be irrevocably reverted by
the Department's Division of Accounting on the applicable fund Reversion Date.

L. Award information shall be submitted by the ADMINISTERING AGENCY to the District

Local Assistance Engineer within 60 days of project contract award and prior to the submittal
of the ADMINISTERING AGENCY'S first invoice for the construction contract.

Program Supplement 09-5947F15-F020- ISTEA Page 4 of9



09-MNO-0-CR
RPL-5947(065)

SPECIAL COVENANTS OR REMARKS

Failure to do so will cause a delay in the State processing invoices for the construction phase.
Please refer to Section 15.7 "Award Package" of the Local Assistance Procedures Manual.

M. As a condition for receiving federal-aid highway funds for the PROJECT, the Administering
Agency certifies that NO members of the elected board, council, or other key decision makers
are on the Federal Government Exclusion List. Exclusions can be found at www.sam.gov.

A. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall conform to all State statutes, regulations and procedures
(including those set forth in the Local Assistance Procedures Manual and the Local
Assistance Program Guidelines, hereafter collectively referred to as "LOCAL ASSISTANCE
PROCEDURES") relating to the federal-aid program, all Title 23 Code of Federal Regulation
(CFR) and 2 CFR Part 200 federal requirements, and all applicable federal laws, regulations,
and policy and procedural or instructional memoranda, unless otherwise specifically waived
as designated in the executed project-specific PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT.

B. Invoices shall be formatted in accordance with LOCAL ASSISTANCE PROCEDURES.

C. ADMINISTERING AGENCY must have at least one copy of supporting backup
documentation for costs incurred and claimed for reimbursement by ADMINISTERING
AGENCY. ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to submit supporting backup documentation
with invoices if requested by State. Acceptable backup documentation includes, but is not
limited to, agency's progress payment to the contractors, copies of cancelled checks showing
amounts made payable to vendors and contractors, and/or a computerized summary of
PROJECT costs.

D. Indirect Cost Allocation Plan/Indirect Cost Rate Proposals (ICAP/ICRP), Central Service
Cost Allocation Plans and related documentation are to be prepared and provided to STATE
(Caltrans Audits & Investigations) for review and approval prior to ADMINISTERING AGENCY
seeking reimbursement of indirect costs incurred within each fiscal year being claimed for
State and federal reimbursement. ICAPs/ICRPs must be prepared in accordance with the
requirements set forth in 2 CFR, Part 200, Chapter 5 of the Local Assistance Procedural
Manual, and the ICAP/ICRP approval procedures established by STATE.

E. STATE will withhold the greater of either two (2) percent of the total of all federal funds
encumbered for each PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT or $40,000 untii ADMINISTERING
AGENCY submits the Final Report of Expenditures for each completed PROGRAM
SUPPLEMENT PROJECT.

F. Payments to ADMINISTERING AGENCY for PROJECT-related travel and subsistence
(per diem) expenses of ADMINISTERING AGENCY forces and its

Program Supplement 09-5947F15-F020- ISTEA Page 5 of9



09-MNO-0-CR
RPL-5947(065)

SPECIAL COVENANTS OR REMARKS

contractors and subcontractors claimed for reimbursement or as local match credit shall not
exceed rates authorized to be paid rank and file STATE employees under current State
Department of Personnel Administration (DPA) rules. If the rates invoiced by
ADMINISTERING AGENCY are in excess of DPA rates, ADMINISTERING AGENCY is
responsible for the cost difference, and any overpayments inadvertently paid by STATE shall
be reimbursed to STATE by ADMINISTERING AGENCY on demand within thirty (30) days of
such invoice.

G. ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to comply with 2 CFR, Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirement for Federal Awards.

H.  ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees, and will assure that its contractors and
subcontractors will be obligated to agree, that Contract Cost Principles and Procedures, 48
CFR, Federal Acquisition Regulations System, Chapter 1, Part 31, et seq., shall be used to
determine the allowability of individual PROJECT cost items.

I. Every sub-recipient receiving PROJECT funds under this AGREEMENT shall comply with 2
CFR, Part 200, 23 CFR, 48 CFR Chapter 1, Part 31, Local Assistance Procedures, Public
Contract Code (PCC) 10300-10334 (procurement of goods), PCC 10335-10381 (non-A&E
services), and other applicable STATE and FEDERAL regulations.

J. Any PROJECT costs for which ADMINISTERING AGENCY has received payment or credit
that are determined by subsequent audit to be unallowable under 2 CFR, Part 200, 23 CFR,
48 CFR, Chapter 1, Part 31, and other applicable STATE and FEDERAL regulations, are
subject to repayment by ADMINISTERING AGENCY to STATE.

K. STATE reserves the right to conduct technical and financial audits of PROJECT WORK
and records and ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees, and shall require its contractors and
subcontractors to agree, to cooperate with STATE by making all appropriate and relevant
PROJECT records available for audit and copying as required by the following paragraph:

ADMINISTERING AGENCY, ADMINISTERING AGENCY'S contractors and subcontractors,
and STATE shall each maintain and make available for inspection and audit by STATE, the
California State Auditor, or any duly authorized representative of STATE or the United States
all books, documents, papers, accounting records, and other evidence pertaining to the
performance of such contracts, including, but not limited to, the costs of administering those
various contracts and ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall furnish copies thereof if requested.
All of the above referenced parties shall make such AGREEMENT, PROGRAM
SUPPLEMENT, and contract materials available at their respective offices at all

Program Supplement 09-5947F15-F020- ISTEA Page 6 of9



09-MNO-0-CR
RPL-5947(065)

SPECIAL COVENANTS OR REMARKS

reasonable times during the entire PROJECT period and for three (3) years from the date of
submission of the final expenditure report by the STATE to the FHWA.

L. ADMINISTERING AGENCY, its contractors and subcontractors shall establish and
maintain a financial management system and records that properly accumulate and segregate
reasonable, allowable, and allocable incurred PROJECT costs and matching funds by line
item for the PROJECT. The financial management system of ADMINISTERING AGENCY, its
contractors and all subcontractors shall conform to Generally Accepted Accounting Principles,
enable the determination of incurred costs at interim points of completion, and provide support
for reimbursement payment vouchers or invoices set to or paid by STATE.

M. ADMINISTERING AGENCY is required to have an audit in accordance with the Single
Audit Act of 2 CFR 200 if it expends $750,000 or more in Federal Funds in a single fiscal year
of the Catalogue of Federal Domestic Assistance.

N. ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to include all PROGRAM SUPPLEMENTS adopting
the terms of this AGREEMENT in the schedule of projects to be examined in
ADMINISTERING AGENCY's annual audit and in the schedule of projects to be examined
under its single audit prepared in accordance with 2 CFR, Part 200.

O. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall not award a non-A&E contract over $5,000, construction
contracts over $10,000, or other contracts over $25,000 [excluding professional service
contracts of the type which are required to be procured in accordance with Government Code
sections 4525 (d), (e) and (f)] on the basis of a noncompetitive negotiation for work to be
performed under this AGREEMENT without the prior written approval of STATE. Contracts
awarded by ADMINISTERING AGENCY, if intended as local match credit, must meet the
requirements set forth in this AGREEMENT regarding local match funds.

P. Any subcontract entered into by ADMINISTERING AGENCY as a result of this
AGREEMENT shall contain provisions B, C, F, H, I, K, and L under Section 2 of this
agreement.

The ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall construct the PROJECT in accordance with the scope
of work presented in the application and approved by the California Transportation
Commission. Any changes to the approved PROJECT scope without the prior expressed
approval of the California Transportation Commission are ineligible for reimbursement and
may result in the entire PROJECT becoming ineligible for reimbursement.

Appendix E of the Title VI Assurances (US DOT Order 1050.2A)

During the performance of this agreement, the ADMINISTERING AGENCY,
ADMINISTERING AGENCY'S contractors and subcontractor, (hereinafter referred to as the
“"contractor") agrees to comply with the following nondiscrimination statutes and authorities;
including but not limited to:

Program Supplement 09-5947F15-F020- ISTEA Page 7 of9



09-MNO-0-CR
RPL-5947(065)

SPECIAL COVENANTS OR REMARKS

Pertinent Nondiscrimination Authorities:

A. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252), (prohibits
discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin); and 49 CFR Part 21.

B. The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, (42
U.S.C. 4601), (prohibits unfair treatment of persons displaced or whose property has been
acquired because of Federal or Federal-aid programs and projects);

C. Federal-Aid Highway Act of 1973, (23 U.S.C. 324 et seq.), (prohibits discrimination on the
basis of sex);

D. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, (29 U.S.C. 794 et seq.), as amended,
(prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability); and 49 CFR Part 27,

E. The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, (42 U.S.C. 6101 et seq.), (prohibits
discrimination on the basis of age);

F. Airport and Airway Improvement Act of 1982, (49 U.S.C. 4 71, Section 4 7123), as
amended, (prohibits discrimination based on race, creed, color, national origin, or sex);
G. The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, (PL 100-209), (Broadened the scope, coverage
and applicability of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, The Age Discrimination Act of 1975
and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, by expanding the definition of the terms
“programs or

activities"” to include all of the programs or activities of the Federal-aid recipients,
subrecipients and contractors, whether such programs or activities are Federally funded or
not);

H. Titles Il and 1l of the Americans with Disabilities Act, which prohibit discrimination on the
basis of disability in the operation of public entities, public and private transportation systems,
places of public accommodation, and certain testing entities (42 U.S.C. 12131-12189) as
implemented by Department of Transportation regulations at 49 C.F.R. parts 37 and 38;
I. The Federal Aviation Administration's Nondiscrimination statute (49 U.S.C. 47123) (prohibits
discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, and sex);

J. Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority
Populations and Low-Income Populations, which ensures nondiscrimination against minority
populations by discouraging programs, policies, and activities with disproportionately high and
adverse human health or environmental effects on minority and low-income populations;

K. Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English
Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin discrimination includes
discrimination because of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure compliance with Title
VI, you must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have meaningful access to
your programs (70 Fed. Reg. at 74087 to 74100);

Program Supplement 09-5947F15-F020- ISTEA Page 8 of9



09-MNO-0-CR
RPL-5947(065)

SPECIAL COVENANTS OR REMARKS

L. Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits you from
discriminating because of sex in education programs or activities (20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq).

Program Supplement 09-5947F15-F020- ISTEA Page 9 of9



MASTER AGREEMENT
ADMINISTERING AGENCY-STATE AGREEMENT FOR
FEDERAL-AID PROJECTS

09 Mono County

District Administering Agency

Agreement No. 09-5947F15

This AGREEMENT, is entered into effective this 20 day of (2PN, 20 17, by and
between Mono County, hereinafter referred to as "ADMINISTERING AGENCY," and the State of
California, acting by and through its Department of Transportation (Caltrans), hereinafter referred
to as "STATE", and together referred to as "PARTIES" or individually as a "PARTY."

RECITALS:

1. WHEREAS, the Congress of the United States has enacted the Intermodal Surface
Transportation Efficiency Act (ISTEA) of 1991 and subsequent Transportation Authorization Bills
to fund transportation programs; and

2. WHEREAS, the Legislature of the State of California has enacted legislation by which certain
federal-aid funds may be made available for use on local transportation related projects of public
entities qualified to act as recipients of these federal-aid funds in accordance with the intent of
federal law; and

3. WHEREAS, before federal funds will be made available for a specific program project,
ADMINISTERING AGENCY and STATE are required to enter into an agreement to establish
terms and conditions applicable to the ADMINISTERING AGENCY when receiving federal funds
for a designated PROJECT facility and to the subsequent operation and maintenance of that
completed facility.

NOW, THEREFORE, the PARTIES agree as follows:

Page 1 of 26



ARTICLE | - PROJECT ADMINISTRATION

1. This AGREEMENT shall have no force or effect with respect to any program project unless and
until a project-specific "Authorization/Agreement Summary”, herein referred to as "E-76"
document, is approved by STATE and the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA).

2. The term "PROJECT", as used herein, means that authorized transportation related project and
related activities financed in part with federal-aid funds as more fully-described in an
"Authorization/ Agreement Summary" or "Amendment/Modification Summary”, herein referred to
as "E-76" or "E-76 (AMOD)" document authorized by STATE and the Federal Highway
Administration (FHWA).

3. The E-76/E-76 (AMOD) shall designate the party responsible for implementing PROJECT, type
of work and location of PROJECT.

4. The PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT sets out special covenants as a condition for the
ADMINISTERING AGENCY to receive federal-aid funds from/through STATE for designated
PROJECT. The PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT shall also show these federal funds that have been
initially encumbered for PROJECT along with the matching funds to be provided by
ADMINISTERING AGENCY and/or others. Execution of PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT by the
PARTIES shall cause ADMINISTERING AGENCY to adopt all of the terms of this AGREEMENT
as though fully set forth therein in the PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT. Unless otherwise expressly
delegated in a resolution by the governing body of ADMINISTERING AGENCY, and with written
concurrence by STATE, the PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT shall be approved and managed by the
governing body of ADMINISTERING AGENCY.

5. ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to execute and return each project-specific PROGRAM
SUPPLEMENT within ninety (90) days of receipt. The PARTIES agree that STATE may suspend
future authorizations/obligations and invoice payments for any on-going or future federal-aid
project performed by ADMINISTERING AGENCY if any project-specific PROGRAM
SUPPLEMENT is not returned within that ninety (90) day period unless otherwise agreed by
STATE in writing.

6. ADMINISTERING AGENCY further agrees, as a condition to the release and payment of
federal funds encumbered for the PROJECT described in each PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT, to
comply with the terms and conditions of this AGREEMENT and all of the agreed-upon Special
Covenants or Remarks incorporated within the PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT, and
Cooperative/Contribution Agreement where appropriate, defining and identifying the nature of the
specific PROJECT.

7. Federal, state and matching funds will not participate in PROJECT work performed in advance
of the approval of the E-76 or E-76 (AMOD), unless otherwise stated in the executed project-
specific PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT. ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees that it will only proceed
with the work authorized for that specific phase(s) on the project-specific E-76 or E-76 (AMOD).
ADMINISTERING AGENCY further agrees to not proceed with future phases of PROJECT prior to
receiving an E-76 (AMOD) from STATE for that phase(s) unless no further federal funds are
needed or for those future phase(s).

Page 2 of 26



8. That PROJECT or portions thereof, must be included in a federally approved Federal Statewide
Transportation Improvement Program (FSTIP) prior to ADMINISTERING AGENCY submitting the
"Request for Authorization".

9. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall conform to all state statutes, regulations and procedures
(including those set forth in the Local Assistance Procedures Manual and the Local Assistance
Program Guidelines, hereafter collectively referred to as "LOCAL ASSISTANCE PROCEDURES")
relating to the federal-aid program, all Title 23 Code of Federal Regulation (CFR) and 2 CFR part
200 federal requirements, and all applicable federal laws, regulations, and policy and procedural
or instructional memoranda, unless otherwise specifically waived as designated in the executed
project-specific PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT.

10. If PROJECT is not on STATE-owned right of way, PROJECT shall be constructed in
accordance with LOCAL ASSISTANCE PROCEDURES that describes minimum statewide design
standards for local agency streets and roads. LOCAL ASSISTANCE PROCEDURES for projects
off the National Highway System (NHS) allow STATE to accept either the STATE's minimum
statewide design standards or the approved geometric design standards of ADMINISTERING
AGENCY. Additionally, for projects off the NHS, STATE will accept ADMINISTERING AGENCY-
approved standard specifications, standard plans, materials sampling and testing quality
assurance programs that meet the conditions described in the then current LOCAL ASSISTANCE
PROCEDURES.

11. If PROJECT involves work within or partially within STATE-owned right-of-way, that
PROJECT shall also be subject to compliance with the policies, procedures and standards of the
STATE Project Development Procedures Manual and Highway Design Manual and, where
appropriate, an executed Cooperative Agreement between STATE and ADMINISTERING
AGENCY that outlines the PROJECT responsibilities and respective obligations of the PARTIES.
ADMINISTERING AGENCY and its contractors shall each obtain an encroachment permit through
STATE prior to commencing any work within STATE rights of way or work which affects STATE
facilities.

12. When PROJECT is not on the State Highway System but includes work to be performed by a
railroad, the contract for such work shall be prepared by ADMINISTERING AGENCY or by
STATE, as the PARTIES may hereafter agree. In either event, ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall
enter into an agreement with the railroad providing for future maintenance of protective devices or
other facilities installed under the contract.

13. If PROJECT is using STATE funds, the Department of General Services, Division of the State
Architect, or its designee, shall review the contract PS&E for the construction of buildings,
structures, sidewalks, curbs and related facilities for accessibility and usability. ADMINISTERING
AGENCY shall not award a PROJECT construction contract for these types of improvements until
the State Architect has issued written approval stating that the PROJECT plans and specifications
comply with the provisions of sections 4450 and 4454 of the California Government Code, if
applicable. Further requirements and guidance are provided in Title 24 of the California Code of
Regulations.

14. ADMINISTERING AGENCY will advertise, award and administer PROJECT in accordance

with the current LOCAL ASSISTANCE PROCEDURES unless otherwise stated in the executed
project-specific PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT.

Page 3 of 26



15. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall provide or arrange for adequate supervision and inspection
of each PROJECT. While consultants may perform supervision and inspection work for PROJECT
with a fully qualified and licensed engineer, ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall provide a full-time
employee to be in responsible charge of each PROJECT who is not a consultant.

16. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall submit PROJECT-specific contract award documents to
STATE's District Local Assistance Engineer within sixty (60) days after contract award. A copy of
the award documents shall also be included with the submittal of the first invoice for a construction
contract by ADMINISTERING AGENCY.

17. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall submit the final report documents that collectively constitute
a "Report of Expenditures" within one hundred eighty (180) days of PROJECT completion. Failure
by ADMINISTERING AGENCY to submit a "Report of Expenditures" within one hundred eighty
(180) days of project completion will result in STATE imposing sanctions upon ADMINISTERING
AGENCY in accordance with the current LOCAL ASSISTANCE PROCEDURES.

18. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall comply with: (i) section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973
which prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability in federally assisted programs; (ii) the
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990 which prohibits discrimination on the basis of
disability irrespective of funding; and (iii) all applicable regulations and guidelines issued pursuant
to both the Rehabilitation Act and the ADA.

19. The Congress of the United States, the Legislature of the State of California and the Governor
of the State of California, each within their respective jurisdictions, have prescribed certain
nondiscrimination requirements with respect to contract and other work financed with public funds.
ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to comply with the requirements of the FAIR EMPLOYMENT
PRACTICES ADDENDUM (Exhibit A attached hereto) and the NONDISCRIMINATION
ASSURANCES (Exhibit B attached hereto). ADMINISTERING AGENCY further agrees that any
agreement entered into by ADMINISTERING AGENCY with a third party for performance of
PROJECT-related work shall incorporate Exhibits A and B (with third party's name replacing
ADMINISTERING AGENCY) as essential parts of such agreement to be enforced by that third
party as verified by ADMINISTERING AGENCY.

Page 4 of 26



ARTICLE Il - RIGHTS OF WAY

1. No contract for the construction of a federal-aid PROJECT shall be awarded until all necessary
rights of way have been secured. Prior to the advertising for construction of PROJECT,
ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall certify and, upon request, shall furnish STATE with evidence
that all necessary rights-of way are available for construction purposes or will be available by the
time of award of the construction contract.

2. ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to indemnify and hold STATE harmless from any liability
that may result in the event the right of way for a PROJECT, including, but not limited to, being
clear as certified or if said right of way is found to contain hazardous materials requiring treatment
or removal to remediate in accordance with Federal and State laws. The furnishing of right of way
as provided for herein includes, in addition to all real property required for the PROJECT, title free
and clear of obstructions and encumbrances affecting PROJECT and the payment, as required by
applicable law, of relocation costs and damages to remainder real property not actually taken but
injuriously affected by PROJECT. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall pay, from its own non-
matching funds, any costs which arise out of delays to the construction of PROJECT because
utility facilities have not been timely removed or relocated, or because rights of way were not
available to ADMINISTERING AGENCY for the orderly prosecution of PROJECT work.

3. Subject to STATE approval and such supervision as is required by LOCAL ASSISTANCE
PROCEDURES over ADMINISTERING AGENCY's right of way acquisition procedures,
ADMINISTERING AGENCY may claim reimbursement from federal funds for expenditures
incurred in purchasing only the necessary rights of way needed for the PROJECT after crediting
PROJECT with the fair market value of any excess property retained and not disposed of by
ADMINISTERING AGENCY.

4. When real property rights are to be acquired by ADMINISTERING AGENCY for a PROJECT,
said ADMINISTERING AGENCY must carry out that acquisition in compliance with all applicable
State and Federal laws and regulations, in accordance with State procedures as published in
State's current LOCAL ASSISTANCE PROCEDURES and STATE's Right-of-Way Manual,
subject to STATE oversight to ensure that the completed work is acceptable under the Federal
Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, as amended.

5. Whether or not federal-aid is to be requested for right of way, should ADMINISTERING

AGENCY, in acquiring right of way for PROJECT, displace an individual, family, business, farm
operation, or non-profit organization, relocation payments and services will be provided as set

forth in 49 CFR, Part 24. The public will be adequately informed of the relocation payments and
services which will be available, and, to the greatest extent practicable, no person lawfully
occupying real property shall be required to move from his/her dwelling or to move his/her
business or farm operation without at least ninety (90) days written notice from ADMINISTERING
AGENCY. ADMINISTERING AGENCY will provide STATE with specific assurances, on each
portion of the PROJECT, that no person will be displaced until comparable decent, safe and
sanitary replacement housing is available within a reasonable period of time prior to displacement,
and that ADMINISTERING AGENCY's relocation program is realistic and adequate to provide
orderly, timely and efficient relocation of PROJECT-displaced persons as provided in 49 CFR,

Part 24.

Page 5 of 26



6. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall, along with recording the deed or instrument evidencing title
in the name of the ADMINISTERING AGENCY or their assignee, also record an Agreement
Declaring Restrictive Covenants (ADRC) as a separate document incorporating the assurances

included within Exhibits A and B and Appendices A, B, C and D of this AGREEMENT, as
appropriate.

Page 6 of 26



ARTICLE Il - MAINTENANCE AND MANAGEMENT

1. ADMINISTERING AGENCY will maintain and operate the property acquired, developed,
constructed, rehabilitated, or restored by PROJECT for its intended public use until such time as
the parties might amend this AGREEMENT to otherwise provide. With the approval of STATE,
ADMINISTERING AGENCY or its successors in interest in the PROJECT property may transfer
this obligation and responsibility to maintain and operate PROJECT property for that intended
public purpose to another public entity.

2. Upon ADMINISTERING AGENCY's acceptance of the completed federal-aid construction
contract or upon contractor being relieved of the responsibility for maintaining and protecting
PROJECT, ADMINISTERING AGENCY will be responsible for the maintenance, ownership,
liability, and the expense thereof, for PROJECT in a manner satisfactory to the authorized
representatives of STATE and FHWA and if PROJECT falls within the jurisdictional limits of
another Agency or Agencies, it is the duty of ADMINISTERING AGENCY to facilitate a separate
maintenance agreement(s) between itself and the other jurisdictional Agency or Agencies
providing for the operation, maintenance, ownership and liability of PROJECT. Until those
agreements are executed, ADMINISTERING AGENCY will be responsible for all PROJECT
operations, maintenance, ownership and liability in a manner satisfactory to the authorized
representatives of STATE and FHWA. If, within ninety (90) days after receipt of notice from
STATE that a PROJECT, or any portion thereof, is not being properly operated and maintained
and ADMINISTERING AGENCY has not satisfactorily remedied the conditions complained of, the
approval of future federal-aid projects of ADMINISTERING AGENCY will be withheld until the
PROJECT shall have been put in a condition of operation and maintenance satisfactory to STATE
and FHWA. The provisions of this section shall not apply to a PROJECT that has been vacated
through due process of law with STATE's concurrence.

3. PROJECT and its facilities shall be maintained by an adequate and well-trained staff of
engineers and/or such other professionals and technicians as PROJECT reasonably requires.
Said operations and maintenance staff may be employees of ADMINISTERING AGENCY, another
unit of government, or a contractor under agreement with ADMINISTERING AGENCY. All
maintenance will be performed at regular intervals or as required for efficient operation of the
complete PROJECT improvements.

Page 7 of 26



ARTICLE IV - FISCAL PROVISIONS

1. All contractual obligations of STATE are subject to the appropriation of resources by the
Legislature and the allocation of resources by the California Transportation Commission (CTC).

2. STATE'S financial commitment of federal funds will occur only upon the execution of this
AGREEMENT, the authorization of the project-specific E-76 or E-76 (AMOD), the execution of
each project-specific PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT, and STATE's approved finance letter.

3. ADMINISTERING AGENCY may submit signed invoices in arrears for reimbursement of
participating PROJECT costs on a regular basis once the project-specific PROGRAM
SUPPLEMENT has been executed by STATE.

4. ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees, at a minimum, to submit invoices at least once every six
(6) months commencing after the funds are encumbered on either the project-specific PROGRAM
SUPPLEMENT or through a project-specific finance letter approved by STATE. STATE reserves
the right to suspend future authorizations/obligations, and invoice payments for any on-going or
future federal-aid project by ADMINISTERING AGENCY if PROJECT costs have not been
invoiced by ADMINISTERING AGENCY for a six (6) month period.

5. Invoices shall be submitted on ADMINISTERING AGENCY letterhead that includes the address
of ADMINISTERING AGENCY and shall be formatted in accordance with LOCAL ASSISTANCE
PROCEDURES.

6. ADMINISTERING AGENCY must have at least one copy of supporting backup documentation
for costs incurred and claimed for reimbursement by ADMINISTERING AGENCY.
ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to submit supporting backup documentation with invoices if
requested by State. Acceptable backup documentation includes, but is not limited to, agency's
progress payment to the contractors, copies of cancelled checks showing amounts made payable
to vendors and contractors, and/or a computerized summary of PROJECT costs.

7. Payments to ADMINISTERING AGENCY can only be released by STATE as reimbursement of
actual allowable PROJECT costs already incurred and paid for by ADMINISTERING AGENCY.

8. Indirect Cost Allocation Plans/Indirect Cost Rate Proposals (ICAP/ICRP), Central Service Cost
Allocation Plans and related documentation are to be prepared and provided to STATE (Caltrans
Audits & Investigations) for review and approval prior to ADMINISTERING AGENCY seeking
reimbursement of indirect costs incurred within each fiscal year being claimed for State and
federal reimbursement. ICAPs/ICRPs must be prepared in accordance with the requirements set
forth in 2 CFR, Part 200, Chapter 5 of the Local Assistance Procedural Manual, and the
ICAP/ICRP approval procedures established by STATE.

9. Once PROJECT has been awarded, STATE reserves the right to de-obligate any excess
federal funds from the construction phase of PROJECT if the contract award amount is less than
the obligated amount, as shown on the PROJECT E-76 or E-76 (AMOD).

10. STATE will withhold the greater of either two (2) percent of the total of all federal funds
encumbered for each PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT or $40,000 until ADMINISTERING AGENCY
submits the Final Report of Expenditures for each completed PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT
PROJECT.

Page 8 of 26



11. The estimated total cost of PROJECT, the amount of federal funds obligated, and the required
matching funds may be adjusted by mutual consent of the PARTIES hereto with a finance letter, a
detailed estimate, if required, and approved E-76 (AMOD). Federal-aid funding may be increased
to cover PROJECT cost increases only if such funds are available and FHWA concurs with that
increase.

12. When additional federal-aid funds are not available, ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees that
the payment of federal funds will be limited to the amounts authorized on the PROJECT specific
E-76 / E-76 (AMOD) and agrees that any increases in PROJECT costs must be defrayed with
ADMINISTERING AGENCY's own funds.

13. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall use its own non-federal funds to finance the local share of
eligible costs and all expenditures or contract items ruled ineligible for financing with federal funds.
STATE shall make the determination of ADMINISTERING AGENCY's cost eligibility for federal
fund financing of PROJECT costs.

14. ADMINISTERING AGENCY will reimburse STATE for STATE's share of costs for work
performed by STATE at the request of ADMINISTERING AGENCY. STATE's costs shall include
overhead assessments in accordance with section 8755.1 of the State Administrative Manual.

15. Federal and state funds allocated from the State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP)
are subject to the timely use of funds provisions enacted by Senate Bill 45, approved in 1997, and
subsequent STIP Guidelines and State procedures approved by the CTC and STATE.

16. Federal funds encumbered for PROJECT are available for liquidation for a period of six (6)
years from the beginning of the State fiscal year the funds were appropriated in the State Budget.
State funds encumbered for PROJECT are available for liquidation only for six (6) years from the
beginning of the State fiscal year the funds were appropriated in the State Budget. Federal or
state funds not liquidated within these periods will be reverted unless a Cooperative Work
Agreement (CWA) is submitted by ADMINISTERING AGENCY and approved by the California
Department of Finance (per Government Code section 16304). The exact date of fund reversion
will be reflected in the STATE signed finance letter for PROJECT.

17. Payments to ADMINISTERING AGENCY for PROJECT-related travel and subsistence (per
diem) expenses of ADMINISTERING AGENCY forces and its contractors and subcontractors
claimed for reimbursement or as local match credit shall not exceed rates authorized to be paid
rank and file STATE employees under current State Department of Personnel Administration
(DPA) rules. If the rates invoiced by ADMINISTERING AGENCY are in excess of DPA rates,
ADMINISTERING AGENCY is responsible for the cost difference, and any overpayments
inadvertently paid by STATE shall be reimbursed to STATE by ADMINISTERING AGENCY on
demand within thirty (30) days of such invoice. ‘

18. ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to comply with 2 CFR, Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirement for Federal Awards.

19. ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees, and will ensure that its contractors and subcontractors
will be obligated to agree, that Contract Cost Principles and Procedures, 48 CFR, Federal
Acquisition Regulations System, Chapter 1, Part 31, et seq., shall be used to determine the
allowability of individual PROJECT cost items.

Page 9 of 26



20. Every sub-recipient receiving PROJECT funds under this AGREEMENT shall comply with 2
CFR, Part 200, 23 CFR, 48 CFR Chapter 1, Part 31, Local Assistance Procedures, Public
Contract Code (PCC) 10300-10334 (procurement of goods), PCC 10335-10381 (non-A&E
services), and other applicable STATE and FEDERAL regulations.

21. Any PROJECT costs for which ADMINISTERING AGENCY has received payment or credit
that are determined by subsequent audit to be unallowable under 2 CFR, Part 200, 23 CFR, 48
CFR, Chapter 1, Part 31, and other applicable STATE and FEDERAL regulations, are subject to
repayment by ADMINISTERING AGENCY to STATE.

22. Should ADMINISTERING AGENCY fail to refund any moneys due upon written demand by
STATE as provided hereunder or should ADMINISTERING AGENCY breach this AGREEMENT
by failing to complete PROJECT without adequate justification and approval by STATE, then,
within thirty 30 days of demand, or within such other period as may be agreed to in writing
between the PARTIES, STATE, acting through the State Controller, the State Treasurer, or any
other public entity or agency, may withhold or demand a transfer of an amount equal to the
amount paid by or owed to STATE from future apportionments, or any other funds due
ADMINISTERING AGENCY from the Highway Users Tax Fund or any other sources of funds,
and/or may withhold approval of future ADMINISTERING AGENCY federal-aid projects.

23. Should ADMINISTERING AGENCY be declared to be in breach of this AGREEMENT or
otherwise in default thereof by STATE, and if ADMINISTERING AGENCY is constituted as a joint
powers authority, special district, or any other public entity not directly receiving funds through the
State Controller, STATE is authorized to obtain reimbursement from whatever sources of funding
are available, including the withholding or transfer of funds, pursuant to Article IV - 22, from those
constituent entities comprising a joint powers authority or by bringing of an action against
ADMINISTERING AGENCY or its constituent member entities, to recover all funds provided by
STATE hereunder.

24. ADMINISTERING AGENCY acknowledges that the signatory party represents the
ADMINISTERING AGENCY and further warrants that there is nothing within a Joint Powers
Agreement, by which ADMINISTERING AGENCY was created, if any exists, that would restrict or
otherwise limit STATE's ability to recover State funds improperly spent by ADMINISTERING
AGENCY in contravention of the terms of this AGREEMENT.

Page 10 of 26



ARTICLE V
AUDITS, THIRD PARTY CONTRACTING, RECORDS RETENTION AND REPORTS

1. STATE reserves the right to conduct technical and financial audits of PROJECT work and
records and ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees, and shall require its contractors and
subcontractors to agree, to cooperate with STATE by making all appropriate and relevant
PROJECT records available for audit and copying as required by paragraph three (3) of ARTICLE
V.

2. ADMINISTERING AGENCY, its contractors and subcontractors shall establish and maintain a
financial management system and records that properly accumulate and segregate reasonable,
allowable, and allocable incurred PROJECT costs and matching funds by line item for the
PROJECT. The financial management system of ADMINISTERING AGENCY, its contractors and
all subcontractors shall conform to Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, enable the
determination of incurred costs at interim points of completion, and provide support for
reimbursement payment vouchers or invoices sent to or paid by STATE.

3. ADMINISTERING AGENCY, ADMINISTERING AGENCY'"s contractors and subcontractors, and
STATE shall each maintain and make available for inspection and audit by STATE, the California
State Auditor, or any duly authorized representative of STATE or the United States all books,
documents, papers, accounting records, and other evidence pertaining to the performance of such
contracts, including, but not limited to, the costs of administering those various contracts and
ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall furnish copies thereof if requested. All of the above referenced
parties shall make such AGREEMENT, PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT and contract materials
available at their respective offices at all reasonable times during the entire PROJECT period and
for three (3) years from the date of submission of the final expenditure report by the STATE to the
FHWA.

4. ADMINISTERING AGENCY is required to have an audit in accordance with the Single Audit Act
of 2 CFR 200 if it expends $750,000 or more in Federal Funds in a single fiscal year. The Federal
Funds received under a PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT are a part of the Catalogue of Federal
Domestic Assistance (CFDA) 20.205.

5. ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to include all PROGRAM SUPPLEMENTS adopting the
terms of this AGREEMENT in the schedule of projects to be examined in ADMINISTERING
AGENCY's annual audit and in the schedule of projects to be examined under its single audit
prepared in accordance with 2 CFR, Part 200.

6. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall not award a non-A&E contract over $5,000, construction
contract over $10,000, or other contracts over $25,000 (excluding professional service contracts of
the type which are required to be procured in accordance with Government Code sections 4525
(d), (e) and (f)) on the basis of a noncompetitive negotiation for work to be performed under this
AGREEMENT without the prior written approval of STATE. Contracts awarded by
ADMINISTERING AGENCY, if intended as local match credit, must meet the requirements set
forth in this AGREEMENT regarding local match funds.

Page 11 of 26



7. Any subcontract entered into by ADMINISTERING AGENCY as a result of this AGREEMENT
shall contain provisions 5, 6, 17, 19 and 20 of ARTICLE 1V, FISCAL PROVISIONS, and provisions
1, 2, and 3 of this ARTICLE V, AUDITS, THIRD-PARTY CONTRACTING RECORDS
RETENTION AND REPORTS.

8. To be eligible for local match credit, ADMINISTERING AGENCY must ensure that local match
funds used for a PROJECT meet the fiscal provisions requirements outlined in ARTICLE IV in the
same manner as required of all other PROJECT expenditures.

9. In addition to the above, the pre-award requirements of third-party contractor/consultants with
ADMINISTERING AGENCY should be consistent with the LOCAL ASSISTANCE PROCEDURES.

Page 12 of 26



ARTICLE VI - FEDERAL LOBBYING ACTIVITIES CERTIFICATION

1. By execution of this AGREEMENT, ADMINISTERING AGENCY certifies, to the best of the
signatory officer's knowledge and belief, that:

A. No federal or state appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of
ADMINISTERING AGENCY, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or
employee of any STATE or federal agency, a member of the State Legislature or United States
Congress, an officer or employee of the Legislature or Congress, or any employee of a Member of
the Legislature or Congress in connection with the awarding of any STATE or federal contract,
including this AGREEMENT, the making of any STATE or federal loan, the entering into of any
cooperative contract, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any
STATE or federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative contract.

B. If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid, or will be paid, to any person
for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any federal agency, a member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress or an employee of a member of Congress in
connection with this AGREEMENT, grant, local, or cooperative contract, ADMINISTERING
AGENCY shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Rep Lobbying," in
accordance with the form instructions.

C. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this
AGREEMENT and each PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT was or will be made or entered into.
Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this AGREEMENT
imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, United States Code. Any party who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000
for each such failure.

2. ADMINISTERING AGENCY also agrees by signing this AGREEMENT that the language of this

certification will be included in all lower tier sub-agreements which exceed $100,000 and that all
such sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

Page 13 of 26



ARTICLE VII - MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

1. ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to use all state funds reimbursed hereunder only for
transportation purposes that are in conformance with Article XIX of the California State
Constitution and the relevant Federal Regulations.

2. This AGREEMENT is subject to any additional restrictions, limitations, conditions, or any statute
enacted by the State Legislature or adopted by the CTC that may affect the provisions, terms, or
funding of this AGREEMENT in any manner.

3. ADMINISTERING AGENCY and the officers and employees of ADMINISTERING AGENCY,
when engaged in the performance of this AGREEMENT, shall act in an independent capacity and
not as officers, employees or agents of STATE or the federal government.

4. Each project-specific E-76 or E-76 (AMOD), PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT and Finance Letter
shall separately establish the terms and funding limits for each described PROJECT funded under
the AGREEMENT. No federal or state funds are obligated against this AGREEMENT.

5. ADMINISTERING AGENCY certifies that neither ADMINISTERING AGENCY nor its principals
are suspended or debarred at the time of the execution of this AGREEMENT. ADMINISTERING
AGENCY agrees that it will notify STATE immediately in the event a suspension or a debarment
occurs after the execution of this AGREEMENT.

6. ADMINISTERING AGENCY warrants, by execution of this AGREEMENT, that no person or
selling agency has been employed or retained to solicit or secure this AGREEMENT upon an
agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee,
excepting bona fide employees or bona fide established commercial or selling agencies
maintained by ADMINISTERING AGENCY for the purpose of securing business. For breach or
violation of this warranty, STATE has the right to annul this AGREEMENT without liability, pay
only for the value of the work actually performed, or in STATE's discretion, to deduct from the
price of consideration, or otherwise recover, the full amount of such commission, percentage,
brokerage, or contingent fee.

7. In accordance with Public Contract Code section 10296, ADMINISTERING AGENCY hereby
certifies under penalty of perjury that no more than one final unappealable finding of contempt of
court by a federal court has been issued against ADMINISTERING AGENCY within the immediate
preceding two (2) year period because of ADMINISTERING AGENCY's failure to comply with an
order of a federal court that orders ADMINISTERING AGENCY to comply with an order of the
National Labor Relations Board.

8. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall disclose any financial, business, or other relationship with
STATE, FHWA or Federal Transit Administration (FTA) that may have an impact upon the
outcome of this AGREEMENT. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall also list current contractors who
may have a financial interest in the outcome of this AGREEMENT.

9. ADMINISTERING AGENCY hereby certifies that it does not have nor shall it acquire any

financial or business interest that would conflict with the performance of PROJECT under this
AGREEMENT.

Page 14 of 26



- 10. ADMINISTERING AGENCY warrants that this AGREEMENT was not obtained or secured
through rebates, kickbacks or other unlawful consideration either promised or paid to any STATE
employee. For breach or violation of this warranty, STATE shall have the right, in its discretion, to
terminate this AGREEMENT without liability, to pay only for the work actually performed, or to
deduct from the PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT price or otherwise recover the full amount of such
rebate, kickback, or other unlawful consideration.

11. Any dispute concerning a question of fact arising under this AGREEMENT that is not disposed
of by agreement shall be decided by the STATE's Contract Officer who may consider any written
or verbal evidence submitted by ADMINISTERING AGENCY. The decision of the Contract Officer,
issued in writing, shall be conclusive and binding on the PARTIES on all questions of fact
considered and determined by the Contract Officer.

12. Neither the pending of a dispute nor its consideration by the Contract Officer will excuse
ADMINISTERING AGENCY from full and timely performance in accordance with the terms of this
AGREEMENT.

13. Neither ADMINISTERING AGENCY nor any officer or employee thereof is responsible for any
injury, damage or liability occurring by reason of anything done or omitted to be done by STATE,
under or in connection with any work, authority or jurisdiction arising under this AGREEMENT. It is
understood and agreed that STATE shall fully defend, indemnify and save harmless the
ADMINISTERING AGENCY and all of its officers and employees from all claims, suits or actions
of every name, kind and description brought forth under, including, but not limited to, tortious,
contractual, inverse condemnation and other theories or assertions of liability occurring by reason
of anything done or omitted to be done by STATE under this AGREEMENT.

14. Neither STATE nor any officer or employee thereof shall be responsible for any injury, damage
or liability occurring by reason of anything done or omitted to be done by ADMINISTERING
AGENCY under, or in connection with, any work, authority or jurisdiction arising under this
AGREEMENT. It is understood and agreed that ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall fully defend,
indemnify and save harmless STATE and all of its officers and employees from all claims, suits or
actions of every name, kind and description brought forth under, including, but not limited to,
tortious, contractual, inverse condemnation or other theories or assertions of liability occurring by
reason of anything done or omitted to be done by ADMINISTERING AGENCY under this
AGREEMENT.

15. STATE reserves the right to terminate funding for any PROJECT upon written notice to
ADMINISTERING AGENCY in the event that ADMINISTERING AGENCY fails to proceed with
PROJECT work in accordance with the project-specific PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT, the bonding
requirements if applicable, or otherwise violates the conditions of this AGREEMENT and/or
PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT, or the funding allocation such that substantial performance is
significantly endangered.

Page 15 of 26



16. No termination shall become effective if, within thirty (30) days after receipt of a Notice of

Termination, ADMINISTERING AGENCY either cures the default involved or, if not reasonably
susceptible of cure within said thirty (30) day period, ADMINISTERING AGENCY proceeds
thereafter to complete the cure in a manner and time line acceptable to STATE. Any such
termination shall be accomplished by delivery to ADMINISTERING AGENCY of a Notice of
Termination, which notice shall become effective not less than thirty (30) days after receipt,
specifying the reason for the termination, the extent to which funding of work under this
AGREEMENT is terminated and the date upon which such termination becomes effective, if
beyond thirty (30) days after receipt. During the period before the effective termination date,
ADMINISTERING AGENCY and STATE shall meet to attempt to resolve any dispute. In the event
of such termination, STATE may proceed with the PROJECT work in a manner deemed proper by
STATE. If STATE terminates funding for PROJECT with ADMINISTERING AGENCY, STATE
shall pay ADMINISTERING AGENCY the sum due ADMINISTERING AGENCY under the
PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT and/or STATE approved finance letter prior to termination, provided,
however, ADMINISTERING AGENCY is not in default of the terms and conditions of this
AGREEMENT or the project-specific PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT and that the cost of PROJECT
completion to STATE shall first be deducted from any sum due ADMINISTERING AGENCY.

17. In case of inconsistency or conflicts with the terms of this AGREEMENT and that of a project-
specific PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT, the terms stated in that PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT shall
prevail over those in this AGREEMENT.

18. Without the written consent of STATE, this AGREEMENT is not assignable by
ADMINISTERING AGENCY either in whole or in part.

19. No alteration or variation of the terms of this AGREEMENT shall be valid unless made in
writing and signed by the PARTIES, and no oral understanding or agreement not incorporated
herein shall be binding on any of the PARTIES.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the PARTIES have executed this AGREEMENT by their duly
authorized officers.

]

STATE OF CALIFOR

DEPARTME%F WA [ON  Mono County
By /j/ ) A0 ey %ﬁ//ﬁ

7 7 17 [

Tond DvB LN
F Chief, Office of Project Implementation DLz, o pumbiLic works
Division of Local Assistance Mono County

Representative Name & Title
(Authorized Governing Body Representative)

Date 9?// //? f’// / 0 / ? Date FEBIRVAIYY |2, 22/9

Page 16 of 26



EXHIBIT A

FAIR EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES ADDENDUM

1. In the performance of this Agreement, ADMINISTERING AGENCY will not discriminate against
any employee for employment because of race, color, sex, sexual orientation, religion, ancestry or
national origin, physical disability, medical condition, marital status, political affiliation, family and
medical care leave, pregnancy leave, or disability leave. ADMINISTERING AGENCY will take
affirmative action to ensure that employees are treated during employment without regard to their
race, sex, sexual orientation, color, religion, ancestry, or national origin, physical disability, medical
condition, marital status, political affiliation, family and medical care leave, pregnancy leave, or
disability leave. Such action shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment;
upgrading; demotion or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates
of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship.
ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall post in conspicuous places, available to employees for
employment, notices to be provided by STATE setting forth the provisions of this Fair Employment
section.

2. ADMINISTERING AGENCY, its contractor(s) and all subcontractors shall comply with the
provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Government Code Section 1290-0 et seq.),
and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2,
Section 7285.0 et seq.). The applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing
Commission implementing Government Code, Section 12900(a-f), set forth in Chapter 5 of
Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations are incorporated into this AGREEMENT
- by reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. Each of the ADMINISTERING
AGENCY'S contractors and all subcontractors shall give written notice of their obligations under
this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other
agreements, as appropriate.

3. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of
this clause in all contracts and subcontracts to perform work under this AGREEMENT.

4. ADMINISTERING AGENCY will permit access to the records of employment, employment
advertisements, application forms, and other pertinent data and records by STATE, the State Fair
Employment and Housing Commission, or any other agency of the State of California designated
by STATE, for the purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with the Fair Employment
section of this Agreement.

5. Remedies for Willful Violation:

(a) STATE may determine a willful violation of the Fair Employment provision to have occurred
upon receipt of a final judgment to that effect from a court in an action to which ADMINISTERING
AGENCY was a party, or upon receipt of a written notice from the Fair Employment and Housing
Commission that it has investigated and determined that ADMINISTERING AGENCY has violated
the Fair Employment Practices Act and had issued an order under Labor Code Section 1426
which has become final or has obtained an injunction under Labor Code Section 1429.

Page 17 of 26



(b) For willful violation of this Fair Employment Provision, STATE shall have the right to terminate
this Agreement either in whole or in part, and any loss or damage sustained by STATE in securing
the goods or services thereunder shall be borne and paid for by ADMINISTERING AGENCY and
by the surety under the performance bond, if any, and STATE may deduct from any moneys due
or thereafter may become due to ADMINISTERING AGENCY, the difference between the price
named in the Agreement and the actual cost thereof to STATE to cure ADMINISTERING
AGENCY's breach of this Agreement.

Page 18 of 26



EXHIBITB

NONDISCRIMINATION ASSURANCES

ADMINISTERING AGENCY HEREBY AGREES THAT, as a condition to receiving any federal
financial assistance from the STATE, acting for the U.S. Department of Transportation, it will
comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 78 Stat. 252, 42 U.S.C. 2000d-42 U.S.C.
2000d-4 (hereinafter referred to as the ACT), and all requirements imposed by or pursuant to Title
49, Code of Federal Regulations, Department of Transportation, Subtitle A, Office of the
Secretary, Part 21, "Nondiscrimination in Federally-Assisted Programs of the Department of
Transportation - Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964" (hereinafter referred to as
the REGULATIONS), the Federal-aid Highway Act of 1973, and other pertinent directives, to the
end that in accordance with the ACT, REGULATIONS, and other pertinent directives, no person in
the United States shall, on the grounds of race, color, sex, national origin, religion, age or
disability, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to
discrimination under any program or activity for which ADMINISTERING AGENCY receives
federal financial assistance from the Federal Department of Transportation. ADMINISTERING
AGENCY HEREBY GIVES ASSURANCE THAT ADMINISTERING AGENCY will promptly take
any measures necessary to effectuate this agreement. This assurance is required by subsection
21.7(a) (1) of the REGULATIONS.

More specifically, and without limiting the above general assurance, ADMINISTERING AGENCY
hereby gives the following specific assurances with respect to its federal-aid Program:

1. That ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees that each "program" and each "facility" as defined in
subsections 21.23 (e) and 21.23 (b) of the REGULATIONS, will be (with regard to a "program")
conducted, or will be (with regard to a “facility”) operated in compliance with all requirements
imposed by, or pursuant to, the REGULATIONS.

2. That ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall insert the following notification in all solicitations for bids
for work or material subject to the REGULATIONS made in connection with the federal-aid
Program and, in adapted form, in all proposals for negotiated agreements:

ADMINISTERING AGENCY hereby notifies all bidders that it will affirmatively ensure that in any
agreement entered into pursuant to this advertisement, disadvantaged business enterprises will
be afforded full opportunity to submit bids in response to this invitation and will not be
discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, sex, national origin, religion, age, or disability
in consideration for an award.

3. That ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall insert the clauses of Appendix A of this assurance in
every agreement subject to the ACT and the REGULATIONS.

4. That the clauses of Appendix B of this Assurance shall be included as a covenant running with
the land, in any deed effecting a transfer of real property, structures, or improvements thereon, or
interest therein.

Page 19 of 26



5. That where ADMINISTERING AGENCY receives federal financial assistance to construct a
facility, or part of a facility, the Assurance shall extend to the entire facility and facilities operated in
connection therewith.

6. That where ADMINISTERING AGENCY receives federal financial assistance in the form, or for
the acquisition, of real property or an interest in real property, the Assurance shall extend to rights
to space on, over, or under such property.

7. That ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall include the appropriate clauses set forth in Appendix C
and D of this Assurance, as a covenant running with the land, in any future deeds, leases, permits,
licenses, and similar agreements entered into by the ADMINISTERING AGENCY with other
parties:

Appendix C;

(a) for the subsequent transfer of real property acquired or improved under the federal-aid
Program; and

Appendix D;

(b) for the construction or use of or access to space on, over, or under real property acquired, or
improved under the federal-aid Program.

8. That this assurance obligates ADMINISTERING AGENCY for the period during which federal
financial assistance is extended to the program, except where the federal financial assistance is to
provide, or is in the form of, personal property or real property or interest therein, or structures, or
improvements thereon, in which case the assurance obligates ADMINISTERING AGENCY or any
transferee for the longer of the following periods:

(a) the period during which the property is used for a purpose for which the federal financial
assistance is extended, or for another purpose involving the provision of similar services or
benefits; or

(b) the period during which ADMINISTERING AGENCY retains ownership or possession of the
property.

9. That ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall provide for such methods of administration for the
program as are found by the U.S. Secretary of Transportation, or the official to whom he delegates
specific authority, to give reasonable guarantee that ADMINISTERING AGENCY, other recipients,
sub-grantees, applicants, sub-applicants, transferees, successors in interest, and other
participants of federal financial assistance under such program will comply with all requirements
imposed by, or pursuant to, the ACT, the REGULATIONS, this Assurance and the Agreement.

10. That ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees that the United States and the State of California

have a right to seek judicial enforcement with regard to any matter arising under the ACT, the
REGULATIONS, and this Assurance.

Page 20 of 26



11. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall not discriminate on the basis of race, religion, age, disability,
color, national origin or sex in the award and performance of any STATE assisted contract or in
the administration on its DBE Program or the requirements of 49 CFR Part 26. ADMINISTERING
AGENCY shall take all necessary and reasonable steps under 49 CFR Part 26 to ensure non-
discrimination in the award and administration of STATE assisted contracts. ADMINISTERING
AGENCY'S DBE Implementation Agreement is incorporated by reference in this AGREEMENT.
Implementation of this program is a legal obligation and failure to carry out its terms shall be
treated as a violation of this agreement. Upon notification to the recipient of its failure to carry out
its approved DBE Implementation Agreement, STATE may impose sanctions as provided for
under 49 CFR Part 26 and may, in appropriate cases, refer the matter for enforcement under 18
USC 1001 and/or the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1985 (31USC 3801 et seq.)

THESE ASSURANCES are given in consideration of and for the purpose of obtaining any and all
federal grants, loans, agreements, property, discounts or other federal financial assistance
extended after the date hereof to ADMINISTERING AGENCY by STATE, acting for the U.S.
Department of Transportation, and is binding on ADMINISTERING AGENCY, other recipients,
subgrantees, applicants, sub-applicants, transferees, successors in interest and other participants
in the federal-aid Highway Program.

Page 21 of 26



APPENDIX A TO EXHIBIT B

During the performance of this Agreement, ADMINISTERING AGENCY, for itself, its assignees
and successors in interest (hereinafter collectively referred to as ADMINISTERING AGENCY)
agrees as follows:

(1) Compliance with Regulations: ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall comply with the regulations
relative to nondiscrimination in federally assisted programs of the Department of Transportation,
Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 21, as they may be amended from time to time,
(hereinafter referred to as the REGULATIONS), which are herein incorporated by reference and
made a part of this agreement.

(2) Nondiscrimination: ADMINISTERING AGENCY, with regard to the work performed by it during
the AGREEMENT, shall not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, sex, national origin,
religion, age, or disability in the selection and retention of sub-applicants, including procurements
of materials and leases of equipment. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall not participate either
directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by Section 21.5 of the REGULATIONS,
including employment practices when the agreement covers a program set forth in Appendix B of
the REGULATIONS.

(3) Solicitations for Sub-agreements, Including Procurements of Materials and Equipment: In all
solicitations either by competitive bidding or negotiation made by ADMINISTERING AGENCY for
work to be performed under a Sub-agreement, including procurements of materials or leases of
equipment, each potential sub-applicant or supplier shall be notified by ADMINISTERING
AGENCY of the ADMINISTERING AGENCY's obligations under this Agreement and the
REGULATIONS relative to nondiscrimination on the grounds of race, color, or national origin.

(4) Information and Reports: ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall provide all information and reports
required by the REGULATIONS, or directives issued pursuant thereto, and shall permit access to
ADMINISTERING AGENCY's books, records, accounts, other sources of information, and its
facilities as may be determined by STATE or FHWA to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with
such REGULATIONS or directives. Where any information required of ADMINISTERING
AGENCY is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish this information,
ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall so certify to STATE or the FHWA as appropriate, and shall set
forth what efforts ADMINISTERING AGENCY has made to obtain the information.

(5) Sanctions for Noncompliance: In the event of ADMINISTERING AGENCY's noncompliance
with the nondiscrimination provisions of this agreement, STATE shall impose such agreement
sanctions as it or the FHWA may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to:

(@) withholding of payments to ADMINISTERING AGENCY under the Agreement within a
reasonable period of time, not to exceed 90 days; and/or

(b) cancellation, termination or suspension of the Agreement, in whole or in part.

Page 22 of 26



(6) Incorporation of Provisions: ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall include the provisions of
paragraphs (1) through (6) in every sub-agreement, including procurements of materials and
leases of equipment, unless exempt by the REGULATIONS, or directives issued pursuant thereto.
ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall take such action with respect to any sub-agreement or
procurement as STATE or FHWA may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including
sanctions for noncompliance, provided, however, that, in the event ADMINISTERING AGENCY
becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a sub-applicant or supplier as a result of
such direction, ADMINISTERING AGENCY may request STATE enter into such litigation to
protect the interests of STATE, and, in addition, ADMINISTERING AGENCY may request the
United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

APPENDIX B TO EXHIBIT B

Page 23 of 26



The following clauses shall be included in any and all deeds effecting or recording the transfer of
PROJECT real property, structures or improvements thereon, or interest therein from the United
States.

(GRANTING CLAUSE)

NOW, THEREFORE, the U.S. Department of Transportation, as authorized by law, and upon the
condition that ADMINISTERING AGENCY will accept title to the lands and maintain the project
constructed thereon, in accordance with Title 23, United States Code, the Regulations for the
Administration of federal-aid for Highways and the policies and procedures prescribed by the
Federal Highway Administration of the Department of Transportation and, also in accordance with
and in compliance with the Regulations pertaining to and effectuating the provisions of Title VI of
the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (78 Stat. 252; 42 U.S.C. 2000d to 2000d-4), does hereby remise,
release, quitclaim and convey unto the ADMINISTERING AGENCY all the right, title, and interest
of the U.S. Department of Transportation in, and to, said lands described in Exhibit "A" attached
hereto and made a part hereof.

(HABENDUM CLAUSE)

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD said lands and interests therein unto ADMINISTERING AGENCY and
its successors forever, subject, however, to the covenant, conditions, restrictions and reservations
herein contained as follows, which will remain in effect for the period during which the real
property or structures are used for a purpose for which federal financial assistance is extended or
for another purpose involving the provision of similar services or benefits and shall be binding on
ADMINISTERING AGENCY, its successors and assigns.

ADMINISTERING AGENCY, in consideration of the conveyance of said lands and interests in
lands, does hereby covenant and agree as a covenant running with the land for itself, its
successors and assigns,

(1) that no person shall on the grounds of race, color, sex, national origin, religion, age or
disability, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to
discrimination with regard to any facility located wholly or in part on, over, or under such lands
hereby conveyed (;) (and) *

(2) that ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall use the lands and interests in lands so conveyed, in
compliance with all requirements imposed by or pursuant to Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations,
Department of Transportation, Subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, Part 21, Non-discrimination in
federally-assisted programs of the Department of Transportation - Effectuation of Title VI of the

Civil Rights Act of 1964, and as said Regulations may be amended (;) and

(3) that in the event of breach of any of the above-mentioned nondiscrimination conditions, the
U.S. Department of Transportation shall have a right to re-enter said lands and facilities on said
land, and the above-described land and facilities shall thereon revert to and vest in and become
the absolute property of the U.S. Department of Transportation and its assigns as such interest
existed prior to this deed.”

* Reverter clause and related language to be used only when it is determined that such a clause is
necessary in order to effectuate the purposes of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964.

Page 24 of 26



APPENDIX C TO EXHIBIT B

The following clauses shall be included in any and all deeds, licenses, leases, permits, or similar
instruments entered into by ADMINISTERING AGENCY, pursuant to the provisions of Assurance
7(a) of Exhibit B.

The grantee (licensee, lessee, permittee, etc., as appropriate) for himself, his heirs, personal
representatives, successors in interest, and assigns, as a part of the consideration hereof, does
hereby covenant and agree (in the case of deeds and leases add "as covenant running with the
land") that in the event facilities are constructed, maintained, or otherwise operated on the said
property described in this (deed, license, lease, permit, etc.) for a purpose for which a U.S.
Department of Transportation program or activity is extended or for another purpose involving the
provision of similar services or benefits, the (grantee, licensee, lessee, permittee, etc.), shall
maintain and operate such facilities and services in compliance with all other requirements
imposed pursuant to Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, U.S. Department of Transportation,
Subtitle A, Office of Secretary, Part 21, Nondiscrimination in federally-assisted programs of the
Department of Transportation - Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and as said
Regulations may be amended.

(Include in licenses, leases, permits, etc.)*

That in the event of breach of any of the above nondiscrimination covenants, ADMINISTERING
AGENCY shall have the right to terminate the (license, lease, permit etc.) and to re-enter and
repossess said land and the facilities thereon, and hold the same as if said (license, lease, permit,
etc.) had never been made or issued.

(Include in deeds)*
That in the event of breach of any of the above nondiscrimination covenants, ADMINISTERING
AGENCY shall have the right to re-enter said land and facilities thereon, and the above-

described lands and facilities shall thereupon revert to and vest in and become the absolute
property of ADMINISTERING AGENCY and its assigns.

* Reverter clause and related language to be used only when it is determined that such a clause is
necessary in order to effectuate the purposes of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964.

Page 25 of 26



APPENDIX D TO EXHIBIT B

The following shall be included in all deeds, licenses, leases, permits, or similar agreements
entered into by the ADMINISTERING AGENCY, pursuant to the provisions of Assurance 7 (b) of
Exhibit B.

The grantee (licensee, lessee, permittee, etc., as appropriate) for himself, his personal
representatives, successors in interest and assigns, as a part of the consideration hereof, does
hereby covenant and agree (in the case of deeds, and leases add "as a covenant running with the
land") that:

(1) no person on the ground of race, color, sex, national origin, religion, age or disability, shall be
excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or otherwise subjected to discrimination in
the use of said facilities;

(2) that in the construction of any improvements on, over, or under such land and the furnishing of
services thereon, no person on the ground of race, color, sex, national origin, religion, age or
disability shall be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or otherwise be subjected
to discrimination; and

(3) that the (grantee, licensee, lessee, permittee, etc.,) shall use the premises in compliance with
the Regulations.

(Include in licenses, leases, permits, etc.)*

That in the event of breach of any of the above nondiscrimination covenants, ADMINISTERING
AGENCY shall have the right to terminate the (license, lease, permit, etc.) and to re-enter and
repossess said land and the facilities thereon, and hold the same as if said (license, lease, permit,
etc.) had never been made or issued.

(Include in deeds)*

That in the event of breach of any of the above nondiscrimination covenants, ADMINISTERING
AGENCY shall have the right to re-enter said land and facilities thereon, and the above-

described lands and facilities shall thereupon revert to and vest in and become the absolute
property of ADMINISTERING AGENCY, and its assigns.

* Reverter clause and related language to be used only when it is determined that such a clause is
necessary in order to effectuate the purposes of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964.

Page 26 of 26



Headquarters Division of
Local Assistance

FEB 20 2019
from Local Agency



O 00 NN U AW N -

W W W N NN N DN NN N NN e e e e e e e e e e
N —~ © O 0 N & i h W N = O VvV ® NN s W NN = O

A RESOLUTION OF THE MONO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AGREEMENTS WITH THE CALIFORNIA
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR FEDERAL AND STATE AID FUNDING
FOR THE AIRPORT ROAD REHABILITATION PROJECT

WHEREAS, the Airport Road Rehabilitation Project (“Project”) consists of the
rehabilitation of Airport Road and the portion of Hot Creek Hatchery Road from Highway 395 to
the Mammoth/Yosemite Airport, in Mono County; and

WHEREAS, the Project was originally identified as a priority project by the Board of
Supervisors in 2013 and thereafter programmed for State Transportation Improvement Program
(“STIP”) funding in 2014; however, the Project was delayed significantly because of a lack of
available funding in the 2016 STIP funding cycle; and

WHEREAS, the Project has been consistently included in the County’s 5-Year Road
Capital Improvement Program as a high priority project, including the most recent version of the
5-Year Road Capital Improvement Program approved by the Board of Supervisors on October 2,
2018; and

WHEREAS, consistent with applicable sections of the California Streets and Highways
Code and STIP Guidelines prepared by the California Department of Transportation
(“Caltrans”), the County has been allocated certain federal and state funds to be utilized for the
Project, and

WHEREAS, in order to receive such funds, the County must approve and execute
certain Caltrans agreements governing its use of such funds when contracting for the services
and/or work necessary to prepare, plan, and complete the Project; and

WHEREAS, in order to receive funds necessary to complete the Project following the
approval and execution of these Caltrans agreements, the County will be required to approve and

execute certain allocation letter(s) and finance letter(s) for additional components of the Project.




=T - (N R - L I — N VS B S

W W W N NN N N NN NN e e o e e e e e e e
N — © YW &® 3 & W s W N = O OV 0 NN AW N - O

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF
MONO RESOLVES that:

SECTION ONE: It has reviewed and hereby approves the following agreement between
the County and Caltrans governing the receipt and use of federal and state aid for the Project and
other similar projects: “Master Agreement: Administering Agency-State Agreement for Federal-
Aid Project [Caltrans Agreement No. 09-5947F15]” (“Master Agreement”).

SECTION TWO: It has reviewed and hereby approves the following agreement between
the County and Caltrans governing the receipt and use of federal and state aid for environmental
review and permitting related to the Project: “Program Supplement No. FO018 to Administering
Agency-State Agreement for Federal-Aid Projects No. 09-5947F15” (“Project Supplement”).

SECTION THREE: It hereby authorizes and directs the Director of the Mono County
Public Works Department to execute and process both the Master Agreement and the Project
Supplement.

SECTION FOUR: It hereby authorizes and directs the Director of the Mono County
Public Works Department to execute and process all future allocation letter and finance letter
with Caltrans for the Project; provided that such future allocation letter(s) and finance letter(s)
are substantially similar to, contain terms and conditions consistent with those included in the
Project Supplement, and will lead to the timely reimbursement of County funds associated with
the completion of the Project.

SECTION FIVE: It hereby directs the Director of the Mono County Public Works
Department to bring future project supplements (and future allocation letters and future finance

letters) for other projects to the Board of Supervisors for its separate review and approval.

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 12 day of February, 2019, by the following vote,

to wit:

AYES: Supervisors Corless, Gardner, Halferty, Peters and Stump.
NOES: None.

ABSENT: None.

ABSTAIN:None.




[§]

[F]

wn

FA

U K}o f\c'l\-&

Clerk of the Board

The foregoing instrument is a full, true and correct copy
of an original record on file in my office.

2/13/19

Clerk-Recorder / Registrar / Clerk of the Board
County of Mono

g State of Caljfornia
|
s By C-
% Ww

Attest:

John Peters, Chair
Mono County Board of Supervisors

4

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

County Wel

)

(/
'/
27
R %
.I

]
3




~N
—_
-
8
i
:Hh =
Tv. A
= -
e
< 5
=
T -

GOT aTioh bits aut! Hui 8 & tamvuzin prucpeot adT
8310 vt an 9t no Meoen Isnigeo ¢

%G

¥\

2SitA
ool et bo Ael0 \ 1evaips® | veroseRhald
ato fa el

gimetia to oisie

%
5 ™
N -‘ '7. - : wa ‘
st i b i O W U N



MONO COUNTY
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

POsT OFFICE Box 457 ¢ 74 NORTH SCHOOL STREET  BRIDGEPORT, CALIFORNIA 93517
760.932.5440 » Fax 760.932.5441 « monopw@mono.ca.gov « www.monocounty.ca.gov

TRANSMITTAL

To:  Mr. John Hoole
Department of Transportation
Division of Local Assistance
P.O. Box 942874, MS#1
Sacramento, CA 94274-0001

From: Garrett Higerd 6RH’
Date: February 12, 2019
Re: Administering Agency-State Master Agreement No. 09-5947F15

Program Supplement Agreement No. 018-F for the Airport Road Rehabilitation
Project, RSTPL-5947(059)

Via: [ First Class Mail ~ [] Inter-Office Mail ~ [] Hand-Delivery [] Other: email

See certified Board of Supervisors resolutions and signed agreements attached. If you have
any questions, feel free to give me a call.

File: Airport Road Rehabilitation Project

Parks « Community Centers » Roads & Bridges » Land Development = Solid Waste
Building Maintenance « Campgrounds e Airports « Cemeteries » Fleet Maintenance



w g# OFFICE OF THE CLERK

A

£5.%) OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST

=L Print
|

MEETING DATE May 21, 2024
Departments: Public Works

TIME REQUIRED PERSONS
. . APPEARING
SUBJECT Mono County Jail Site Work Bid
Package Authorization BEFORE THE
BOARD
AGENDA DESCRIPTION:

(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

Authorization to Bid and Award Project 9646-4 Site Preparation in support of the Bridgeport Jail Project.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

1. Approve the attached bid package and authorize the Public Works Department to advertise the project for bids.
Authorize the Public Works Director to execute the contract contained in the attached bid package with the lowest
responsible bidder in an amount equal or less than the estimated cost, plus 15 percent contingency, and issue change
orders from time to time as necessary. 2. Authorize the Public Works Director to reject all bids if no bid is received that is
less than the estimated cost, plus 15 percent contingency.

FISCAL IMPACT:

This project is expected to cost approximately $400,000. Actual costs will be known upon bid opening. The project is
funded with unspent debt proceeds in the Criminal Justice Facility Capital Projects Fund.

CONTACT NAME: Kalen Dodd
PHONE/EMAIL: 760 616 4926 / kdodd@mono.ca.gov

SEND COPIES TO:
kdodd@mono.ca.gov

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
¥ YES ™ NO

ATTACHMENTS:

Click to download

[ StaffReport

[ Project Manual [ [FB

[ Project Manual IT Sample Contract

[ Project Manual III Technical Specifications



javascript:history.go(0);

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=32612&ItemID=17702

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=32528&ItemID=17702

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=32529&ItemID=17702

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=32530&ItemID=17702

O Project Manual III Technical Specifications Geotech Investigation

[ Project Manual III Technical Specifications Geotech Memo

[ Project Manual III Plans

History

Time

5/14/2024 2:08 PM
5/16/2024 12:37 PM
5/16/2024 12:46 PM

Who
County Counsel

Finance

County Administrative Office

Approval
Yes

Yes

Yes



                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=32531&ItemID=17702

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=32532&ItemID=17702

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=32533&ItemID=17702

MONO COUNTY
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

PosT OFFICE Box 457 74 NORTH SCHOOL STREET ® BRIDGEPORT, CALIFORNIA 93517
760.932.5440 « Fax 760.932.5441 « monopw@mono.ca.gov ¢ www.monocounty.ca.gov

Date: May 212024
To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board ofeupors
From: Kalen Dodd, County Engineer

Re: Authorization to Bid and Award of project 9646Site Preparation in support of the
Bridgeport Jail Project

Background:

With Senate Bill (SB) 844, Mono County was awarde®?25,000,000 grant to assist in replacing
the Mono County Jail in Bridgeport. The Board stdd the option to construct a new facility at
the Old Hospital site in February 2017. To prep#methe Jail Construction, the existing

Hospital was demolished, and some site utilitieseweconfigured to serve the clinic and
paramedic building that will remain.

Discussion:

The project geotechnical engineer recommendedtitieasoils beneath the new jail be densified
by a process known as Rapid Impact Compaction (RIith will mitigate the potential for
liquefaction and settlement of the soil during ssgc event.

This project will densify the soils with RIC, antsa include precise grading of the building pad,
in preparation for the new jail foundation.

This project is expected to cost approximately $d00. Actual costs will be known upon bid
opening. This work will be paid with Mono County's Criminddistice Facility Capital Projects Fund.

Please contact me at kdodd@mono.ca.gov, if you Aayejuestions regarding this item.
Respectfully submitted,

Zh bty

Kalen Dodd
County Engineer

Attached: Proposed IFB — Agreements and relakubiEs

Parks ¢ Community Centers e Roads & Bridges ¢ Land Development e Solid Waste
Building Maintenance ¢ Campgrounds e Airports « Cemeteries ¢ Fleet Maintenance



PROJECT MANUAL

MONO COUNTY JAIL

SITE PREPARATION PROJECT
Project # 9646-4

MONO COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Invitation for Bids
Instructions to Bidders
Proposal Forms
Sample Standard Agreement
Technical Specifications

CONTRACTING AGENCY:
COUNTY OF MONO

Department of Public Works

PO Box 457

74 North School Street
Bridgeport, California 93517

760.932.5452

May 2024

NO MANDATORY PRE-BID MEETING:

Is scheduled. Contact
kdodd@mono.ca.gov to arrange a site visit.

BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE:

3:00 pm, Wednesday June 12% 2024
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

74 North School Street / P.O. Box 237
Bridgeport, California 93517



mailto:kdodd@mono.ca.gov

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Mono County Jail — Site Preparation

SECTION I
INVITATION FOR BIDS
INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

PROPOSAL FORMS
PROPOSAL
LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
DISCLOSURES AND CERTIFICATIONS
BIDDER’S QUALIFICATION STATEMENT

SECTION II
SAMPLE STANDARD AGREEMENT
EXHIBIT 1 GENERAL CONDITIONS
EXHIBIT 2 PREVAILING WAGES
EXHIBIT 3 BOND REQUIREMENTS
EXHIBIT 4 INVOICING, PAYMENT, AND RETENTION
EXHIBIT 5 TRENCHING

SECTION III
TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS
GEOTECHNICAL INVESTIGATION
GEOTECHNICAL DATA MEMORANDUM
CERTIFIED PAD PLANS

Site Preparation



This page intentionally left blank

Site Preparation



COUNTY OF MONO, DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

INVITATION FOR BIDS

Mono County Jail — Site Preparation Project

Notice is hereby given that the Mono County (“County”) Department of Public Works calls for
bids from qualified General Engineering contractors for the MONO COUNTY JAIL — SITE
PREPARATION PROJECT (“Project”). The purpose of this Project is to mitigate liquefaction
potential of soils with rapid impact compaction (RIC), install new underground utilities from the
street to within the new jail footprint, to precisely grade the site, and certify that the grading
matches the plan with a topographic survey. The project is in Bridgeport, CA.

Contractors and Subcontractors must be registered with the Department of Industrial
Relations. This Project is subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by the
Department of Industrial Relations.

The Project Manual provides the requirements for the Project. The Project Manual, is available
on the Mono County Bid Management system at https://bids.monocounty.ca.gov/ .

You can ask questions about the project by using the Bid Management System, or by email -
kdodd@mono.ca.gov.

Each bid shall be made on the proposal forms contained in the Project Manual and must be
accompanied by bid security in the amount of not less than 10 percent (10%) of the total bid.

In accordance with Public Contract Code section 22038, the County has the option, after
receiving and tabulating bids, to reject all bids and perform the work if the Board of Supervisors
determines, by a four-fifths vote, that the work can be performed more economically by its own
employees.

All work must be completed within 25 working days from the date of issuance of the Notice to
Proceed.

No prebid meeting is scheduled. Contractors are expected to visit the site before bidding. The
site is open to the public and may be visited at any time during normal working hours.

Bids may be mailed to the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, P.O. Box 237, Bridgeport,
California, 93517, or delivered to the office of the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, 74 North
School Street, Bridgeport, California. In either event, to be considered, bids must be received
by the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors no later than Bid Submission Deadline stated on the
cover sheet.

As soon thereafter as is practicable, all bids received by the Clerk as of the Bid Submission
Deadline will be taken to the Department of Public Works Conference Room, located on the
second floor of Courthouse Annex 1, 74 North School Street, Bridgeport, California 93517, and
there publicly opened, read aloud, and recorded. All interested parties are invited to attend.

it bt

Kalen Dodd, PE
Mono County Department of Public Works

Site Preparation



COUNTY OF MONO, DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

Mono County Jail — Site Preparation Project

1. BID DOCUMENTS

The Project Manual, which includes the Invitation for Bids, Instructions to Bidders, Proposal Forms,
Sample Standard Agreement, Specifications, provide in detail the requirements for the Project. The
Project Manual is available on the Mono County Bid Management System. To access the system go
to http://bids.monocounty.ca.gov/ and click on “view details” to the right of the name of the Project in
the RFP/RFQ/RFB Title list. This page shows the Project summary, status, bid due date, up-to-date
plan-holders list, and supporting documents. If you would like to be added to the plan-holder list and
receive email notices when addenda are posted, click “Click here to create a new user account.” After
registering your company, click “Add me to the Plan-holder List.” You can ask questions about the
Project by clicking “Ask a question about this solicitation.” If you would like assistance registering and
using the Bid Management System, please contact us at 760.932.5440 or publicworks@mono.ca.gov.

INTERPRETATION OF PROJECT PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS

2.
A. For information not provided in the Project Manual, bidders shall refer to the Standard Plans or
Standard Specifications.

B. Should bidders find discrepancies in, ambiguities, or omissions from, the Project Manual, or should
there be any doubt as to their meaning, they shall at once notify Public Works and, should it be found
necessary, a written addendum or bulletin of instructions will be sent to all plan-holders and posted
on the Mono County Bid Management System. Failure to raise any such concerns prior to the
submission of a bid will be deemed to waive such issues following the award of a contract. In the
event that written addenda or bulletins of instructions are issued, all bidders will be required to
acknowledge that they have reviewed and considered such addenda or bulletins in formulating
their bids.

C. No employee, agent, or representative of the County, or anyone else, is authorized to give oral
instructions, interpretations, or explanations of the Project Manual, and a submission of a bid
constitutes agreement by a bidder that its representative has placed no reliance on any such oral
explanation or interpretation. Oral instructions may, however, be given by the County or its agent
upon inquiry by a bidder to direct the bidder’s attention to the specific provisions of the Project
Manual that cover the subject of the inquiry.

3. APPROXIMATE QUANTITIES

The quantities given in the Bid Schedule are approximate only and are being given as a basis for the
comparison of bids. The County does not, expressly or by implication, agree that the actual amount of
work will correspond therewith, and the County reserves the right to increase or decrease the amount of
any class or portion of the work, or to omit portions of the work, as may be deemed necessary.

PROPOSALS

For bids to receive consideration, they shall be made in accordance with the Invitation for Bids, the
Proposal Forms, and these Instructions to Bidders. All bids shall be submitted on the Proposal
Forms contained in the Project Manual with all items completely filled out with typewritten or legible
handwritten responses. Signatures of all persons signing shall be in longhand. Completed Proposal
Forms shall be without interlineations, alterations, orerasures.

B. ALLBID SUBMITTALS SHALL REMAIN BOUND TOGETHER. Proposal Forms contained in Section

> >

Site Preparation Instructions to Bidders


http://bids.monocounty.ca.gov/
mailto:publicworks@mono.ca.gov.

| of this document may be separated from the Project Manual for purposes of bid submission.

C. Bids shall not contain any recapitulation of the work to be done. Alternative proposals will not be
considered unless called for by the County. No oral, telegraphic, or telephonic proposals or
modifications will be considered. Unauthorized conditions, limitations, or provisions attached to a
bid will render it informal and may cause its rejection.

D. Each bid is to be in accordance with the Project Manual. Before submitting a bid, bidders shall
carefully read this Project Manual, including the contents and form of the Sample Standard
Agreement and the Project Plans, and inform themselves fully as to all existing conditions and
limitations, which must include a visit to the site of the work, and shall include in the bid a sum to
cover the cost of all work contemplated in the Project Manual. The submission of a bid shall be
conclusive evidence that the bidder has reviewed and is satisfied as to the conditions to be
encountered, as to the character, quality, and quantities of work to be performed and the materials
to be furnished, and as to the requirements of the Project Manual and Project Plans. The submission
of a bid shall also be conclusive evidence that the person signing the Proposal Forms is authorized
to bind or obligate the bidder to any agreement.

E. Bidders’ attention is directed to the insurance and bond requirements described below and as
provided in the Sample Standard Agreement. It is highly recommended that bidders confer with
their respective insurance carriers or brokers to determine the availability of surety bonds,
insurance certificates, and endorsements as prescribed and provided herein in advance of bid
submission. If an apparent low bidder fails to comply strictly with the bonding and insurance
requirements, that bidder may be disqualified from award of the contract and its bid security may
be forfeited. The cost of such bonds and insurance shall be included in each bidder’s bid.

F. Each bidder shall inform itself of, and the bidder awarded the contract shall comply with, all federal,
state, and local laws, statutes and ordinances relative to the execution of the work. This
requirement includes, but is not limited to, applicable regulations concerning employment of labor,
fair labor practices, equal opportunity, drug-free workplace, construction and building, Americans
with Disabilities Act, protection of public and employee health and safety, environmental protection,
the protection of natural resources, fire protection, burning and non-burning requirements, permits,
fees, and similar subjects.

G. Proposal Forms contained in Section | and bidder’s bid security must be received in a sealed, opaque
envelope clearly labeled JAIL SITE PREPARATION printed on the outside of the envelope. Bids
received unsealed or unlabeled will not be considered. Bids submitted by facsimile (fax)
transmission or electronic mail will not be considered.

H. To be considered, bids must be received by the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors no later than
Bid Submission Deadline stated on the cover sheet. Bids may be mailed to the Clerk of the Board
of Supervisors, P.O. Box 237, Bridgeport, California, 93517, or delivered to the office of the Clerk of
the Board of Supervisors, 74 North School Street, Bridgeport, California, 93517.

I. Bidders are advised that due to the remote nature of central Mono County “overnight” delivery by
the U.S. Postal Service, UPS, FedEx, and other carriers is actually scheduled as a two-day
delivery. Bidders should also take potential holiday mail delays into consideration.

5. MODIFICATION OF BID

A bidder may modify its bid by written communication provided such communication is received by the
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors up to, but not later than, the Bid Submission Deadline stated on the
cover sheet and described above Paragraph 5.1. The written communication shall not reveal the bid
price but shall state the amount of addition or subtraction or other modification so that the final prices
or terms will not be known by the County until the sealed bid is opened.

Site Preparation Instructions to Bidders



6. WITHDRAWAL OF BID

Bids may be withdrawn without prejudice by the bidder up to, but not later than, the Bid Submission
Deadline stated on the cover sheet and described above in Paragraph 5.I. Such withdrawal may be
made by written letter or by email or facsimile (fax) request. Such request shall be signed by an
authorized representative of the bidder. Bids so withdrawn will be returned unopened to the bidder by
the County. Bids withdrawn following bid opening shall be permitted only as allowed by the Public
Contract Code and may subject the accompanying bid security to forfeiture and retention by the County
as in the case of failure to execute the awarded contract as provided below. Negligence on the part of
the bidder in preparing the bid shall not entitle the bidder to withdraw the bid subsequent to the County
opening bid proposals.

7. AGREEMENT AND BONDS

Bidders are required to submit, along with the Proposal Forms, a certified or cashier’s check or
bidder’s bond in an amount of at least 10 percent (10%) of their respective bids made payable to
the County of Mono. This bidder’s bond or bid security shall be given as a guarantee that the bidder
will enter into a contract if awarded, and may be forfeited by the successful bidder and retained by
the County if the bidder refuses, neglects, or fails to enter into said contract (including a failure to
provide required insurance certificates and bonds) within five (5) calendar days after provision by
the County of a complete and final contract for execution by successful bidder.

B. The successful bidder will be required to furnish a labor and materials bond (also known as a
“payment bond”) in an amount equal to 100 percent (100%) of the contract price, and a faithful
performance bond in an amount equal to 100 percent (100%) of the contract price. In addition, the
successful bidder, as the Contractor, will be required to furnish a one-year warranty bond upon
project completion, pursuant to the requirements in the Sample Standard Agreement. Only surety
bonds issued by an admitted surety insurer, as defined in the Sample Standard Agreement, will be
accepted. Bonds shall be in a form acceptable to the Mono County Counsel; a sample of an
acceptable form of each type of bond required is included in this Project Manual.

C. The Project Manual includes a Sample Standard Agreement, which the successful bidder, as the
Contractor, will be required to execute, and the insurance and bonds, which the Contractor will be
required to furnish.

D. All alterations, extensions of time, extra and additional work, and other changes authorized by the
County consistent with applicable provisions of the Project Manual, may be made without securing
the consent of the surety or sureties on the contractbonds.

8. OPENING OF BIDS

As soon after the Bid Submission Deadline as is practicable to do so, all bids received before that
deadline will be taken to the Public Works Conference Room, located on the second floor of Courthouse
Annex 1, 74 North School Street, Bridgeport, California, 93517, and there publicly opened, read aloud,
and recorded. All interested parties are invited to attend. Any bid received after the Bid Submission
Deadline will be returned to the bidder unopened.

9. BID EVALUATION

After all bids are opened and publicly announced, personnel from the Department of Public Works will
evaluate the bids; identify the lowest responsive bid by a responsible bidder; send a Notice of Intent to
Award the contract, with a ranked tabulation of all bid amounts submitted, to the identified Bidder (copied
to all Bidders); The Public Works Director shall determine whether to execute the contract or to reject
all bids if it is in the public of interest to do so, and in accordance with applicable laws. In the event of a
discrepancy between the numeric total bid written and the numeric total bid calculated, the bid amount
calculated by multiplying each item quantity by the unit price and then adding each item of the proposal

Site Preparation Instructions to Bidders



shall prevail.

Bid evaluation will consist of reviewing submitted bids for responsiveness, ranking the responsive bid
amounts from lowest to highest, and investigating whether the apparent low bidder, and such other
bidders as the Department of Public Works deems appropriate, appears to be a “responsible bidder.”
Said investigation will involve checking each bidder’s and any listed subcontractor’s license status and
eligibility to contract for public works, and may also include, a request for bidder references and/or
insurance certificates, a request for documents demonstrating the bidder’s solvency and available
resources to timely complete the work, and consideration of the bidder's performance on any prior
contracts with the County. The County reserves the right to waive any informality or irregularity in any
bid that does not affect the contract price and provided such waiver is allowed by law.

10. BID PROTEST PROCEDURE

Bidders may file a protest in accordance with the directions provided herein with respect to the apparent
low bid, any other bid submitted, and/or with respect to the qualifications or responsibility of the apparent
low bidder, or of any otherbidder.

The bid protest period shall commence immediately upon the County’s issuance of the Notice of Intent
to Award the contract and shall remain open until 4:30 PM of the fifth (5th) business day following the
date of the Notice of Intent to Award the contract (“Bid Protest Deadline”). All bid protests must be
received by the County, as described in this Paragraph 11, by the Bid Protest Deadline. Postmarks will
not be accepted. Failure to timely file a written protest by the Bid Protest Deadline shall constitute a waiver
of the right to protest. Untimely protests will not be accepted orconsidered.

Bidders may submit protests via email to Kalen Dodd at kdodd@mono.ca.gov

Bid protests must be submitted in and include the following information: (1) the name of the person or
entity making the protest; (2) the name of the bid project; (3) a complete statement of all legal and
factual grounds for the protest; (4) any documentation supporting the protestor’s grounds for the protest;
and (5) the form of relief requested and the legal basis for such relief.

If a valid protest is timely filed, the Department of Public Works shall investigate the bid protest. The
protested bidder shall have three (3) business days to respond to the Department of Public Works’
investigation and to provide any information requested by the Department of Public Works. The
Department of Public Works shall notify the protested bidder of any evidence reflecting upon his
responsibility, afford the protested bidder an opportunity to rebut such evidence, and allow the protested
bidder to present evidence in support of his qualifications to perform the contract. The Department of
Public Works shall respond to the protesting party upon the conclusion of its investigation by providing
the protesting party a statement of its conclusions and findings.

In addition to other requirements related to claim presentation, the bid protest procedure described
herein must be pursued and exhausted before any person or entity may commence litigation against
the County, or any of its officers, agents, or employees related to or arising out of the award of a contract
for the construction of the Project to a bidder whose winning bid could have been the subject of a protest
as outlined above.

N
—

. AWARD OR REJECTION OF BIDS

After expiration of the Bid Protest Deadline, the County may, in its discretion take any of the
following actions: (1) Award a contract notwithstanding the filing of a bid protest; (2) refrain from
awarding a contract pending resolution of any or all bid protests; or (3) otherwise proceed as it
deems appropriate, including without limitation rejecting all bids received. Further, under Public
Contract Code Section 22038, the County has the option, after receiving and tabulating bids, to
reject all bids and perform the work by force account if the Board of Supervisors determines, by a
four-fifths vote, that the work can be performed more economically by its own employees.

d

Site Preparation Instructions to Bidders


mailto:kdodd@mono.ca.gov

>

>

If it chooses to award a contract, the County shall award the contract to the bidder found
responsible by the County which has submitted the lowest responsive bid. Bidders are advised that
should this Invitation for Bids result in the award of a contract, any such contract will not be in force
until itis approved and fully executed by the County and the successful bidder.

Payment under any contract resulting from this Invitation for Bids will be consistent with the Sample
Standard Agreement, a sample of which has been provided with this Invitation for Bids. Any contract
awarded as a result of this Invitation for Bids will be awarded without discrimination based on race,
color, religion, age, sex, sexual orientation, or national origin.

Contract award, if made, is anticipated to occur within two (2) weeks after the date of bid opening
but could occur up to 60 days after said date. In such an event, all bidders will be notified in writing
that additional time will be required. No bid can be withdrawn during that period unless such
withdrawal is authorized under the Public Contract Code and the bid security shall remain in full
force and effect.

The County assumes no responsibility for any costs the bidder may incur, regardless of whether or
not a contract is awarded, in preparing and/or submitting abid.

CONTRACT EXECUTION

Accompanying the County’s Notice of Intent to Award will be the contract for the Project, which the
successful bidder will be required to execute and return, together with the required bonds and
certificates of insurance, to the County within five (5) calendar days following receipt of such
contract and Notice of Intent to Award. Failure to do so by the successful bidder shall be just cause
for annulment of the contract award and forfeiture of the bid security, which shall be retained by the
County as liquidated damages, and it is agreed by both parties that the bid security sum is a fair
estimate of such failure. Signature by both parties constitutes execution of a contract for the Project.

In the event the successful bidder is unable to physically deliver the required bonds and insurance
certificates, and where approved in writing by the Director of the Department of Public Works, the
bidder shall, prior to its commencement of the work, submit evidence satisfactory to the County
that such bonds and certificates will be furnished in a timely manner.

In the event of failure of the lowest responsible, responsive bidder to sign and return a contract for
the Project with acceptable evidence of bonds and insurance certificates as prescribed herein, the
County may award the contract to the next lowest responsible, responsive bidder, and so forth,
until a fully-executed contract for the Project and acceptable bonding and insurance certificates are
received by the County.

The bid security of all bidders will be retained by the County until a contract for the Project is
executed by the successful bidder and evidence of bonds and insurance acceptable to the County
is received, after which those bid securities, except any that may have been forfeited, will be
returned to the bidders whose proposals they accompanied.

. LISTING OF AND SUBSTITUTIONS OF SUBCONTRACTORS

If awarded a contract, the successful bidder shall perform with his own organization contract work
amounting to not less than 30 percent (30%) of the original total contract price. The bidder shall
give his/her personal attention to the fulfillment of the contract and shall keep the work under his/her
control. All persons engaged in the Project and related work will be held responsible for their work,
which shall be subject to the provisions of the Project Manual and any contract executed pursuant
to this Invitation for Bids.

Each bidder shall in its bid or offer, set forth the name and location of the office, shop, or mill of
each subcontractor who will perform work or labor or render service to the bidder in or about the
construction of the work or improvement and the portion of the work which will be done by each

Site Preparation Instructions to Bidders



subcontractor if the amount of the subcontractor’s work will be in excess of one-half of one percent
(0.5%), or Ten Thousand dollars ($10,000.00), whichever is greater, of the bidder’s bid.

C. If the bidder fails to specify a subcontractor for any portion of the work to be performed under the
contract as specified above, it shall be deemed to have agreed to perform such portion itself, and
it shall not be permitted to subcontract that portion of the work except under conditions hereinafter
set forth.

D. No bidder whose bid is accepted shall, without consent of the Director of the Department of Public
Works, do any of the following:

(1) Substitute any person as subcontractor in place of the subcontractor designated in the original
bid; or

(2) Permit any subcontractor to be assigned or transferred or allow the work to be performed by
anyone other than the original subcontractor listed in the bid; or

(3) Sublet or subcontract any portion of the work in excess of one-half of one percent (0.5%) of
the bidder’s bid as to which its original bid did not designate asubcontractor.

E. Subletting or subcontracting any portion of the work as to which no subcontractor was designated
in the original bid shall be permitted only in case of public emergency, necessity, or otherwise in
accordance with the Public Contract Code, and then only after a finding has been made in writing,
by the Director of the Department of Public Works, setting forth the facts constituting such
emergency, necessity, or statutory basis for the substitution.

F. If haulers are used merely to convey materials and will not excavate or load the material and if they
will not apply judgment as to the suitability of the material to meet Project specifications, then they
do not need to be identified on the “List of Subcontractors” in the bidforms.

G. Listing of subcontractors shall include the Contractor’'s California contractors license number, and
the Contractor’s DIR registration number.

14. INTEREST IN MORE THAN ONE BID

No person, firm, or corporation shall be allowed to make or file or be interested in more than one bid for
the same work unless alternative bids are called for. A person, firm, or corporation who has submitted
a sub-proposal to a bidder or who has quoted prices on materials to a bidder, is not hereby disqualified
from submitting a sub-proposal or quoting prices to other bidders.

15. COORDINATION WITH OTHER CONTRACTORS

Bidders are required to inform themselves fully of the conditions relating to construction and labor under
which the work will be performed, and bidders must employ, as far as possible, such methods and
means in the carrying out the Project and related work as will not cause any interruptions or interference
with any other contractor or the operations of the facility at which the work is being performed.

16. SUBSTITUTIONS

Throughout the Project Manual, materials may be specified that are in short supply or that are restricted
by government limitation orders. For the purpose of submitting proposals, bidders shall assume that the
County will require all materials to be furnished as specified. No substitutions will be permitted until all
sources or supply have been exhausted and written notice is given to the Director of the Department of
Public Works stating such fact. Substituted materials shall have the written approval of the Director of
the Department of Public Works, or its authorized agent, before installation in the Project.

18. CONTRACTOR'S LICENSING LAWS

Site Preparation Instructions to Bidders



A.  The successful bidder, as the Contractor, will be required to furnish a valid Mono County Business
License issued by County’s Office of the Treasurer prior to commencing the work.

B. Inorderto be eligible for award of a contract for the Project, a bidder must possess the appropriate
California Contractors License(s)

C. Attention is directed to the provisions of Article 4, Chapter 9, of the California Business and
Professions Code concerning the licensing of contractors. All bidders, contractors, and
subcontractors shall be licensed in accordance with the laws of the State of California and any
bidder, contractor, or subcontractor not so licensed is subject to the penalties imposed by such
laws. All bidders, contractors, and subcontractors shall possess the appropriate licenses to cover
the above advertised work. The County will verify that the successful bidder, as well as any
contractor and any subcontractor, is appropriately licensed to perform Project work designated
prior to awarding any contract pursuant to this Invitation for Bids.

19. LABOR REQUIREMENTS

The services and work to be provided by the successful bidder, as the Contractor for this Project,
constitute a “public work” within the meaning of Labor Code sections 1720 and 1720.3. Accordingly, as
required by Labor Code section 1771, the successful bidder, as the Contractor, and any subcontractor
under it, shall pay not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages (“prevailing wage”)
specified for each craft and classification to all workers employed in the execution of the Project. Copies
of prevailing wages, as determined by the Director of the Department of Industrial Relations, are
available online at: www.dir.ca.gov/OPRL/DPreWageDetermination.htm and on file at the office of the
Department of Public Works, located at 74 North School Street, Bridgeport, California, 93517, and are
available to any interested party upon request. These wages are not included in any part or section of
the Project Manual. Changes, if any, to prevailing wage rates will be available at the same location.

No contractor or subcontractor may be listed in a bid proposal or awarded a contract for a public works
project unless registered with the Department of Industrial Relations pursuant to Labor Code section
1725.5 (unless exempt under Labor Code section 1771.1). This Project is subject to compliance
monitoring and enforcement by the California Department of Industrial Relations.

20. PROJECT SCHEDULE AND LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

The Project and all related work shall be completed within the number of working days stated in Exhibit
1 of the Agreement from the date of issuance of the Notice to Proceed. Liquidated Damages are stated
in Exhibit 1.

By submitting a bid proposal, bidder acknowledges the following: (1) that the bidder has fully read
Section 14.2 of Exhibit 1 of the Sample Standard Agreement; (2) that it has had ample opportunity to
consult with legal counsel and obtain an explanation of these liquidated damage provisions; (3) and that
it is agreed by both parties that the successful bidder, as the Contractor, will pay Mono County liquidated
damages specified in Exhibit 1 of the Sample Standard Agreement.

Site Preparation Instructions to Bidders


http://www.dir.ca.gov/OPRL/DPreWageDetermination.htm

COUNTY OF MONO, DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

PROPOSAL FORMS

Mono County Jail — Site Preparation Project

Proposal of (“Bidder”), organized and existing under the laws of
the State of , doing business as
(e.g., “apartnership;" "a corporation;" "a sole proprietor"), as applicable tothe County of Mono,

(“County”). This bid proposal consists of the attached pages.

In compliance with your Invitation for Bids and Instructions to Bidders, Bidder hereby proposes to
perform all work for the MONO COUNTY JAIL — SITE PREPARATION PROJECT (“Project”) in strict
accordance with the Project Manual, which include the Instructions to Bidders, Specifications,
Agreement, any applicable addenda issued by the County’s Department of Public Works, and other
Contract Documents within the time set forth therein at prices stated on the attached Bid Schedule. Prices
quoted in this proposal include, but are not limited to, the cost for all labor, materials, tools, equipment,
supplies, transportation, permits, services, and applicable local, state, and/or federal taxes, fees, patent
rights, and/or royalties necessary to complete the Project and related work contemplated in the Project
Manual and described in any contract executed pursuant to this Invitation for Bids.

By submitting this Bid Proposal, Bidder certifies (and in the case of a joint bid, each party thereto certifies
as to his own organization) that this bid has been arrived at independently without consultation,
communication, or agreement as to any matter relating to this bid with any other Bidder or with any
competitor.

Bidder hereby agrees to commence work on the Project pursuant to any contract executed pursuant to this
Invitation for Bids on or before 14 calendar days following the award of contract by the County pursuant
to the provisions specified in any contract executed pursuant to this Invitation for Bids.

It is understood that, except for lump sum items, the quantities set forth in the Bid Schedule are
approximate only and are solely for the purpose of facilitating the comparison of bids, and that the
Bidder’s compensation will be computed on the basis of documented final quantities in completed work,
measured as specified, whether they be more or less than those shown.

Bidder's Company Name:

Company Address:
Office Telephone No.: Fax No.:
Email Address:
Contractor’s Calif. License No.: Class: DIR Registration No.

Mono County Business Lic. No.:

Name of Company Officer: Title:

Bidder’s Signature Date
(Add seal if by a corporation)

Site Preparation Proposal Forms



PROPOSAL FORMS
Mono County Jail — Site Preparation Project

No RefseF:':::\ce Item Q?t?/nt Units Price per Unit Item Price
1 8 Mobilization 1 LS
2 13 Water Pollution Control 1 LS
3 30 Rapid Impact Compation 1 LS
4 32 Certified Pad Grading 1 LS

Total:

Site Preparation Proposal Forms




LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS

Mono County Jail — Site Preparation Project

clearly list each subcontractor who will perform work or labor or render service in an amount in excess of one-half of one
percent (0.5%) of the total bid, or ten thousand dollars ($10,000), whichever is greater.

. . . Phone, Fax o .
Firm Name & Address Location of Business a Licens,e Description of Portion of Work to be Performed
Name Phone Value of work: $

Description of work:
Address, City State ZIP Email
License
DIR#
Name Phone Value of work: $
Description of work:
Address, City State ZIP Email
License
DIR#
Name Phone Value of work: $
Description of work:
Address, City State ZIP Email
License
DIR#
Name Phone Value of work: $
Description of work:
Address, City State ZIP Email
License
DIR#
Name Phone Value of work: $
Description of work:
Address, City State ZIP Email
License
DIR#

Notes: A. If more than one subcontractor is named for the same type of work, state the portion of which each will perform; provide
Contractor’s license number of each subcontractor.
B. Vendors or suppliers that will be providing materials only need not be listed.
C. Attach additional sheets as necessary.
D. The above statement constitutes a part of the proposal and signature on the signature portion of the bid proposal constitutes
signature on this statement.
E. Thislisting is required in addition to listing DBE Subcontractors elsewhere in the proposal.




ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
Mono County Jail — Site Preparation Project

RECEIPT OF ADDENDA
The County of Mono is advised that Bidder has received the following addenda for the Contract

Documents, including plans, specifications, and special provisions for the above-referenced project:

Addendum Number: Issuance Date:

Subject Matter:

Addendum Number: Issuance Date:

Subject Matter:

Addendum Number: Issuance Date:

Subject Matter:

Addendum Number: Issuance Date:

Subject Matter:

If you did not receive any addenda for the above-referenced project, please initialhere:

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF SITE VISIT(S)

The County of Mono is advised that | have visited the project site as acknowledged by my initials below.
In doing so, | have made myself aware of the conditions that exist and have prepared the attached
proposal accordingly.

OYes ONo

Note: This questionnaire constitutes a part of the proposal, and signature on the signature portion of the proposal
constitutes signature on this questionnaire and a declaration under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State
of California that the statements made herein are true and correct. Bidders are cautioned that making a false
certification may subject the certifier to criminal prosecution.

Proposal Forms



COUNTY OF MONO, DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
DISCLOSURES AND CERTIFICATIONS

Mono County Jail - Site Preparation Project

In accordance with Public Contract Code section 10162, the Bidder shall complete the following
questionnaire under penalty of perjury:

QUESTIONNAIRE A

Has the Bidder, or any officer or employee of the Bidder who has a proprietary interest in the Bidder,
ever been disqualified, removed, or otherwise prevented from bidding on or completing a federal, state,
or local government project because of a violation of law or safety regulation?

Yes: No:
If the answer is yes, please explain the circumstances in the space provided below and/or attach
separate sheet(s) as necessary, with signature affixed.

QUESTIONNAIRE B

Within the past three years, has the Bidder, or any officer or employee of the Bidder who has a
proprietary interest in the Bidder, ever been convicted by a court of competent jurisdiction of any charge
of fraud, bribery, collusion, conspiracy, or any other act in violation of any federal or state antitrust law
in connection with the bidding upon, award of, or performance of any “public works contract,” as defined
in Public Contract Code section 1101, with any “public entity,” as defined in Public Contract Code section
1100, the Regents of the University of California, or the Trustees of the California State University?

Yes: No:

If the answer is yes, please explain the circumstances in the space provided below and/or attach
separate sheet(s) as necessary, with signature affixed.

Note: This questionnaire constitutes a part of the proposal, and signature on the signature portion of the proposal
constitutes signature on this questionnaire and a declaration under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State
of California that the statements made herein are true and correct.

Proposal Forms



Disclosures and Certifications Project Manual

WORKERS’ COMPENSATION CERTIFICATION

| do hereby certify that | am aware of the provisions of the California Labor Code which requires every
employer to be insured against liability for Workers’ Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in
accordance with the provisions of that code, and | will comply with such provisions before commencing
the performance of work in this contract.

NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT

In accordance with Title 23 United States Code Section 112 and Section 7106 of the California Public
Contract Code, the Bidder declares that the bid is not made in the interest of, or on behalf of, any
undisclosed person, partnership, company, association, organization, or corporation; that the bid is
genuine and not collusive or sham; that the Bidder has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any
other bidder to put in a false or sham bid, and has not directly or indirectly colluded, conspired, connived,
or agreed with any bidder or anyone else to put in a sham bid, or that anyone shall refrain from bidding;
that the Bidder has not in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by agreement, communication, or
conference with anyone to fix the bid price of the Bidder or any other bidder, or to fix any overhead,
profit, or cost element of the bid price, or of that of any other bidder, or to secure any advantage against
the public body awarding the contract of anyone interested in the proposed contract; that all statements
contained in the bid are true; and, further, that the Bidder has not, directly or indirectly, submitted its bid
price or any breakdown thereof, or the contents thereof, or divulged information or data relative thereto,
or paid, and will not pay, any fee to any corporation, partnership, company, association, organization,
bid depository, or to any member or agent thereof to effectuate a collusive or sham bid, and has not
paid, and will not pay, any person or entity for such purpose.

Any person executing this affidavit on behalf of a bidder that is a corporation, partnership, joint venture,
limited liability company, limited liability partnership, or any other entity, hereby represents that he or
she has full power to execute, and does execute this declaration on behalfof the Bidder.

Note: This questionnaire constitutes a part of the proposal, and signature on the signature portion of the proposal
constitutes signature on this questionnaire and a declaration under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State
of California that the statements made herein are true and correct.

Proposal Forms



Disclosures and Certifications Project Manual

A.

EQUAL EMPLOYEMENT OPPORTUNITY COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

The bidder hereby certifies that he (as the contractor) and all subcontractors agree to conform to the
equal opportunity clauses required by Executive Orders 10925, 11114, and 11246, as well as 41 CFR
60-1.4 Equal Opportunity Clause).

The bidder certifies that within 30 days of the award of the contract, as required, the contractor and
subcontractors will file an “Equal Employment Opportunity Employer Information Report EEO-1 (SF-
100)” with the U.S. Department of Labor and, annually thereafter, file the same report with the U.S.
Department of Labor by March 31. (If your company has filed one of these reports this year, you do
not have to comply with the 30-day regulation.) Refer to
https://www.eeoc.gov/employers/eeo1survey/upload/instructions form.pdf for filing requirements (SF-
100).

The contractor and all subcontractors shall certify that prior reports have been filed under the applicable
filing requirements as follows:

a. Contractor/Subcontractor has held previous contracts where EEO provisions were in force.
Yes No (If yes, answer question 2 also)

b. Contractor/Subcontractor has filed all “required” reports for these previous contracts.
Yes No

Proposed prime contractors and subcontractors who have participated in a previous contract or
subcontract subject to Executive Orders 10925, 11114, and 11246 and that have not filed reports when
required should note that 41 CFR 60-1.7 (b) (1) prevents the award of contracts and subcontracts
unless such contractor (and/or subcontractor) submits a report covering the delinquent period or such
other period specified by the Federal Highway Administration or by the Director of the U.S. Department
of Labor’s Office of Federal Contract Compliance.

If the bidder has participated in a previous contract subject to the equal opportunity clause and has not
submitted compliance reports due under applicable filing requirements, the Bidder shall submit a
compliance report on Standard Form 100, “Employee Information Report EEO-1" prior to the award of
any contract issued pursuant to this IFB.

This certification is required by the Equal Employment Opportunity Regulations of the Secretary of the
Department of Labor (41 CFR 60-1.7(b) (1)) and must be submitted by bidders and proposed
subcontractors only in connection with contracts and subcontracts which are subject to the equal
opportunity clause. Contracts and subcontracts which are exempt from the equal opportunity clause
are set forth in 41 CFR 60-1.5 (generally only contracts or subcontracts of $10,000 or less are exempt).

Contractor/Subcontractor certifies that he is not currently in receipt of any outstanding letters of
deficiency, show cause, probable cause, or other such Notification of Noncompliance with EEO
regulations.

A compliance certificate in conformance with this section is not required at time of bid, but each
subcontractor must be provide this certificate to the County prior to execution of any contract issued
pursuant to this IFB. If available, subcontractor certificates may be supplied at time of bid.
Subcontractor signature below certifies Equal Employment Opportunity compliance. Each
subcontractor shall answer the questions in Item C above and sign a copy of this page.

Subcontractor Name Subcontractor Signature Date

Note: This Certificate constitutes a part of the proposal, and the contractor’s signature on the signature portion of the
proposal constitutes the Contractor's “Equal Employment Opportunity Compliance Certificate” and a declaration
under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the statements made herein are true and correct.

Proposal Forms


https://www.eeoc.gov/employers/eeo1survey/upload/instructions_form.pdf

Disclosures and Certifications Project Manual

DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION CERTIFICATION
TITLE 49, CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, PART 29

The Bidder, under penalty of perjury, certifies that, except as noted below, she/he or any other person
associated therewith in the capacity of owner, partner, director, office manager:

e Is not currently under suspension, debarment, voluntary exclusion, or determination of
ineligibility by any federal agency;

e Has not been suspended, debarred, voluntarily excluded or determined ineligible by any federal
agency within the past three (3) years;

e Does not have a proposed debarment pending; and

¢ Has not been indicated, convicted, or had a civil judgment rendered against it by a court of
competent jurisdiction in any matter involving fraud or official misconduct within the past three
(3) years.

If there are any exceptions to this certification, insert the exception in the following space:

Exceptions will not necessarily result in denial of award, but will be considered in determining bidder
responsibility. For any exception noted above, indicate below to whom it applies, initiating agency, and
dates of actions.

Providing false information may result in criminal prosecution or administrative sanction. The above
certification is part of the Proposal. Signing this Proposal on the signature portion hereof shall also
consititute signature of this certification and a declaration under penalty of perjury under the laws of the
State of California that the statements made herein are true and correct.

Note: This questionnaire constitutes a part of the proposal, and signature on the signature portion of the proposal
constitutes signature on this questionnaire and a declaration under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State
of California that the statements made herein are true and correct.

Proposal Forms



COUNTY OF MONO, DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

BIDDER'’S QUALIFICATION STATEMENT

Mono County Jail - Site Preparation Project

This Qualifications Statement will be used by Mono County to determine if a Bidder is qualified to do
the work to be performed and therefore to find if the Bidder is a “responsible” bidder. The Qualifications
Statement should be completed on behalf of the Bidder by an officer or other individual who is
knowledgeable about the Bidder’s past and current operations, policies, and practices. A response must
be provided to each question. If a particular question does not apply, the response should state “not
applicable” or “N/A”. Qualifications statements that contain missing or incomplete answers may
render the proposal non-responsive. The County reserves the right, however, to allow the bidder to
submit additional information pertaining to its qualifications after the Bid Submission Deadline provided
in the Project Manual if circumstances warrant and to waive any error or defect in a Bidder’s Qualification
Statement.

Answers may be expanded upon by attaching additional pages. Use 82" x 11” paper and mark each
additional page with the Bidder's name and identification of the particular question to which an answer
is being given. For the purposes of this Qualification Statement, the terms “company,” “firm,” “bidder,”
“proposer,” and “contractor” are used interchangeably and have the same meaning.

The following documents or information must be included with your Qualifications Statement for this Bid
Proposal. (Existing certification and license information on file with the County and current may meet the
requirements of this section subject to verification prior to award of any contract):

Insurance: Contractor must provide proof that the firm is insured at least to the limits identified in the
Sample Standard Agreement.

Licenses: Copies of all applicable and current trade licenses issued to the Contractor which legally
allow the Contractor to perform the work identified for this Project.

Previous Work History: This Qualifications Statement includes a form titled “Experience on
Completed or Ongoing Projects.” Please use this form to detail the work that the firm has performed
within the last three (3) years. A minimum of three (3) successfully-completed general civil and/or
slurry construction projects are required. Use one (1) page per project and reproduce copies of the
form as necessary. In each project description, identify your firm as a prime contractor,
subcontractor, or joint venture partner.

OSHA Violations: If at any time within the past five (5) years the Contractor has received an OSHA
serious violation, you must provide copies of the Citation and Notification of Penalty, signed
Settlement Agreement, and narrative which details the specific issue(s) cited, remedial action
required and taken by the Contractor, amount of fine initially imposed, and ultimate resolution.

Resumes and Organizational Chart: The Contractor must include current resumes for each principal
and key individual identified in Question 2B below. The statement must also include a copy of the
firm’s current organizational chart.

Equipment: The Contractor must provide a list of equipment that would be available for the work.

Site Preparation Project Proposal Forms



Bidder’'s Qualification Statement Project Manual

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION:

A. Type of organization:

B.

If Corporation, include year and state incorporated
If Partnership, state whether general or limited
If Sole Proprietorship, include name of owner
If Joint Venture*, include name all partnering firms

* Bidder’s submitting a bid as joint venture must obtain a joint venture contractor’s
license before they may be awarded a contract, per Business and Professions
Code §7029.1.

Is the firm, and all persons or firms listed in the bid as subcontractors, registered with the
Department of Industrial Relations as required by California Labor Code section 1725.5?

Yes No

If you checked “No” in the previous question, then you must fall within one of the limited
exceptions set forth in California Labor Code section 1771.1, and must register with the
Department of Industrial Relations prior to contract award. Does the firm (or any subcontractor)
fall within Califomia Labor Code section 1771.1 and become registered prior to contractaward?

Yes (attach explanation) No (not qualified)

2. PERSONNEL.:

A

Identify the current number of employees below:

Employee Type Full-Time Part-Time

Office

Field

B. Principals and Key Personnel: On the chart below, supply the required information. Principals

and key personnel include proprietors, partners, directors or officers of the firm; any manager or
individual who participates in overall policy-making or financial decisions of the firm; any person
who makes significant financial contributions to the firm’s operations; any person in a position to
control and direct the firm’s overall operations or any significant part of its operation (including
site foremen and superintendents). Resumes for principals and key personnel must be provided
herewith. Use additional sheets if necessary to identify all principals and key personnel.

Description Person 1 Person 2 Person 3

Name

Title

% Ownership

(Use additional sheets if necessary to identify all Principals and Key Personnel)

Site Preparation Project Proposal Forms



Bidder’'s Qualification Statement Project Manual

3. FINANCIAL INFORMATION:

A. Are there any liens outstanding against the Contractor? []Yes []No
(if yes, provide a detailed explanation on an attached sheet)

B. Has the Contractor, principals, or key personnel been party to a
bankruptcy or reorganization proceeding with the last five years? []Yes []No
(if yes, provide a detailed explanation on an attached sheet)

C. Annual sales dollar volume of Contractor: $

4. INTEGRITY OF CONTRACTOR: Please provide an explanation on an attached sheet for any of
the following questions with the answer “yes”.

A. During the past five years has the Contractor:

i. Been subject of a lien or claim of $25,000 or more by a

subcontractor or supplier? []Yes [ No
ii. Failed to complete a contract? []Yes [] No
i. Been suspended, debarred, disqualified or otherwise declared

ineligible to bid? []Yes [] No
iv. Been defaulted on any contract? []Yes [] No
v. Had a contract terminated? []Yes [] No
vi. Had liquidated damages assessed against it upon completion of a

contract? []Yes [] No
vii. Been a plaintiff or defendant in any lawsuits arising out of public

or private construction contracts? []Yes [] No

B. During the past five years has the Contractor, Principals or Key Personnel:

i. Been a plaintiff or defendant in any lawsuits arising out of public

or private construction contracts? []Yes [] No
ii. Been the subject of an investigation involving any alleged violation

of criminal law, civil antitrust law or other federal, state, or local

civil law? []Yes [] No
iii. Been convicted after trial or by plea of any felony under state or

federal law? []Yes [] No
iv. Entered a plea of nolo contendere to a charge of embezzlement,

theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records,

receiving stolen property or violation of an antitrustlaw? []Yes [] No
v. Been the subject of an investigation of any alleged violation of

federal, state, or local regulations by any public agency? []Yes [] No

Site Preparation Project Proposal Forms



Bidder’'s Qualification Statement Project Manual

vi. Been found to have committed a violation of any labor law or
regulation including prevailing wage rates and fair labor practices? []Yes []No

vii. Been found to have committed an OSHA “serious violation”? [] Yes [] No
vii. Been found to have committed a construction-related violation of
federal, state, or local environmental law or regulation? [] Yes [] No
5. BIDDING CAPABILITY AND PREVIOUS EXPERIENCE:
A. Provide a narrative of the Contractor's experience and involvements in site grading or rapid
impact compaction projects. Previous experience in this field of construction is necessary for the

Contractor to be found responsible specific to this Project. Additional information can be
provided on an attached sheet.

Site Preparation Project Proposal Forms



Bidder’'s Qualification Statement Project Manual

PROJECT EXPERIENCE WITH GRADING OR RAPID IMPACT COMPATION PROJECTS

Project Status: Contractor’s Role*:
O Project completed O Prime Contractor
O Work in progress O Subcontractor

O Joint Venture Partner

* Entity submitting proposal is considered “Contractor”

Facility / Project Name:

Address of Project:

Project Owner:

Contract Amount (Contractor’'s Share): $ Was project bonded? [0 Yes [ONo
% of total project performed by Contractor by Contractor’s own forces: %
Was Contractor required to possess a Performance Bond and/or Payment Bond? OYes [ONo
Start Date:_ Scheduled Completion Date: Actual Completion Date:_

Construction Manager / Project Manager:

Company:

Address:
Telephone: email:
Contact Name: Title:

Architect / Engineer:

Company:

Address:
Telephone: email:
Contact Name: Title:

Reference familiar with Contractor’s performance:

Company:

Address:
Telephone: email:
Contact Name: Title:

Description of work performed by Contractor:

Site Preparation Project Proposal Forms



BID BOND
(MINIMUM 10% OF TOTAL BID AMOUNT)

KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS that we,

the Contractor in the contract hereto annexed, as Principal, and

as Surety, jointly and severally, bind ourselves, our heirs, representatives, successors and assigns, as

set forth herein to the County of Mono (hereinafter, “Owner”) in the sum of $

lawful money of the United States. Principal has submitted the accompanying bid for
MONO COUNTY JAIL - SITE PREPARATION PROJECT

If the Principal is awarded the contract and enters into a written contract, in the form prescribed by the
Owner, at the price designated by his bid, and files two bonds with the Owner, one to guarantee payment
for labor and materials and the other to guarantee faithful performance, in the time and manner specified
by the Owner, and carries all insurance in the type and amount which conforms to the Contract
Documents, and furnishes required certificates and endorsements thereof, then this obligation shall be

null and void; otherwise it shall remain in full force and effect.

Forfeiture of this bond shall not preclude the Owner from seeking all other remedies provided by law to

cover losses sustained as a result of the Principal’s failure to do any of the foregoing.

Principal and Surety agree that if the Owner is required to engage the services of an attorney in
connection with the enforcement of this bond, each shall pay Owner’'s reasonable attorney’s fees
incurred with or without suit.

PRINCIPAL:

Executed on: By:

(Seal of Corporation) Title:

(Attach notary acknowledgment for Contractor’s authorized representative and for Attorney-in-Fact of
Surety)

NOTICE: No substitution or revision to this bond form will be accepted. Sureties must be authorized to
do business in and have an agent for service of process in California. A certified copy of Power of
Attorney must be attached.

Site Preparation Project Proposal Forms



Bid Bond Project Manual

Any claims under this bond may be addressed to:

(Name and address of Surety)

(Name and address of Surety’s agent for service
of process in California, if different from above)

(Telephone number of Surety’s agent in Calif.)

(Attach notary acknowledgement)

SURETY

By:

(Attorney-in-Fact)

Proposal Forms



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF MONO
AND CLICK HERE TO ENTER TEXT
FOR THE PROVISION OF SITE PREPARATION SERVICES

INTRODUCTION

WHEREAS, the County of Mono (hereinafter referred to as “County”) may have the need for the
services of CLICK HERE TO ENTER TEXT of CLICK HERE TO ENTER TEXT (hereinafter referred to as
“Contractor”), and in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, terms and conditions hereinafter
contained, the parties hereby agree as follows:

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. SCOPE OF WORK

Contractor shall furnish to County, upon its request, those services and work set forth in Attachment A, attached
hereto and by reference incorporated herein. Requests by County to Contractor to perform under this
Agreement will be made by the Director of CLICK HERE TO ENTER TEXT, or an authorized representative
thereof. Requests to Contractor for work or services to be performed under this Agreement will be based upon
County's need for such services. County makes no guarantee or warranty, of any nature, that any minimum
level or amount of services or work will be requested of Contractor by County under this Agreement. By this
Agreement, County incurs no obligation or requirement to request from Contractor the performance of any
services or work at all, even if County should have some need for such services or work during the term of this
Agreement.

Services and work provided by Contractor at County's request under this Agreement will be performed in a
manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal, state, and county laws,
ordinances, and resolutions. Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions include, but are not limited to,
those that are referred to in this Agreement.

This Agreement is subject to the following Exhibits (as noted) which are attached hereto, following all
referenced Attachments, and incorporated by this reference. In the event of a conflict between the terms of an
attached Exhibit and this Agreement, the terms of the Exhibit shall govern:

Exhibit 1: General Conditions (Construction)
Exhibit 2: Prevailing Wages

Exhibit 3: Bond Requirements

Exhibit 4: Invoicing, Payment, and Retention
Exhibit 5: Trenching Requirements

Exhibit 6: FHWA Requirements

Exhibit 7: CDBG Requirements

Exhibit 8: HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
Exhibit 9: Other

OO0O0OXKXNXXKX

2. TERM

The term of this Agreement shall be from CLICK HERE TO ENTER TEXT, to CLICK HERE TO ENTER
TEXT, unless sooner terminated as provided below.

Standard Agreement
Version 06.21.23



3. CONSIDERATION

A. Compensation. County shall pay Contractor in accordance with the Schedule of Fees (set forth as
Attachment B) for the services and work described in Attachment A that are performed by Contractor at
County’s request.

B. Travel and Per Diem. Contractor will not be paid or reimbursed for travel expenses or per diem that
Contractor incurs in providing services and work requested by County under this Agreement, unless otherwise
provided for in Attachment B.

C. No Additional Consideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Contractor shall not be
entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages, or other type
of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement. Specifically, Contractor shall not be entitled, by
virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits, retirement
benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves of absence
of any type or kind whatsoever.

D. Limit upon amount payable under Agreement. The total sum of all payments made by County to
Contractor for services and work performed under this Agreement shall not exceed $CLICK HERE TO
ENTER TEXT in any twelve-month period, plus the amount of any change order(s) approved in accordance
with authority delegated by the Board of Supervisors (hereinafter referred to as "Contract Limit"). County
expressly reserves the right to deny any payment or reimbursement requested by Contractor for services or
work performed that is in excess of the Contract Limit.

E. Billing and Payment. Contractor shall submit to County, on a monthly basis, an itemized statement of
all services and work described in Attachment A, which were done at County’s request. The statement to be
submitted will cover the period from the first (1st) day of the preceding month through and including the last
day of the preceding month. Alternatively, Contractor may submit a single request for payment
corresponding to a single incident of service or work performed at County’s request. All statements
submitted in request for payment shall identify the date on which the services and work were performed
and describe the nature of the services and work which were performed on each day. Invoicing shall be
informative but concise regarding services and work performed during that billing period. Upon finding
that Contractor has satisfactorily completed the work and performed the services as requested, County shall
make payment to Contractor within 30 days of its receipt of the itemized statement. Should County
determine the services or work have not been completed or performed as requested and/or should Contractor
produce an incorrect statement, County shall withhold payment until the services and work are satisfactorily
completed or performed and/or the statement is corrected and resubmitted.

If Exhibit 4 (“Invoicing, Payment, and Retention”) is attached to this Agreement, then the language
contained in 4 shall supersede and replace this Paragraph 3.E. in its entirety.

F. Federal and State Taxes.

(1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any federal or state
income taxes or social security from any payments made by County to Contractor under the terms and
conditions of this Agreement.

2) County shall withhold California state income taxes from payments made under this
Agreement to non-California resident independent contractors when it is anticipated that total annual payments
to Contractor under this Agreement will exceed One Thousand Four Hundred Ninety-Nine dollars ($1,499.00).

Standard Agreement
Version 06.21.23



3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes or payments from
sums paid by County to Contractor under this Agreement. Payment of all taxes and other assessments on such
sums is the sole responsibility of Contractor. County has no responsibility or liability for payment of
Contractor’s taxes or assessments.

4) The total amounts paid by County to Contractor, and taxes withheld from payments to non-
California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the Internal Revenue Service and the California State
Franchise Tax Board.

4. WORK SCHEDULE

Contractor's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in Attachment A
that are requested by County. It is understood by Contractor that the performance of these services and work
will require a varied schedule. Contractor, in arranging his/her schedule, will coordinate with County to ensure
that all services and work requested by County under this Agreement will be performed within the time frame
set forth by County.

5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS

Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, or municipal governments, for
Contractor to provide the services and work described in Attachment A must be procured by Contractor and be
valid at the time Contractor enters into this Agreement. Further, during the term of this Agreement, Contractor
must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits in full force and effect. Licenses, certificates, and permits
may include, but are not limited to, driver's licenses, professional licenses or certificates, and business licenses.
Such licenses, certificates, and permits will be procured and maintained in force by Contractor at no expense
to County. Contractor will provide County, upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and
valid licenses, certificates and permits that are required to perform the services identified in Attachment A.
Where there is a dispute between Contractor and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are
required to perform the services identified in Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such
determinations for purposes of this Agreement.

6. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ETC

Contractor shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, support services
and telephone service as is necessary for Contractor to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this
Agreement. County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Contractor for any expense or cost incurred by
Contractor in procuring or maintaining such items. Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by
Contractor in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation of Contractor.

7. COUNTY PROPERTY

A. Personal Property of County. Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective or safety
devices, badges, identification cards, keys, uniforms, vehicles, reference materials, furniture, appliances, etc.
provided to Contractor by County pursuant to this Agreement is, and at the termination of this Agreement
remains, the sole and exclusive property of County. Contractor will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard
and maintain such items while they are in Contractor's possession. Contractor will be financially responsible
for any loss or damage to such items, partial or total, that is the result of Contractor's negligence.

B. Products of Contractor's Work and Services. Any and all compositions, publications, plans, designs,
specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, videotapes, computer programs,
computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual

3

Standard Agreement
Version 06.21.23



presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or intellectual
properties of any kind that are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result, product, or
manifestation of, Contractor's services or work under this Agreement are, and at the termination of this
Agreement shall remain, the sole and exclusive property of County. At the termination of the Agreement,
Contractor will convey possession and title to all such properties to County.

8. INSURANCE

Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims for injuries
to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work
hereunder and the results of that work by the Contractor, his agents, representatives, employees or
subcontractors.

A. Minimum Scope and Limit of Insurance. Coverage shall be at least as broad as (please select all
applicable):

X Commercial General Liability (CGL): Insurance Services Office Form CG 00 01 covering
CGL on an “occurrence” basis, including products and completed operations, property damage,
bodily injury and personal & advertising injury with limits no less than $5,000,000 per occurrence.
If a general aggregate limit applies, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this
project/location (ISO CG 25 03 or 25 04) or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required
occurrence limit.

X Automobile Liability: ISO Form Number CA 00 01 covering any auto (Code 1), or if
Contractor has no owned autos, hired, (Code 8) and non-owned autos (Code 9), with limit no less
than $5,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage.

X Workers’ Compensation: as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits, and
Employer’s Liability Insurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury
or disease.

] Worker’s Compensation Exempt: Contractor is exempt from obtaining Workers’
Compensation insurance because Contractor has no employees. Contractor shall notify County and
provide proof of Workers’ Compensation insurance to County within 10 days if an employee is
hired. Such Workers” Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of subrogation in favor
of County for all work performed by Contractor, its employees, agents, and subcontractors.
Contractor agrees to defend and indemnify County in case of claims arising from Contractor’s
failure to provide Workers’ Compensation insurance for employees, agents and subcontractors, as
required by law.

L] Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions): Insurance appropriate to the Contractor’s
profession, with limit no less than $2,000,000 per occurrence or claim, $2,000,000 aggregate.

X Contractors’ Pollution Legal Liability and/or Asbestos Legal Liability and/or Errors and
Omissions (if project involves environmental hazards) with limits no less than $2,000,000 per
occurrence or claim, and $2,000,000 policy aggregate.

If the Contractor maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimums shown above,
the County requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or the higher limits maintained
by the contractor. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of
insurance and coverage shall be available to the County.

Standard Agreement
Version 06.21.23



B. Other Insurance Provisions. The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the

following provisions:

(1)

2)

)

4)

)

(6)

Additional Insured Status: The County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are
to be covered as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of
work or operations performed by or on behalf of the Contractor including materials, parts, or
equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations. General liability coverage
can be provided in the form of an endorsement to the Contractor’s insurance (at least as broad
as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85 or if not available, through the addition of both CG 20 10, CG
20 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 38; and CG 20 37 if a later edition is used).

Primary Coverage: For any claims related to this contract, the Contractor’s insurance
coverage shall be primary and non-contributory and at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 04 13
as respects the County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or
self-insurance maintained by the County, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall
be excess of the Contractor’s insurance and shall not contribute with it. This requirement shall
also apply to any Excess or Umbrella liability policies.

Umbrella or Excess Policy: The Contractor may use Umbrella or Excess Policies to provide
the liability limits as required in this agreement. This form of insurance will be acceptable
provided that all of the Primary and Umbrella or Excess Policies shall provide all of the
insurance coverages herein required, including, but not limited to, primary and non-
contributory, additional insured, Self-Insured Retentions (SIRs), indemnity, and defense
requirements. The Umbrella or Excess policies shall be provided on a true “following form”
or broader coverage basis, with coverage at least as broad as provided on the underlying
Commercial General Liability insurance. No insurance policies maintained by the Additional
Insureds, whether primary or excess, and which also apply to a loss covered hereunder, shall
be